

Szent István University Doctoral School of Economic and Regional Sciences

The Readiness of the Palestinian Banking Industry to Fintech Era: Measuring the Fintech Ecosystem in Palestine

DOI: 10.54598/000450

Ph.D. Thesis

Mohannad Abu Daqar GÖDÖLLŐ, HUNGARY 2021

Szent István University, Hungary

Name of Doctoral School:	Doctoral School of Economic and Regional Sciences			
Discipline:	Management and Business Administration Sciences			
Head of Doctoral School:	Prof. Dr. H.c. Popp, József, DSC Corresponding member of the Hungarian Academy of Sciences Szent István University Faculty of Economics and Social Sciences Institute of Agribusiness			
Supervisor(s):	Dr. habil. Constantinovits Milán Szent István University Faculty of Economic and Social Sciences,			

Dr. habil. Constantinovits Milán

Approval of Supervisor(s)

Approval of Head of Doctoral School

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INT	rro	DUCTION	11
1	l.1.	Bac	kground	11
1	1.2.	Stat	tement of Problem	13
1	1.3.	Res	earch objectives	14
1	l.4.	Res	earch Questions	15
1	1.5.	Res	earch Hypotheses	15
]	1.6.	Sig	nificance of the Study	16
2.	LII	TER.	ATURE REVIEW	18
-	2.1	Wh	at is Fintech?	18
-	0 1	1		10
	2.1.	1.	Anxieties and finteen	20
	2.1.	2.	The fintech disruption and transformation	20
	2.1.	3.	Digital transformation and fintech	21
	2.1.	4.	RegTech (Regulation technology)	23
	2.1.	5.	Objectives in the adoption of Fintech by banks	24
	2.1.	6.	Fintech and banks: opportunity or threat?	25
	2.1.	7.	Banks readiness to Fintech services	26
2	2.2.	The	e growing dominance of fintech	35
	2.2.	1.	Fintech and banks in competition	35
	2.2.	2.	The threat of FinTech and its impact on customer expectations towards banking	
	serv	vices		36
	2.2.	3.	The new consumer generations	37
	2	.2.3.	1. Millennials & Gen Z in Fintech Adoption	37
	2.2.	4.	Artificial intelligence and big data in the Financial industry	39
	2.2.	5.	Real-time payment	40
	2.2.	6.	E-wallets and banking	43
	2.2.	7.	The Future of the Financial Services	44
2	2.3.	Ana	alysis of the fintech ecosystem in Palestine	44

2.3.1.	The fintech ecosystem	44
2.3.2.	The economy of Palestine	45
2.3.3.	Banking and finance in Palestine	45
2.3.4.	The fintech ecosystem in Palestine	47
2.3.5.	Fintech startups in Palestine	49
2.3.6.	The impact of foreign fintech	50
2.3.7.	Fintech and Financial Inclusion	50
2.4. Fin	tech & Financial Inclusion in Palestine	51
2.4.1.	Fintech Context Analysis	52
2.5. Co	nceptual Framework: Extended TAM (E-TAM)	53
2.5.1.	Theories of technology adoption and acceptance	54
2.5.2.	Technology Acceptance Model (TAM)	54
2.5.3.	The Nine dimensions of E-TAM	57
2.5.4.	The use of TAM in studies of fintech and financial technology adoption	61
2.5.5.	E-TAM & Fintech Study Results	62
210101	5	
3. MATE	RIALS AND METHODS	65
3. MATE 3.1. Da	RIALS AND METHODS	 65 65
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1.	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data	65 65 65
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2.	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data	65 65 65 66
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data esis Instrument	65 65 65 66 66
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1.	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data esis Instrument Questionnaire Design	
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1. 3.2.2.	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data esis Instrument Questionnaire Design Banks Readiness Measure	
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1. 3.2.2. 3.2.3.	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data esis Instrument Questionnaire Design Banks Readiness Measure Validity of Questionnaire	
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1. 3.2.2. 3.2.3. 3.2.4.	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data esis Instrument Questionnaire Design Banks Readiness Measure Validity of Questionnaire Normality Test	
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1. 3.2.2. 3.2.3. 3.2.4. 3.2.5.	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data esis Instrument Questionnaire Design Banks Readiness Measure Validity of Questionnaire Normality Test Collinearity Test	
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1. 3.2.2. 3.2.3. 3.2.4. 3.2.5. 3.2.6.	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data esis Instrument Questionnaire Design Banks Readiness Measure Validity of Questionnaire Normality Test Collinearity Test Reliability of Questionnaire	65 65 66 66 66 66
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1. 3.2.2. 3.2.3. 3.2.4. 3.2.5. 3.2.6. 3.3. Co	RIALS AND METHODS ta collection Primary Data Secondary Data esis Instrument Questionnaire Design Banks Readiness Measure Validity of Questionnaire Normality Test Collinearity Test Reliability of Questionnaire nceptual Model	
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1. 3.2.2. 3.2.3. 3.2.4. 3.2.5. 3.2.6. 3.3. Co 3.4. Pop	RIALS AND METHODS	
3. MATE 3.1. Da 3.1.1. 3.1.2. 3.2. The 3.2.1. 3.2.2. 3.2.3. 3.2.4. 3.2.5. 3.2.6. 3.3. Co 3.4. Pop 3.5. San	RIALS AND METHODS	

3.6.	Method of data analysis				
4. RE	SULTS AND DISCUSSION				
4.1.	Participants' Social Profile				
4.2.	.2. Analysis of Participants' Social Profile				
4.3.	4.3. Analysis of Participants' Financial Behavior & Fintech Perception				
4.4.	Questions Results				
4.5.	Hypotheses Results				
4.6.	Findings Discussion	106			
4.6	1. Questions Discussion	106			
4.6	2. Research Hypotheses Discussion				
4.6	3. Novel Results	113			
5. CO	NCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS	116			
5.1.	Conclusion				
5.2.	Recommendations				
5.3.	Research Limitations and Future Research Directions				
6. TH	ESIS SUMMARY				
APPEN	DICES	125			
Refer	ences	125			
Appe	Appendix 1: Descriptive & Statistical Analysis- Millennials and Gen Z 139				
Apper	Appendix 2: Participants' Financial Behavior & Fintech				
Appendix 3: AMOS Calculations (Millennials & Gen Z) 145					
Appendix 4: Millennials & Gen Z Questionnaire					
Appe	Appendix 5: Banks Interviews Questions				
ACKN	OWLEDGMENT				

List of Tables

Table 1. Fintech Core technologies	30
Table 2. Fintech marketing strategies Millennials vs Gen Z	38
Table 3. The economic impact of real-time payments	43
Table 4. Study results related to E-TAM and Fintech	62
Table 5. Thesis questionnaire scale	67
Table 6. Validity Test	69
Table 7. Skewness & Kurtosis Z-Value	70
Table 8. Kolmogorov-Smirnov and Shapiro-Wilk Test	71
Table 9. Collinearity test/ Millennials & Gen Z	72
Table 10. Reliability test/ Millennials & Gen Z	73
Table 11. Banks in Palestine	77
Table 12. Participants' Social Profile	80
Table 13. Results Comparison between Millennials & Gen Z (1-4)	84
Table 14. Results Comparison between Millennials & Gen Z (2-4)	85
Table 15. Results Comparison between Millennials & Gen Z (3-4)	86
Table 16. Results Comparison between Millennials & Gen Z (4-4)	87
Table 17. Banks Compliance with Fintech Core technologies	89
Table 18. The results of one sample t test for Government Support	93
Table 19. The guidelines for assessing the relationship	94
Table 20. Millennials Correlation coefficients among E-TAM variables	94
Table 21. Gen Z Correlation coefficients among E-TAM variables	95
Table 22. Squared Multiple Correlations (Millennials) H3	97
Table 23. Squared Multiple Correlations (Gen Z) H3	98
Table 24. Regression Weights (Millennials) H3	98
Table 25. Regression Weights (Gen Z) H3	99
Table 26. Squared Multiple Correlations (Millennials) H4	. 100
Table 27. Squared Multiple Correlations (Gen Z) H4	. 100
Table 28. Regression Weights (Millennials) H4	. 101
Table 29. Regression Weights (Gen Z) H4	. 102
Table 30. Squared Multiple Correlations (Millennials) H5	. 103
Table 31. Squared Multiple Correlations (Gen Z) H5	. 103
Table 32. Regression Weights (Millennials) H5	. 103
Table 33. Regression Weights (Gen Z) H5	. 104
Table 34. Summary of Study Hypotheses	. 105

List of Figures

Figure 1. Fintech Evolution 1866–Current	19
Figure 2. Global private investment (VC, PE and M&A) in RegTech 2013–2018	24
Figure 3. Banks comparing themselves against Fintech services providers	28
Figure 4. Mobile Apps share from the global e-commerce volume 2017	
Figure 5. Fintech one third share of banking and payment market	36
Figure 6. Real-time Payment Tripping Point	41
Figure 7. Fintech categories rank by adoption rate (2015-2019)	42
Figure 8 Mobile, Internet & Social Media use in Palestine	51
Figure 9. The Annual Digital Growth- Palestine	
Figure 10. The first modified version of TAM (Davis, Bogozzi and Warshaw, 1989)	54
Figure 11. Context driven TAM	55
Figure 12. Extended TAM 3 with adoption, context and points of intervention	56
Figure 13. SEM Conceptual Model 1-2 (Millennials)	75
Figure 14. SEM Conceptual Model 2-2 (Gen Z)	76

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

Fintech	Financial Technology				
Regtech	Regulation Technology				
ТАМ	Technology Acceptance Model				
E-TAM	Extended Technology Acceptance Model				
TRA	Theory of Reasonable Action				
ТРВ	Theory of Planned Behavior				
SPSS	Statistical Package for the Social Sciences				
AI	Artificial Intelligence				
Millennials	Anyone born between 1981 and 1996				
Gen Z	Anyone born from 1997 onward				
GDP	Gross domestic product				
MENA	Middle East and North Africa				
PU	Perceived Usefulness				
PEU	Perceived Ease of Use				
TR	Trust				
BR	Brand Image				
PR	Perceived Risk				
GS	Government Support				
UI	User Innovativeness				
ATT	Attitude				

INT	Intention				
API	Application Programming Interface				
P2P	Peer-to-peer				
PCI	Payment card industry				
DSS	Data Security Standard				
GDPR	General Data Protection Regulation				
PMA	Palestine Monetary Authority				
WW	World Wide				
CR	Composite Reliability				
AVE	Average Variance Extracted				
R-square	Coefficient of determination				
М	Mean				
SD	Standard Deviation				
AMOS	Analysis of Moment Structures				
UTAUT	Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology				
STP	State Through Processing				
ATM	Automated Teller Machine				
CCDMs	Cash and Cheque Deposit Machines				
CRM	Customer Relationship Management				
TQM	Total Quality Management				
NLP	Natural Language Processing				
FSB	Financial Stability Board				
DTPB	Decomposed Theory of Planned Behavior				

PCA Principal Component Analysis

COVID-19 "CO" Corona, "VI" Virus, "D" Disease, "19" 2019

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Background

Economic development affected by banks as these are the main financial institutions in any country. For many year banks have been the main responsible party that work in collaboration with customers and organizations for most financial transactions (KAUSHAL & GHOSH, 2016). The Palestinian banks are part of this global impact on the developing economy. Banks take part in foreign and local exchange trading and also process payments for all their customers. Moreover, banks have a positive impact on economic growth (BONGINI et al., 2017, p.335).

It is important to investigate the most affected global trends on a bank's performance, since in this century, they face a digital transformation era in financial services. Financial Technology (Fintech) evolution is the main financial evolution in the world. Fintech is integrating Finance, Technology Management and Innovation Management together into one coherent form. (LEONG, 2018). This researcher investigated the significant role of technology and innovation in enhancing the digital transformation in the banking services. My findings show that AI plays a significant role in predicting the customers experience (AI can explain 26.4% of Customers Experience) (ABU DAQAR & SMOUDY, 2019a).

Fintech affects the entire banking industry globally. Studies show that banks have already lost a significant portion of revenues 24% to non-bank Fintech services. These results also show around 88% of traditional banks have dedicated massive efforts and resources to investigate the reasons behind their continued loss of market share in their services (transfers, payments and loans). These recent studies explore the root causes behind global transformation in financial services (STRANDVIK et al., 2018). A recent study has been published for the researcher which indicates a novel result about the role of Fintech in predicting the spread of COVID-19 (the novel coronavirus), this study revealed that the consumer's Fintech behavior before and after COVID-19, and Fintech perception after the outbreak of COVID-19 might predict 52.5% of the variance in COVID-19 spread (ABU DAQAR et al., 2021).

What is important in a research work is to link the concept with facts. Fintech is the new leader within digital transformation, the main driving force of Fintech development. There is vast use and

wide penetration of digital gadgets among companies. They employ these gadgets in tracking the financial management which began in earnest in the 1970s and 1980s (BANKS, 2001). Whereas, the country financial inclusion can be improved and have the great impact through digital innovations. Data analysis and visualization are examples that provide accurate information for a better organization and monetization of underdeveloped communities (GABOR & BROOKS, 2016).

This research work highlights one of the main determinants of Fintech's adaption to information technology and how it affects the financial services and influences the digital transformation cycle in the financial services. TAM (the technology acceptance model) is the most important model because it has an emphasis and focus on the factors that influence users' behavioral attitudes toward accepting and using technology. TAM clarifies how individuals perceive technology and reveal their technological acceptance toward the automated services such as the digital financial services (DAVIS, 1986).

This transformation in the digital structure of global financial services, and the new financial innovations in this industry, leads to create new role players in the market to handle and lead this transformation such as the main role player nowadays which is Fintech. Fintech is considered the main provider of such services to the financial institutions. Moreover, banks are forced to follow this fast pace of Fintech services. Hence, Fintech plays a dual role as a support party that lead this financial development and on the same time it considered a main rival for banks (DAPP 2017,

ROMĀNOVA & KUDINSKA 2016, BENSAR & RODRÍGUEZ 2018).

When talking about bank performance, it is crucial to highlight the current ecosystem of Fintech in the targeted country. This is an indicator for banks about how the main players affect the digital transformation process in their financial services. At the same time, it supports and lead their strategies, plans, and efforts to move forward within this transformation. Fintech ecosystem refers to the most dominant players involved in this context, with the dynamics and functions managed by these players (LEE & SHIN, 2018).

Official reports revealed that around 70% of the Middle East and North Africa (MENA) population have no access to traditional banks. This proportion is varied among different regions (WENDEL, 2018). Given this demographic, Fintech providers have a great opportunity to capture this

unbanked population for their fintech products especially in the emerging markets where traditional banking have excluded much of this population (ZALAN et al., 2017).

Another important player forcing this financial transformation is the significant role played by Millennials and Gen Z in adopting the new Fintech services globally. These generations are the early adopters of Fintech services worldwide. Hence banks need to tailor their services and products to be aligned with these generations needs and expectations (ABU DAQAR et al. 2020, BRODMANN et al. 2018). These generations have the highest level of technology acceptance among all consumers and customers. They are the engine driving the Fintech innovation in the market. Hence Fintech targets this group through different digital tools such as smartphones, computers, etc. (BERRAIES et al. 2017, TAN & LEBY LAU 2016).

1.2. Statement of Problem

Banks continually look to increase revenues and reduce costs in their services, products, procedures, processes and operations. However, what if banks are threatened by the new comers effect on the overall financial services industry globally? They need to tailor all their strategies, plans and work actions to be at least in a survival mode. Their goal then is to not cease any of their basic functions and leave it to other rivals in the market. What if banks failed to follow the fast-paced digital transformation of financial services? How banks will recognize the driving factor which considered the main pressure and stress to move forward and adopt the cutting-edge technologies to enhance their systems, services and processes. This adaption is essential to match the customers' and consumer needs? What is the readiness level of banks to face this digital transformation leading to inevitable threat or opportunity?

These questions then lead to asking how aware are banks to Fintech requirements in the market? Do banks have a clear understanding about the dominant players who lead this transformation in the market? Is there an investigation and intention to adopt Fintech services among Millennials and Gen Z in the market? What opinion do these generations have about Fintech? What is the current Palestinian Fintech ecosystem status?

All these questions need explanation and it needs a thorough investigation about each of these issues. This thesis tries to discover and explore the readiness level of Banks in Palestine to Fintech revolution in the financial industry. This thesis will reveal the readiness level of banks to respond, develop and implement the technological requirements of Fintech's global services; services necessary to meet their customers' needs and demands.

The financial institutions in Palestine require this type of study to lead them toward a better decision-making process; dedicating a high investment budget considered one of the critical decisions. In situations associated with high risk, the problem is how should banks arrive at a decision? This study will provide answers and evidence to support the decision-maker. The goal is to provide the financial institution analytical tools and strategies for a better understanding of risk; and to make good evidence-based decisions, based on the tools.

On the other side, banks especially need the market overview and outlook toward Fintech adoption intention. This study will give them the recent indicators that assist their decisions and plans toward their engagement in the Fintech process.

1.3. Research objectives

The main objective of this thesis is to investigate the adaptive readiness of the Palestinian Banks to Fintech requirements and evolution. It shall measure the Fintech ecosystem in Palestine and explore the Fintech adoption intentions of Millennials and Gen Z.

This main objective is divided into sub objectives as the following:

- To explore the readiness level of Palestinian Banks response to Fintech requirements.
- To explore Fintech's various services attractiveness to the Palestinian Market.
- To explore the usage level of Fintech Services among Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine.
- To identify Millennial and Gen Z intention level for Fintech Services for initialization within Palestine.
- To explore the Government support level for Fintech Services from the perspective of Millennials and Gen Z.
- To test the impact of E-TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Attitude through their response to Fintech services in Palestine.

- To test the impact of the E-TAM dimensions; specifically, the Perceived Usefulness for the adoption of Fintech services in Palestine from the Millennials/Gen Z perspective.
- To test the impact of E-TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Intention to adopt Fintech services in Palestine.

1.4. Research Questions

In this section, the researcher proposes five main questions to express and interpret the study objectives. Addressing these questions will provide a clear and comprehensive analysis of the Fintech ecosystem in Palestine. In addition, the researcher will provide indicators about the current Fintech trends in the market. The first two questions measure the Fintech ecosystem from the banking sector, the main Fintech player in the market. It is crucial to discover their role and their market indicators for Fintech adoption, by taking into account their current customers' base. The fifth question indicates if the dominant Fintech players (Millennials & Gen Z), within the local Fintech ecosystem, has an outlook about the Fintech infrastructure in an indirect way. Moreover, Government support is the significant driver to assist Palestinian banks' to adopt and provide a variety of digital financial services to their current and potential customers.

Q1: "What is the readiness level of the Palestinian Banks for the Fintech requirements in the financial digital transformation?"

Q2: What is the attractiveness level of the Palestinian market for Fintech services?

Q3: What is the usage level of Fintech Services among Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine?

Q4: What is the intention level of Fintech Services usage among Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine?

Q5: What is the Government Support level for Fintech Services in Palestine from the Millennials and Gen Z point of view?

1.5. Research Hypotheses

The researcher formulated five main hypotheses to explore and investigate the intended objectives in the study. The researcher intentionally formulated the First Hypothesis to strengthening the results of the Fifth question. Two different methods of analysis are used to show if the government support has an impact in the current context in Palestine in supporting the Fintech context based on the study respondents' view. Hypothesis 5 emphasizes the results in Q4 and Q4 measuring the intention level of Fintech adoption among the targeted respondents of the study. Also, Hypothesis 5 emphasizes the main dimensions that clarify the adoption intention using the E-TAM model.

Whereas, Hypothesis 3 explains the main key predictors that influence the respondents' attitude toward Fintech adoption. From a different perspective, measuring Fintech attractiveness will highlight the identical image about what predictors have the influence on the respondents' attitude toward Fintech adoption.

Banks provided confidential data that has been revealed for the first time in a study within this discipline about the market attractiveness level. That is, how attractive can Fintech adoption be among the bank's customer base. Furthermore, measuring the current usage level of Fintech services among question 3 respondents will disclose a clear indicator in the market about what are the most influencing factors affecting customer usage. The last three hypotheses investigate the dominant factors behind the customers usage by using the E-TAM model.

H1: Government Support plays a significant role in supporting the Fintech in Palestine (From the Millennials and Gen Z point of view)?

H2: There is a significant relationship in exogenous and endogenous variables in the Fintech Adoption Intention for Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine

H3: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Attitude toward Fintech services in Palestine

H4: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Perceived Usefulness of Fintech Adoption in Palestine from Millennials/Gen Z point of view

H5: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Intention for Fintech services adoption in Palestine

1.6. Significance of the Study

This thesis will provide novel evidence about the banks status in Palestine for Fintech adoption level and it also creates a new understanding for Banks Readiness Measure for Fintech Adoption and will measure and explore the Fintech adoption intention by Millennials and Gen Z in the Palestinian market. It describes a local comparison between these two generations and also a global comparison. Thus, providing a realistic indicator for banks regarding the recent intention behavior

of these generations; and also, for banks to be alerted to the innovative requirements needed by these generations.

In addition, this thesis reveals the types of Fintech services that are needed, ideal, and most favorable with consumers/customers' needs in the market. It then leads banks toward the best strategies for developing their services to meet the current and the future needs. The novelty of this research work is that is provides the first Fintech overview about the needs, status and direction for both banks and Fintech companies.

This thesis shows the main opportunities and threats for both banks and Fintech companies to exploit according to the first investigation work in Palestine in this context; where Fintech has the first new presence in Palestine.

The importance of this thesis lies in the unveiling of the benchmark criteria for Banks about their compliance to Fintech services requirements, the researcher wants to highlight one of the most critical factor in this benchmark which is the use of AI in banks systems and services, it has been noted that the majority have no AI presence in their systems; it indicates that they stress their investments in other Business Intelligence systems which required human interfere which raise the cost in their processes as these business intelligence systems required experts in this domain which make it a complex task to employ other technologies as AI in their systems. The researcher also explores, in his Fintech requirements model (banks readiness level), the importance and benefits of employing AI in banks financial systems.

2. LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1. What is Fintech?

Fintech is a cross-disciplinary topic that integrates Finance, Technology Management, and Innovation Management together (LEONG, 2018). New financial technologies or fintech have provided for a new capacity to do business. New fintech innovations have built from the foundation of global payment rails, and these have been especially popular in areas where banks do not have an established consumer base.

For the investor, it is worth noting that only about 69% of the world's population have a bank account, and of these, many cannot use digital currency to make online purchases as they lack access to credit cards or digital payment from their bank, but more than 58% of the world's population is online, and the growth rate for the online user increase is even greater than the increase in the proportion of the global population with a bank account (BBC, 2020; GLOBALFINDEX, 2017; STATISTA, 2020).

Other fintech innovations include crowdfunding applications to bypass banks and big investors and raise money, like Kickstarter, Indiegogo, Patreon, and GoFundMe, cryptocurrency based on blockchain technology like Bitcoin and Ethereum, mobile payments and banking, support applications for investments and trading, and instant insurance coverage. Fintech attracts so much investment, and so much attention, that even central banks are looking into the development of a cryptocurrency (BECH & GARRATT, 2020).

It merits to investigate the evolution of Fintech, how it developed, the period, the context, and the geographic region; Figure 1 shows the evolution of Fintech and how it classified from the beginning of 1866 until now.



Figure 1. Fintech Evolution 1866–Current

Source: Researche'r Own Construction based on ARNER (2016, p.7)

Figure 1 shows the Fintech evolution in three main period stages, (1866-1967, 1967-2008, 2008current time). Fintech has been categorized into three main areas Fintech 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, and Fintech 3.5, each area has its characteristics; for example, Fintech 1.0 was emphasized in Infrastructure and Computerization, while Fintech 2.0 on the Internet and the shift took place in digitalization. Moreover, Fintech 3.0 and 3.5 focused on mobile, start-ups, and new entrants, the shifts in these two periods were after the financial crisis 2008, and the evolution of smartphones. Notably, Fintech 3.5 appeared in the developing and the emerging markets in the world compared with the other Fintech areas.

2.1.1. Anxieties and fintech

There is a great deal of concern about fintech in the financial world. As NAVARETTI et al. (2018) describe, change is not welcomed in the financial world, where certainty and stability are prized. There is further the idea of increased competition, and the anxiety concerning whether banks can meet the challenge (NAVARETTI et al., 2018). To that end, two possible outcomes are envisioned with the continued growth of fintech; either an increase in healthy competition withholds all firms in the market to a higher standard with more value to stakeholders, or the increase of instability, disruption, and potential displacement of the function of the banks (NAVARETTI et al., 2018). On one hand, fintech products are more efficient, and easier to use than regular banking products, and this results in an increased user base, but on the other hand, fintech is only doing what banks do, but with greater attention to acceptance and there is no real barrier to banks adopting such innovations themselves (NAVARETTI et al., 2018).

The future of financial services in the 21 century is a little bit hard to be predicted among all the challenges that affect the development of these services; some of these challenges are the unpredicting stability in the world, once you are unable to predict or maintain part of stability other parties will have this opportunity to exploit these situations to compete especially in the financial services, Fintech became one of the dominant players in the financial industry to exploit the digital transformation and the innovation in the financial services; many factors helped these companies to have this dominant role which is; high mobile penetration rate, lower financial inclusion ratios in many countries worldwide, the role of Millennials and Gen Z, and the availability of internet access (RABIN, 2019).

2.1.2. The fintech disruption and transformation

Fintech takes advantage of the most basic aspect of all financial transactions- that they are essentially no more than shared information (BUSSMANN, 2017). Provided that agreements can be negotiated in relation to that exchange which are agree to within the financial ecosystem, the shared information becomes a transaction (BUSSMANN, 2017). In this way, fintech can leverage new efficiencies and powerful processes by automating that which is allowed within any agreement to transact. In some cases that ecosystem is the global financial system; in other cases, they are new cryptocurrency bound systems which require further fintech for exchange between

traditional and emerging financial systems. One major impact of the growing influence of fintech was a power shift, as well as increased information (and ways to visualize it) to drive further fintech innovation (BASOLE & PATEL, 2018).

The focus of Fintech is the rapid provision of financial services directly to consumers, and this direct relationship has supported new consumer capacity and empowerment. It is in this way that fintech has been driving the transformation of the industry, and banking in particular.

Four years ago, the investment in fintech was already approaching \$20 billion, with American sources of investment being the largest stake (FEDERALRESERVE, 2020). The level of investment in Fintech has reached staggering proportions, but it can be expected that after an initial saturation there will be a less volatile investment environment.

2.1.3. Digital transformation and fintech

The digital transformation was the major driving force behind the development of fintech. The growing use of computers and digital tracking for the financial management of companies began in earnest in the 1970s and 1980s (BANKS, 2001). Customers Relationship Management (CRM) is one of the most efficient digital transformation tools that is aligned with consumer behavior; ABU DAQAR & SMOUDY (2019b) found that consumer buying behavior has the most influencing impact that could predict the variance in CRM by 75.75%, it indicates that the consumer behavior has the most powerful tool to alert banks and Fintech companies to make and adjust their systems to discover the trended and potential consumers directions.

The researcher investigated also in other three studies the impact of CRM on customers satisfaction and loyalty the findings revealed that CRM especially the quality of service and the system integration of the CRM could predict 64.2% of customers satisfaction, while CRM could predict 48.2% of the customers' long-term loyalty in the banking sector (IRIQAT & ABU DAQAR, 2017a; IRIQAT & ABU DAQAR, 2017b, IRIQAT & ABU DAQAR, 2018).

Digital financial inclusion can be supported and increased through further digital innovation, such as the data analysis and visualization that provides information from digital footprints in terms of better organization and monetization of underdeveloped communities (GABOR & BROOKS, 2016). Such tools, for example, can help to use data and profiling to essentially generate assets

through financial system transactions (GABOR & BROOKS, 2016). This could be in the form of valuing and therefore recognizing as equity small businesses, or traditionally held lands that allow individuals, households, and entire communities to leverage new opportunities through loans or credit.

The transformation in the digital structure of the financial services in the world, the innovations in this sector opened a new chapter for the new players in the market to drive this transformation as Fintech to provide such services for the financial institutions as banks; because banks need to follow this fast innovation procedure in the financial services, so fintech will lead banks and helped them to move forward this transformation (DAPP, 2017). According to Finextra study in 2019 recent report; they found that banks who invested heavily to digitize their financial services had to obtain higher profit, this profit comes from cost saving rather than the increase in services and banks revenues (FINEXTRA, 2019).

PayPal

One of the first non-bank fintech products to gain global popularity was PayPal. While it is essentially a payment rail, it also provides integrated storage, currency exchange, receipt of payments, and the ability to pay others either on e-commerce sites or in some jurisdictions in person (STRANDVIK et al., 2018). Consider the world market that was facilitated on eBay using PayPal. An individual located in South America could pay directly a retailer in China for a good that was unavailable to them locally, possibly by converting local currency into US dollars on PayPal, and then using American currency to pay for the sale.

The Chinese retailer would receive the funds, which would be converted into yuan when deposited to a local bank. The process would be nearly instantaneous, with no complications due to currency exchange or payment submission. In fact, it would all be tracked within the eBay system. This has greatly facilitated world micro commerce in the form of being paid for work or goods, however there is one catch. In order to use the currency outside of online platforms, it is necessary to actually withdraw the funds to a traditional bank. PayPal terms require bank funds to be deposited in the currency of the residence of the user, and this requires verification.

These withdrawals to bank accounts are all based on the post-processing clearance systems, and they are not instant. In most countries, it takes two to three days for the funds to be processed and

unavailable. It is more difficult for individuals in some countries than others. For example, because of lack of agreements between PayPal and banks in the Caribbean, PayPal users in nations without an agreement such as Jamaica must wait 90 days for the processing of a check from PayPal, which is then sent, received, and deposited by the user in their traditional Jamaican bank account, for a total processing time of close to four months (PAYPAL, 2020b). Fintech has not yet solved all of the problems that face banking customers, and the least developed regions also have the least access to the benefits and advantages of fintech, in many cases.

2.1.4. RegTech (Regulation technology)

Regulation technology or RegTech refers to new technological processes and systems to enhance compliance within the financial systems generally, and specific technologies for banking security (ARNER et al., 2016). Regtech is a form of fintech however it is directed at business rather than consumers, as a service to both traditional and fintech firms that require them (ARNER et al., 2016). These include standalone, ongoing, and cloud-based processes to, for example, deter, prevent, and identity criminal and money laundering activity and for customer verification (ARNER et al., 2016). Regtech must of course be separated from the idea of the regulation of fintech, as these are not the same, although it can be assumed that overlap can occur.

RegTech is the main player in the financial industry nowadays which is growing at a fast pace; the main aim of these RegTech companies to reduce the compliance cost for Banks and Fintech companies, it works to automate the information and processes for better compliance with the financial regulations, as a result of RegTech functions it has a positive impact on financial inclusion (GURUNG & PERLMAN, 2018). GARDNER (2018) defined RegTech as pure technology that highlights the regulation challenges faced by the financial service providers; where these challenges categorized in the following categories as the following:

- Monitoring Challenges.
- Compliance & Reporting Obligations.

RegTech relies on automation processes and machine learning procedures to reduce the financial institution costs, efforts, and time.

RegTech became a business that financial institution can play this rule by investing in this industry to help other financial institutions to comply with regulations and being a pioneer in this industry if it an in-house development business, figure 2 shows the investment in RegTech worldwide.



Figure 2. Global private investment (VC, PE and M&A) in RegTech 2013–2018 Source: POLLARI & RUDDENKLAU (2019, p.10)

2.1.5. Objectives in the adoption of Fintech by banks

Banks are also users and adopters of Fintech. It was the banks that laid the groundwork for digital currency or money as information, first with credit cards and then with debit cards that provided the same services directly from a bank account. The main purpose of the development of fintech by banks is to improve user experiences while increasing banking efficiency. The self-service aspects of fintech, for example, require less administration and net a lower transaction cost for the banks.

ROMĀNOVA & KUDINSKA (2016) discussed in their study that Fintech is the main driver for banks to improve and enhance their financial services to meet their customers' needs according to the rapid change in technology, Fintech is an integral part in the banking industry, Fintech drive this competition in the market that forced banks to collaborate with them to enhance their services. On the other part, the development of the banking products required providing information about these products in order to develop it accordingly, so banks will provide these information's to the fintech providers to accomplish these tasks (ROMĀNOVA & KUDINSKA, 2016).

A recent report for the World Bank Group (PUBDOCS.WORLDBANK, 2019a), shows that Fintech has a significant role to boost the economic growth and increase the financial inclusion, Fintech could help and lead banks to achieve more benefits and growth through the collaboration between these two financial giants in the market.

Banks started to establish M&A (merger & Acquisition) strategies to keep in the pace of this rapid change in the financial technology industry, to keep their services updated and meet the customers' needs in the market; where customers have less reliance on using cash in their financial transactions (PALANDRANI, 2019).

2.1.6. Fintech and banks: opportunity or threat?

For banks, it would appear that fintech is both an opportunity and a threat. Banks have already lost an estimated 24% of revenues to non-bank fintech services and products 88% of traditional banks are extremely concerned about continued loss of market share in services such as transfers, payments, and loans (STRANDVIK et al., 2018). As 82% have planned to collaborate, partner, or invest in fintech initiatives, with 45% of traditional banks already having begun at least one collaborative project (STRANDVIK et al., 2018).

ROMĀNOVA & KUDINSKA (2016) shows that Fintech is a threat to banks; there are real indicators show that banks are losing part of their market share to Fintech competitors in the market. BENSAR & RODRÍGUEZ (2018) argue that fintech is a threat to banks as they are not able to provide culturally appropriate services, and that for Islamic fintech, from online zakat and waqf to smart contracts and cryptocurrency, Muslims concerned about non-appropriate banking are able to turn to these alternatives. In general, banking and the financial industries were formed on Western cultural values, and these create great impediments to the value proposition expected in Muslim majority areas such as Palestine.

A recent study by JUNGER & MIETZNER (2019, p.1) investigated about the German households adoption of Fintech services; the results show that 31% of banks users have an intention to move to Fintech providers. Actually, these current studies gave banks a clear indicator from their customers' point of view about their intention and their ability to switch to other Fintech providers to meet and satisfy their needs.

WANG et al. (2018) revealed that Fintech has a significant positive impact on banks' performance in terms of cost reduction, service efficiency, more focus on the customer-oriented view. Fintech has an important role in enhancing the small banks' credit supply; it improves the banks' credit capability to grant the SME's with the required fund (SHENG, 2020). Banks have realized that Fintech is a key pillar in innovation in the financial services; Fintech helps in accelerating the banks' innovation to digitize their financial services (DRASCH et al., 2018).

2.1.7. Banks readiness to Fintech services

The value that consumers obtain from the firms with internet and technology focus is increasing rapidly, banks consumers found that banking services still slow and less useful comparing with Fintech services that many companies provided in the market; this leads a high pressure and stress at the banking industry to review their strategies and their services to be aligned with the fast use of digital devices as mobiles and also in the same side to meet the consumers' needs. Banks' top management recognized that they need to push the front office services and functions into digital services; this push mainly derived from the consumers' needs; so, banks management shift 92% of their front office investments into digital forms (HEFFNER, 2019).

HEFFNER (2019) shows in his report that 60% of customers' negative feedback comes from the banks' back-offices. Banks must have the digital-oriented view; it is like a roadmap for banks how to develop their internal capabilities into a digital view that gather all the banks' functions that are responsible to provide a digital experience to customer through different services channels. It gave banks an indicator to improve their internal capabilities, strategies, investment plans and their plans to digitize your services to make sure that they will provide services which gain higher customer satisfaction and to obtain higher customer experience in these services.

Banks need to digitalize their own capabilities in order to help them to replace their traditional services delivery methods from product-centered or geographic services into customer-centric

services based on digital services provided to customers through digital channels (for example mobile access). The main driver for fintech adoption by banks is the increasing reliance on technology; it is the main driver that banks have been evaluated in this regard to check their ability and their readiness for Fintech adoption (POLLARI & RUDDENKLAU, 2019). The Financial Stability Board (FSB) who is involved and specialized in the financial sectors policies and supervision revealed in his study (2017) that there are three main major drivers for Fintech innovation that drive the digital financial services into a new era which create great pressure on banks to re-innovate their services into a digital-based service that meets the customers' needs, these three drivers as the following (FSB.ORG, 2017):

- The global shift in customers' expectations and the new demanding factors associated with this shift.
- The evolving technology.
- The fast change in the financial regulations and market structure.

Figure 3 shows an international survey for the banking industry to compare themselves with the Fintech services providers in the world, this study is an important study to compare the Palestinian banks place among the international banking industry, 51% said that they are in parallel with Fintech providers while 29% said they are behind the competitors, so it is a clear indicator that banks are in threat to cope with the fast innovation in financial services and follow the competitors (ASSETS.KPMG, 2017). The researcher took the technological base to compare the banks' readiness as an internal capacity. This study handled around 160 financial institutions as a sample size in their survey disturbed in 36 countries around the World.



Figure 3. Banks comparing themselves against Fintech services providers

Source: ASSETS.KPMG (2017, p.7)

PWC (PricewaterhouseCoopers) (2016) in their global fintech survey revealed a significant result; these results gave a pure indicator about the banking industry; 76% of bank respondents have a fear that their businesses at risk to Fintech companies, moreover, 42% of banks joined a partnership with these Fintech companies to improve their financial services. Figure 4 illustrates the impact of technology on the global e-commerce system in the world; the main players in this transition are the evolution of mobile apps due to the rapid phone adoption in the world, the figure indicated that mobile apps occupy 30% of this impact on e-commerce volume.





Source: MCKINSEY Adopted from GCI Analytics (2018, p.7)

The researcher did deep interviews with the pioneer banks in Palestine in Fintech services adoption, besides an intensive interview with the Palestinian Monetary Authority which is the government body who is responsible for the banking system in Palestine; actually, the interviews were concentrated and focused on the technological capabilities of these banks to Fintech services adoption, they have been evaluated to six major Fintech digital capabilities (requirements); these capabilities are the major Fintech technical requirements that banks need to adopt and enhance their internal capacities and competencies in order to provide such innovated and digital-base services to banks customers. The detailed interviews are attached in the Appendices section, Appendix 2.

The researcher adopts the following technological framework (Table 1) which is the main evaluation form for the banks in order to evaluate their compliance, adoption, and usage of financial technology in their services. This framework comes from the main Fintech developers in the world, it has been gathered to make a holistic framework that covers all the requirements for the digital transition in the financial services in the banking industry that deliver competitive Fintech services from the banks' side that meets the customers' needs and to keep them in the competition in the market side by side with the Fintech competitors.

	Fintech Core Technology Categories					
	1. Remittances & Payment	2. Big Data & Artificial Intelligence	3. Digital Banking	4. Lending & Alternative Financing	5. Security & Risk Manageme nt	6. Blockchain Services
Fintech Technology Sub-Categories	1.1 Omnichannel payment	2.1 Automated support	3.1 Personal Financial Management	4.1 Lending Marketplaces	5.1 PCI & DSS	6.1 Process Automation
	1.2 Money Transfer	2.2 Predictive Analytics	3.2 Onboarding New Customers	4.2 Loan Comparison Solutions	5.2 GDPR	6.2 P2P transactions
	1.3 API Development	2.3 Financial Data Management	3.3 Digitalization of Banking	4.3 Supply Chain Financing	5.3 Security Testing	6.3 Supply Chain Management
	1.4 Third-party integration	2.4 Data-driven management decision	3.4 Fraud and Security	4.4 Invoice-based Financing	5.4 Fraud Detection	6.4 Asset Tokenization
	1.5. Mobile Payments	2.5 Fraud Detection	3.5 Banking Data Aggregation APIs	4.5 Fund Management	5.5 Advanced Risk System	6.5 Data Access Decentralizatio n
	1.6 Online payment	2.6 AI for Back Office	3.6 Anti-money Laundering			6.6 Digital Identity

Table 1. Fintech Core technologies

Source: Author's own construction

Table 1 explains the main categories as technology-based requirements to adopt the Fintech services requirements in the banks' systems, it is the technological infrastructure required to provide customers with the competitive Fintech services along with the requirements of the legal system categorized in (Security & Risk Management requirements); the Fintech developers are able to help banks to meet the international legal requirements in order to obtain the financial services license; they will be able to provide these services after the compliance tests done by the authorized financial control organization in the country.

The researcher derived the above model mentioned in table 1 from different Fintech articles, books and Fintech official services, the majority of Fintech adoption services are listed in this table, this

is the novelty of this research work, as it is was a hard task to find an adoption model of Fintech services, the author constructed this model to be as a model-based Fintech services to measure the banks readiness to each category in this model.

The researcher will provide a brief about each category mentioned in table 1, these categories as the following:

- A. Remittances & Payment (Online Payments system): Local payment gateway that integrate the global payments platforms into an individual (the bank) e-commerce site.
- Omnichannel payment: One contract, one integration, and one back office to keep track of payments via all your online and POS sales channels, "Omnichannel is a multichannel approach to collecting payments that offer customers the ability to pay their bills via their preferred payment channel (i.e., online, IVR, mobile, in the front office, etc.) When customers can make payments the way they want, they're more likely to pay" (INSTAMED 2020, BHISHEK et al. 2020, LIU et al. 2017).
- Money Transfer: Send and Receive money online securely and reliably (GLOBALFINDEX 2017, GOMBER et al. 2018, p.234).
- API Development: Improving the banks' digital offerings through third-party applications and services, "An application programming interface, enables a software program to interact with other software" (REPLICON, 2020). API means an interface that helps banks to connect their banking software's with a local or international broker to get the benefit from real-time pricing and placing trades (BRODSKY & OAKES 2017, ZACHARIADIS & OZCAN 2017).
- Third-party integration: The bank will Integrate its payment solutions with a trustful service provider to enable users practicing their experiences that they are familiar in this regard (GOMBER et al., 2018, p.245).
- Mobile Payments: User-friendly solutions to allow customers to pay for goods and services with a mobile app (GOMBER et al. 2018, p.229, ROLFE 2013).
- Online payment: Connecting the banking solutions to online payment options to meet the demand for automated online services (LEE & CHIN, 2018, p.37).

- B. Big Data & AI (Artificial Intelligence) Services: Produce real-time business reporting, collect data from various resources, manage this data, and get insight for future decisions.
- Automated support: Automate communication with customers via AI, chatbots, and NLP (Natural Language Processing) (KRAYEWSKI, 2020).
- Predictive Analytics: Forecast outcomes, and avoid unexpected financial losses, neural networks and deep learning and big data technologies (GIUDICI et al., 2019).
- Financial Data Management: Easily understandable and detailed reporting of the banks financial data (LI & MARINČ, 2018, p.32).
- Data-driven management decision: Build solid ground for the ban'k further actions by applying collected data to actual decision-making processes (KERSTING, 2018; CONSTANTIOU & KALLINIKOS, 2015, p.45).
- Fraud Detection: Using AI to find vulnerabilities and detect potential threats for improved security of banks' financial operations and user data (QI & XIAO, 2018; GIUDICI, 2018).
- AI for Back Office: Monitoring Backlogs, manage processes, and increase efficiency of the bank's workflow and AI has the capacity to predict the consumers' behavior by analyzing their experience (ABU DAQAR & SMOUDY, 2019a; INTEL, 2020).

C. Digital Banking: Digitalizing services, online banking, mobile banking, and contactless payment (credit cards, mobile payment).

- Individual Financial Management: This feature helps individuals to manage their assets in the bank, such as; money investment, expenses control, and budget management (WINNEFELD & PERMANTIER, 2017).
- Onboarding New Customers: Make smooth user flow at every touchpoint with the banking services, and welcome the new customers with two clicks, not with a bunch of papers (GROVER, 2020; DELOITTE, 2020b).
- Digitalization of Banking: Embedding the digital technologies into the bank services in order to speed up the individuals and the operations processes, making customers transactions more transparent, and ensuring the security of the customers' data (GOMBER et al. 2017, p.537, WINNEFELD & PERMANTIER 2017).

- Fraud and Security: Establishing the digital security systems in the banking systems and testing the bank services and systems against any harmful and expected vulnerabilities (GOMBER et al., 2017, p.562).
- Banking Data Aggregation APIs: The bank will integrate its solutions by using APIs in order to avoid the time consumable operations to collect the customers and the other data to access the required services (MEDIUM 2020, BBVAOpen4U 2020).
- Anti-money Laundering: Check the transparency and legitimacy of the bank money sources that users operate with while using its services (GOMBER et al., 2017, p.566).
- D. Lending and Alternative Financing: Develop lending platforms, that clients can easily customize, integrate, and extend. Using these platforms, borrowers can get money quickly and effortlessly, they can focus on their businesses instead of looking for funds. Helping clients to connect their lending platforms with banks to streamline financing for end customers.
- Lending Marketplaces: Creating a lending solution that provides credit score services and connect borrowers with banks (JAGTIANI & LEMIEUX 2019, FENWICK et al. 2017).
- Loan Comparison Solutions: Build loan scoring components and responsive borrowercentric web portals (SEWELL, 2020).
- Supply Chain Financing: Develop an independent marketplace for asset-based financing, optimize cast-to-cash funding, and affordable short-term investment (FENWICK et al. 2017, LEE et al. 2019).
- Invoice-based Financing: Solution for improved cash flow, in-advanced payments to employees and suppliers, and fast investments (HORACIO, 2019).
- Fund Management: Creating solutions to manage investments of businesses and financial institutions in a single, easily accessible place (ALTEXSOFT, 2020).
- E. Security & Risk Management: Risk management security audits for global payment provides. Streamline certificate processes and meet specific regulatory standards. Generating reports on all collected personal data of users and implement automated features to remove data upon user's request. Proven test practices to detect and fix

bugs in software's that often causes vulnerabilities that can be exploited to commit fraud.

- PCI DSS Compliance: Ensure payment solution complies with the global security standards to provide financial services to a wider audience (TASSEV, 2020; EPIXELSOFT, 2020).
- GDPR Compliance: Meeting all requirements regarding personal data privacy and automate users' requests for processing of their data (DELOITTE, 2020a; PYMNTS, 2020).
- Security Testing: Confirming that Banks software solutions are free of architectural bugs or any potential vulnerabilities (ELSON, 2020; VENTURELAB, 2020).
- Fraud Detection: Secure the bank solution with high-quality code and special measures for preventing unauthorized access to user's data and valuable assets (MOON & KIM, 2017).
- Code Review and Audit: Find and fix bugs in the banks' software's and solutions at every stage of the development process (WEBCACHE, 2020).
- Advanced Risk System: Calculating all potential risks for the bank and its customers to come up with mutually beneficial solutions for risk management in security operations (GIUDICI, 2018).
- F. Blockchain Services: Data management and network infrastructure development. Process automation and value-driven solutions.
- Process Automation: Achieve greater operational efficiency and eliminate redundant processes and bureaucracy with fully automated and regulated smart contracts (DU et al., 2019).
- P2P transactions: Guarantee secure and transparent transactions through peer-to-peer network that requires no third party to process and verify agreements (CAI, 2018; WAMBA et al., 2019).
- Supply Chain Management: Ensure secure, transparent, and easily manageable logistics and improve cash flow with real-time data recording and sharing (KSHETRI, 2018).
- Asset Tokenization: Enhance the liquidity of the bank business assets, converting them into tokens in line with RegTech trends and enabling smooth on-chain settlement (FERNANDEZ-HERRAIZ et al. 2020, BLÉMUS & GUEGAN 2020).

- Data Access Decentralization: Support data access control and security to interoperate with global networks without any risks of unauthorized data changes or violations (EYAL 2017, WAMBA et al. 2019).
- Digital Identity: Increase mobility, controlling both corporate and personal data with a secure digital ID that provides access to financial records (WAMBA et al. 2019, PUSCHMANN 2017, ARNER et al. 2020).

2.2. The growing dominance of fintech

2.2.1. Fintech and banks in competition

Fintech services are typically competing with banks, at least those products that allow for currency storage and payment functionality. There are far more business models than this, however the typical remittance or exchange for a fee (such as Xoom or Western Union online services), investment holding and trading, payment facilitation, insurance and self-service, and receiving funds. The main opportunity for fintech products is the capture the markets of emerging markets where the traditional banking practices have excluded much of the population (ZALAN et al., 2017). In the Middle East, it has been estimated that about 70% of the population is without banking access, and this appears to hold true in Palestine (WENDEL, 2018). Many people who do have bank accounts also use fintech, and in some cases, Fintech requires a bank account for full usages, such as the PayPal e-wallet. Figure 5 shows that Fintech revenue share compared with the traditional financial services players, in UK Fintech occupies the highest share.

BANKING & PAYMENTS MARKET REVENUES, 2016



Incumbent Players New Players % Revenue Captured by New Players

Figure 5. Fintech's one third share of banking and payment market

Source: FINTECHNEWS (2018)

Note: New Players are the Fintech competitors

2.2.2. The threat of FinTech and its impact on customer expectations towards banking services

In this section the researcher will discuss the customers view toward the traditional banks' services and how Fintech affects their financial behavior, the growing dominance of young customers in the world and the technology that facilitate the digital financial access were the main drivers for Fintech companies to attract and provide Fintech services aligned with their needs.

For example, Millennials (Born 1980-2000) making up around a quarter of the world's population (SACHDEV, 2019). This customer segment is a huge segment that has a significant impact on Banks, and how it shapes the financial services, this segment of customers is alerted to technology and how Fintech companies attract them to use their services. A research handled by ENVISIONIT (ENVISIONIT, 2018) shows that 68% of Millennials believe that the way that we access money will be changed during the next five years, 70% said during these five years the payment methods will be changed, while the most important thing 73% of the study population agreed that they are
more receptive to the Fintech services which are provided from giant technology companies worldwide. The critical point which is a threat to the banks that 33% of them believe that banks will cease to exist during this period (5 years).

Fintech plays a major role to drive the financial industry into a different approach, it affects the customers' behavior through its services, the results of these approaches through the adoption of these services; Fintech reduced the financial fee payments, Millennials and Gen Z save a portion of money through their credit cards usage and abandoning the excess of over-drafting; and on the other side they shift part of their spending to other entertainments resources (CARLIN et al., 2017).

2.2.3. The new consumer generations

While Millennials and Generation Z get all of the attention, it was Generation X, a small population between the baby boomers and the Millennials who were the early adopters of fintech and digital banking services with the use of bank cards and ATMs (TULGAN, 2000). The Millennials, as a large cohort, were raised with the idea that such digital uses of currency and instant self-serve transactions were normal, Millennials are anyone born between 1981 and 1996, while Gen Z are referred as anyone born from 1997 onward (DIMOCK, 2019). Fintech is not an innovation within this mindset, but rather a given and an expectation; from this perspective, traditional banks with poor value chains are simply seen as outdated and irrelevant (BRODMANN et al., 2018). There is in general a higher level of technology acceptance and fintech adoption among Millennials and Generations Z in comparison to the Baby Boomer cohort, which has a much lower trust as well as less comfort with online commerce and banking (BERRAIES et al. 2017, TAN & LEBY LAU 2016).

2.2.3.1. Millennials & Gen Z in Fintech Adoption

This thesis focused on the role of Millennials and Gen Z in Fintech adoption because these generations are the majority of Fintech users. CHANG et al. (2016) investigated in their study that the majority who adopt and use Fintech services are the Millennials unlike their parents which are the main bank customer segment. On the other side; Millennials considered with lower financial capability compared with their parents and old age customer segments; so, Fintech and Banks competing for each other to obtain and acquire this huge segment and provide them with suitable

financial services fit with their needs, the authors used TAM model in achieving these results (HU et al., 2019).

Another study by CARLIN et al. (2017) investigated about the factors associated with Millennials' Fintech adoption intention and the results show that Millennials' financial knowledge and awareness, and the life expectancy were the main factors that influence the Fintech adoption intention behavior.

According to SACHDEV (2019), he found that Millennials have a high interest to use technology in their lives; it means for Banks and Fintech companies that they have to promote their services in a digital form, for example, mobile, internet, etc. Moreover, he found that Millennials don't trust banks compared with other generations as Gen Z (Born from 1997), they prefer the traditional banking services (traditional financial services). One of the most important results in his study is that Millennials are the most debt laden generation comparing with other generations. In this study, there is a comparison between the marketing strategies used to reach both generations through Fintech services (Millennials and Gen Z), this comparison based on their financial behavior as mentioned earlier. Table 2 discusses the different marketing strategies with both generations.

Table 2	. Fintech	marketing	strategies	Millenni	als vs	Gen	Z
I able 2	• I mitten	marneting	strategies	17 IIII CIIIII		oun	_

Generation		Marketing Strategy	
Millennials	Don't Judge	Being Responsive and Quick Response actions	Make it an easy process
Gen Z	Providing Multi-Faceted Approach	Social Savvy	Keeping things real

Source: Author's Own Construction based on SACHDEV (2019)

A recent study shows that the trust factor is significantly associated with the perceived usefulness in adopting the Fintech services among the Gen Z and Millennials, whereas the perceived risk has no influence or an impact on Fintech adoption among these generations, moreover, it has no influence on their attitudes (MEYLIANA et al., 2019, p.31). BOONSIRITOMACHAI & PITCHAYADEJANANT (2017) investigated about the factors that affect the Millennials mobile banking adoption using TAM UTAUT, the results show that Hedonic motivation was the most important dimension that affects the Millennials Fintech adoption, while security has a negative relationship with this dimension. Furthermore, JIWASIDDI et al. (2019) found that these four factors which are (brand image, trust, perceived usefulness, and perceived ease of use) significantly influencing the Millennials' attitude to adopt Fintech services. Moreover, KIM et al. (2016) found in their studies that promotion plays a significant role in Fintech adoption, promotion is a critical factor that positively affects the consumers' Fintech adoption.

2.2.4. Artificial intelligence and big data in the Financial industry

Artificial intelligence and big data have been disruptive in all sectors and industries because of their ability to analyze and provide results rapidly that go beyond the capacity of a single human analyst. ABU DAQAR & SMOUDY (2019a) explored the impact of AI on Customers Experience, the study discloses that AI has a significant predicting role to interpret the variance of customers' experience by 26.4%.

AI and Big Data have an important role in labor savings. Moreover, they have greater capacity and level of insight. Artificial intelligence systems include chatbots for guiding users, robo-advisors that track and providing feedback on wealth management, and pre-approval systems. Customers have an intention to adopt AI-based services in Fintech, the attitude of customers is the key indicator shows that customers have the intention to adopt these services, and also the perceived usefulness has an influence on adoption especially robo-advisor services (BELANCHE et al., 2019). AI and big data have a great impact on the financial industry, it drives the industry into a new age of intelligence, customers will be able to access the new generation of financial services, AI & big data will be able to provide the following (MARUTITECH, 2020):

- Accurate decision making.
- Automated customer support.
- Fraud detection and claim management.
- Insurance management
- Automated virtual financial assistant
- Predictive analysis in the provided services
- Wealth management for all customers segments

There are three main categories that AI and Big Data transformed the banking services, customers support, and the banks' front office; around 40% of Millennials don't use the traditional banking services, they are moved into the digital world, chatbots and voice assistant have been introduced to meet the customers' needs, the second category which is Fraud Detection; the bank will be able to detect any fraud cases that are hidden and may face the banks at any time, through the use of AI and Big Data the bank will be able to deal with these obstacles, the last category which is Lending and Risk Management; Banks will be able to assess the risk associated with the customers' operations and services along with the lending options provided for these customers (GOSSETT, 2020).

2.2.5. Real-time payment

The real-time gross settlement system is a specialized system for credit transfer at the moment between institutions that are part of that system. This is the system that drives finance, but in fact debit, credit card, and similar forms of payment are not part of that system and these transactions appear in real-time, but are actually cleared using post-trade processing systems. These systems simply tally up what is owed or collect what is due based on a pre-negotiated agreement on the terms of a financial channel or relationship.

These agreements and alliances are the real drivers of fintech. In fact, real-time payments have a significant impact on the banks' financial services; the payments became simple and easy to access worldwide; it affects the consumers' behavior to easy switch from banks, commercial banks are the pioneers to provide a global payment system for their clients that corporate banks, these systems help payments to be more transparent with higher efficiency level, in the UK the systems had been tested and it scores around 100% of efficiency level through this approach STP (State Through Processing) (BERTRAND, 2020).

One of the key challenges that affect the banks performance is the current IT systems; these systems are not up-to-date to meet the current customers' requests to access the current new real-time payments systems, another key issue which is the low level of customers trust in banks, it is a negative indicator for banks; it requires their high attention to adopt the latest cutting-edge technology to acquire the required IT infrastructure to adopt these systems, but conversely around 80% mobile users believe that the banks apps are the most trustful apps (INGWB, 2020).

KODITHUWAKKU (2018) investigated about the impact of e-banking services on customers satisfaction, the results show that there is a significant positive correlation between e-transactions such as e-payments and customers satisfaction. Another study by ROOZBAHANI et al. (2015) found that there is a significant positive impact of e-payment tools and customers satisfaction in the banking sector. Real-time payments considered one of the most dominant categories in Fintech adoption, the main drivers of this adoption as these drivers are the requirement to push the use of real-time payments; Technology is the main driver as the mobile adoption rate is too high among different countries worldwide which is the main responsible technological factor that affects the access of real-time payments, figure 6 explain the vast shift in real-time payment in the world (Real-time payments are changing the reality of payments. Real-time payments are changing the reality of payments.



Figure 6. Real-time Payment Tripping Point

Source: DELOITTE (2015, p.6)

Figure 6 shows the main drivers that shift the real-time payment into a new era, and it drives the industry into a new chapter of payment; it became the first rank category in Fintech adoption internationally.

The recent EY report for 2019 about the global Fintech adoption index, it represents the main Fintech categories rank by adoption rate (2015-2019), Payment and Money Transfer reserved the first rank among all these categories as illustrated in Figure 7 (FINTECHAUSCENSUS, 2019).



Figure 7. Fintech categories rank by adoption rate (2015-2019) Source: FINTECHAUSCENSUS (2019, p.10)

An interesting study for the Americas Market Intelligence shows that real-time payments providers worldwide lead the e-payments, these providers are the main competitors for the traditional financial institutions such as banks, these services attract customers and it increases their adoption of Fintech adoption (AMERICASMI, 2020).

The recent report for DELOITTE (2019) as illustrated in table 3; it shows the economic impact of real-time payment in the three different income countries (High-income, Middle-income & Low-income), it is clear from table 3 the economic impact associated with real-time payments on the different income countries classification.

Country 1	Country 2	Country 3
Costs Reduction up to 87 Million	Costs Reduction up to 464	Costs Increases up to 1 Billion
USD	Million USD	USD
Float Value Reduction up to 15	Float Value Reduction up to 13	Float Value Reduction up to 7
Billion USD	Billion USD	Billion USD
Tax Receipts Improvement up to	Tax Receipts Improvement up	Tax Receipts Improvement up
117 Million USD	to 22 Million USD	to 71 Million USD

Table 3. The economic impact of real-time payments

Source: Author's Own Construction based on DELOITTE (2019)

2.2.6. E-wallets and banking

E-wallets are essentially a way to store digital currency, and it may also allow for instant payment to participating retailers (CHANDRA et al., 2017). While banks have produced e-wallet products that are tied to a bank account, there are also e-wallet products that do not require a bank account (CHANDRA et al., 2017). A study in Bangladesh compared the technology acceptance level of e-wallets produced by banks, and an e-wallet product that was created by a mobile phone company (CHANDRA et al., 2017). The e-wallet could be topped up in the same way that one buys phone credit. Both e-wallet products were stored on a mobile phone, and could be used for a wide variety of ordinary payments, such as utility bills.

The TAM data indicated that in the Bangladeshi population, the e-wallet provided by the telecommunications provider had higher acceptance based on ease of use and intention to use. To that end, it is easy to see that fintech does not necessarily need to work with banks or the banking system, and companies that have created alternative credit and currency system, such as the mobile phone credit, have innovated to express this functionality as an e-wallet without the need for or participation from banks. It can be expected that continued increasing market share of fintech will therefore be resulting in depriving banks of that market share, even where the bank is a partner, since part of the market share is diverted regardless. The key for banks is therefore to innovate in terms of new demand and new value for consumers of financial services.

E-wallet nowadays considered the top list of e-commerce trends worldwide, around 41% worldwide have the intention to use e-wallets (CLIMER, 2020). There are 2.07 billion customers will use e-wallets for the purchasing purpose in 2019, there an increase by 30% comparing with 2017 (1.6 billion customers), the leading country in using e-wallet worldwide is china (ROLFE,

2019). Another issue associated with e-wallet which is the relationship between it and the cashless customers' transaction; SARIKA & VASANTHA (2019, p.1164) investigated about the impact of e-wallet on cashless transactions especially the e-payment transactions, they found that e-wallet has a significant positive impact on economic growth and cashless operations.

YADAV & ARORA (2019, p.1) investigated the impact of e-wallet on customers satisfaction; the findings show that there is a significant positive relationship between e-wallet solutions and customers satisfaction.

2.2.7. The Future of the Financial Services

The researcher in this study focuses on the impact of Fintech industry on the traditional financial services that are provided by the conventional banks. JÜNGER & MIETZNER found that the majority of the German households have a higher adoption intention toward the new Fintech services, this segment of households is characterized by higher financial education, technology, and lower trust. This segment of customers has the ability to deal with Fintech providers rather than banks. According to the current study by TAKEDA et al. (2020), they investigated how the regional banks stock prices will be affected by the investment in Fintech; the results indicate that banks' stock prices have no significant relationship with IT investment, whereas; equity investment in the Fintech companies has a significant negative impact on the stock prices of these banks. This result gives a clear indicator of how banks will be affected by the investment in the market. PHAN et al. (2020) Fintech has a negative impact in predicting the banks' performance, this finding shows that Banks is in a real threat to move forward the digitization in their financial services to keep in line with the digital transformation process in the financial services.

2.3. Analysis of the fintech ecosystem in Palestine

2.3.1. The fintech ecosystem

The fintech ecosystem refers to the players, the dynamics, and the functions that are served by the players (LEE & SHIN, 2018). The fintech ecosystem in Palestine occurs within the wider context of the Middle East and North Africa (MENA) region, and in recent years this area has witnessed fantastic growth (YEHIA, 2018, p.30). By 2016 the annual investment had reached \$900 million

USD for MENA fintech projects and initiatives, with \$750 million USD invested in the prior three years. About 70% of the MENA population do not have access to traditional banks, although this proportion varies widely between nations and regions (WENDEL, 2018). The main opportunity for fintech products is the capture the markets of emerging markets where the traditional banking practices have excluded much of the population (ZALAN et al., 2017).

2.3.2. The economy of Palestine

Palestine has a great deal of difficulty supporting real GDP growth because of the dampening effect of insecurity and restrictions on productivity generally as well as Israeli separation of the Gaza Strip territory from the West Bank territory (GLEESON, 2016). This was evident in 2018 when GDP growth was just over zero (PUBDOCS.WORLDBANK, 2019b). Palestine is divided into two parts, the Gaza strip in the west, and the West Bank, a much larger area with considerable importance to both Israel and Palestine. Between 70% and 80% of the Palestinian Authority budget comes in the form of donor grants and aid, and this has been in decline in recent years (PUBDOCS.WORLDBANK, 2019b). There is no indication that safe passage and travel will resume between the West Bank and Gaza, and this will limit growth potential (PUBDOCS.WORLDBANK, 2019b). real GDP growth is estimated to remain between 0.5% and 1.6% of the next few years, with inflation of about 2% and a reduction of individual and household income of 2% to 3% (PUBDOCS.WORLDBANK, 2019b).

One of the main reasons for loss of revenues was a determination by the Israeli authority to stop the transfer of value-added and duty revenues which are collected on behalf of the Palestinian Authority (PUBDOCS.WORLDBANK, 2019b). Palestine does not present a thriving economic reality; however, it has many unique challenges that might be overcome through the use of fintech.

2.3.3. Banking and finance in Palestine

Banking in Palestine is driven by the same dimensions as that of any other banks in the world, based on the research literature. A study of factors predicting the use of online banking services by customers of Palestinian banks using a custom adoption framework found that the main influence in the adoption of technological leadership of the institution, followed by trust, loyalty, customization value for the user, and privacy concerns (SALEM et al., 2019). Studies have also found that customer satisfaction, service quality, and bank image play an important role in

customer loyalty and willingness to recommend, in the case of Islamic banks in Palestine. (ABD GHANI et al., 2017).

General attitudes toward technology

RABAYAH (2019, p.1) described the use of the TAM model to better understand both technological determinants of acceptance, but also cultural ones, in the context of a Palestinian university and student intention to adopt e-learning. Cultural dimensions of uncertainty avoidance, power distance, and individualism-collectivism had an impact on behavioral intention to adopt or accept e-learning and the culture of learners, revealing that uncertainty avoidance and power distance had strong negative impacts on the intention to adopt new technologies.

Financial barriers

Israeli banks began terminating agreements and cutting connections to partner banks in the West Bank stating that there were too many risks in relation to potential laundering of money from illegitimate sources and the sponsorship of terrorism (TOFFANO et al., 2019, p.1). This created challenges for settling accounts by firms and individuals (TOFFANO et al., 2019, p.1). Proposals have included the use of a distributed ledger system delivered by mobile or online application in order to ease this problem. However, such approaches do not take into account the lack of willingness of Israeli banks and the lack of political will of Israeli authorities to have any kind of relationship to the Palestinian banking system.

Islamic finance and Conventional banking

Islamic finance refers to the financial institutions and services which ensure compliance with important aspects of Islamic belief and Shariah law. GRASSA (2015, p.135) described Shariah governance of Islamic financial institutions still come under banking and financial regulations of the jurisdictions where they are located, leading to considerable variation in Islamic finance around the world. For Palestinian Islamic banking services, this means isolation, often from other Islamic financial services that are located in jurisdictions that do not look favorably on dealings and trade with Palestine. The Conventional banks in Palestine apply and being complied with the PMA (the Palestinian Monetary Authority) roles, conditions, regulations, and the state policy, and the Islamic Banks as well, but the Islamic banks' operations must be obliged with Shariah law and ruling. Islamic banks provide substitute financial products and services which are considered as a substitute for conventional banks (SIRAJ & PILLAI, 2012). In Palestine there is no presence for

the Israeli Banks in the market; but it is a must that there is an intermediary Israeli bank to deal with by the Palestinian banks either conventional or Islamic, they must cooperate to fulfill the banking and the financial services requirements between these banks and the intermediary Israeli Banks in a direct way; these services such as money transfer and cheques.

2.3.4. The fintech ecosystem in Palestine

The role of government

The government has multiple roles in relation to the fintech system in Palestine. Like all national governments, there is an interest in innovation in the financial sector that could result in economic growth and incoming foreign currency. The Palestinian Monetary Authority (PMA) is the regulator of banks and fintech products (to the extent that there are any), however, the agency is also the main proponent of fintech with any power within the ecosystem.

Traditional financial institutions

There are 14 traditional banks operating in Palestine with 351 branches, and deposits equal to 83% of GDP, and bank assets of about \$16.1 billion which are equal to 109% of GDP (AL BAWABA, 2020). The Bank of Palestine, the Palestine Investment Bank, Islamic International Arab, Palestine Islamic Bank, Al Quds Bank, The National Bank, Safa Bank, and Arab Bank all operate in Palestine and have an online or mobile banking component.

Customer base

The customer base for banks and fintech in Palestine include those users with traditional bank accounts, as well as the underbanked and the unbanked segment of the Palestinian population which is about 70% of the population according to the Palestinian Monetary Authority but 2.6 million Palestinians have smartphones (CUEN, 2020). Palestinians are aware of alternative financial firms as well. A study of university students in Palestine revealed that there was a high awareness (70% of the sample) of crowdfunding mechanisms and associated fintech, with indicating (TALLA et al., 2020).

Fintech products and services

Palestine is isolated from many fintech products that are under American banking regulation, and therefore refuse to do business in Palestine or with Palestinians, and this includes PayPal, the most

common and popular e-wallet service and payment method for international freelance work. Israelis in the West Bank are, however, served by PayPal and this has been the cause of considerable controversy (ABUNIMAH, 2018). These situations speak to the grave difficulties that the Palestine economy and financial system have as the risk for businesses is considered too high for many foreign firms. Palestinians in the Gaza Strip are using cryptocurrency at a higher per capita rate than that of developed countries, and this likely reflects the main difficulties in relation to currency exchange and foreign payment (CUEN, 2020). While organizations banned from the financial systems of America and allies like Hamas are using cryptocurrency to raise funds from outside of the country, the largest segment of users is ordinary Palestinians according to reports on the ground (CUEN, 2020). Put bluntly, Palestinians are already adopting fintech at a high rate, but with no Palestinian based fintech firms to choose from, they are using foreign fintech in combination with local underground cryptocurrency dealers (CUEN, 2020).

The Qassam Brigade, the military arm of Hamas that also has control of the Gaza Strip, has provided information to local people in a variety of ways, including a tutorial on its website and a way to generate new wallets for each transaction to reduce potential issues of foreign enforcement of the Hamas blacklisting (CUEN, 2020). These are not considered compliant transactions to the extent that institutional bitcoin transactions are prohibited by PMA regulations (CUEN, 2020). The main use of cryptocurrency was to receive payment for freelance work or a foreign remittance, and it is generally agreed that the Hamas campaign to raise funds using cryptocurrency created widespread awareness of the use of cryptocurrency to bypass current challenges and barriers (CUEN, 2020). It was further noted in the report that the exchange of cryptocurrency for local currency in Gaza Strip carried fees and risks that were much higher than ordinary fintech exchanges for this purpose.

Investment

Fintech has not come to any real fruition in Palestine, and with a lack of actual results, the numbers of interest are levels of investment in facilitating and supporting startups, especially fintech. The numbers vary widely, but with many of the investments being from founders, there is no accurate information. Investors in Palestinian fintech are often non-governmental organizations or foreign aid agencies. (LEADERS, 2019). For example, the Business Start-up Incubators Program announced by the European Union in 2017, to be delivered through the Belgian Development

Agency had the intention of providing training, mentorship, coaching, advising, and other services to support startups, including fintech companies, in six locations in Palestine (LEADERS, 2019). It is not clear whether the plan to support 120 start-up companies, with provision of initial seed investment for half, ever came to fruition as there was no further information. This clarifies an important point in relation to investment in Palestine generally, which is that good intentions often fail due to the complexity and the barriers involved.

2.3.5. Fintech startups in Palestine

As BJØRN and BOULUS-RØDJE (2018) describe the lack of access to financial infrastructure within Palestine in combination with other problems of infrastructure create a situation where it is close to impossible to have a successful fintech startup, and the result is that fintech solutions are more likely to come from Palestinians living outside of Palestine. Different criteria are needed to define success given this situation of brutal economic conditions, isolation from the financial systems of most of the world, and regulatory enforcement from foreign agencies that criminalized ordinary financial transactions that stem from or lead to Palestine.

PalPay

While there are financially related startups based in Palestine, there are no true non-bank fintech services despite entrepreneurship in the area of digital currency exchange from local dealer. The Bank of Palestine has online and mobile banking applications that work from a smartphone or computer, and they also work with PalPay, the cleverly named fintech startup which was co-founded by the Bank of Palestine and PCNC Solutions to provide a basic e-wallet service which includes utility payments, more than 6,000 points of sale within Palestine and transfers between users (PALPAY, 2020a).

Economies

This startup began in 2010 to provide Arabic language and focused information services to allow for trading information in a MENA friendly format. The company reported that it is self-funded, and now also provides an English language portal of content. While not a true fintech service, it does provide automated financial information services (ECONOMIES, 2020).

Gamiphy

Gamiphy is an online marketing tool and service that helps to engage users and in so doing collect marketing data in the form of points-driven games. Options include quizzes and similar formats that allow for the collection of user preference data, as well as badges and other rewards for community and crowd work/input to a site (GAMIPHY, 2020).

2.3.6. The impact of foreign fintech

The North American and European financial and fintech ecosystem are very influential, and they have an impact on the overall ecosystem of Palestine. This is not because of trends leadership, but instead because of impositions and restrictions that arise from the Western perspective of the Palestine context. This can be illustrated by reviewing the biggest fintech companies, and how Palestinian users can, or can't, get access to them. PayPal does not allow Palestinians to create an account, which creates a great deal of difficulty for startups as well as online workers who are seeking to convert their digital foreign currency to local funds. For many displaced people, online work has provided them with a way to make a living using platforms such as Upwork, Fiverr or as remote employees (HATAYAMA, 2018).

2.3.7. Fintech and Financial Inclusion

Fintech one of the most important pillars in financial inclusion in the world, it is highly correlated to financial inclusion; it has been proved through many significant studies that the provided services through Fintech companies have a positive impact on financial inclusion in both emerging and well-developed economies worldwide, moreover; the value that Fintech providers provide to individuals have the highest impact and effect when they are within the low and the variable income level; Fintech providers will deliver these services with low cost to customers through low cost ways to obtain the services (OZILI, 2018). Digital devices play a key role in supporting the financial inclusion in any country; digital devices are the major tool that promote Fintech services for people, and as it was mentioned earlier in this thesis that Fintech services have a positive impact on Financial inclusion (LAUER & LYMAN, 2015). Fintech innovations were contributed in

increasing the financial inclusion through providing alternative solution to access the financial services for the unbanked segments in the society (SENYO & OSABUTEY, 2020).

2.4. Fintech & Financial Inclusion in Palestine

Figures 8 and 9 show the most important statistics that support Fintech services providers in Palestine and the Financial inclusion strategy that the Palestinian Monetary Authority dedicated the resources to support and increase the financial inclusion in Palestine; the two main pillars that drive the Fintech services are smartphone penetration rate and the financial inclusion ratio, as mentioned in figure 8 the percentage of the mobile subscribers in Palestine is 84%, while the smartphone penetration rate is 70% according to The National Company for Electronic Payments-Palestine report (2019) (through the interview with company itself). Moreover, the below percentages support the evidence mentioned earlier about the positive relationship between Fintech and digital devices especially when smartphone users have access to the internet, figure (8) shows that the percentage of the active internet users is 60% which is a great indicator for the Fintech providers and for the government to enhance the financial inclusion in Palestine (HOOTSUITE, 2019).



Figure 8 Mobile, Internet & Social Media use in Palestine.

Source: HOOTSUITE (2019, p.15)

Moreover, figure 9 illustrates the year-on-year change in Palestine digital growth indicators, these indicators are the main drivers for the involved parties in Palestine to drive the digital

transformation in the financial industry and enhance the Fintech services in the market along with serving individuals for better access to the financial services regardless their geographic positions in the country.



Figure 9. The Annual Digital Growth- Palestine

Source: HOOTSUITE (2019, p.16)

PMA (the Palestinian Monetary Authority) they are the governmental body in Palestine that control the financial system in Palestine as the central bank in other countries; according to their comprehensive report about the National Financial Inclusion Strategy in Palestine, they announced the total percentage of the financial inclusion in Palestine which is 36.4% from the overall adult population; it means that the majority of the adult population suffer from the financial exclusion. This percentage gave the Fintech providers and the banks in Palestine the initiative to promote digital services for the citizens in order to decrease the ratio of the financial exclusion in Palestine and acquire more customer base for both Banks and Fintech providers, in the last two years the competition has been increased among these two rivals to provide reliable, convenient, real-time, and suitable financial services that fit the customers' needs with a lower access cost (PMA, 2020).

2.4.1. Fintech Context Analysis

The new fintech reality began with digital, information and online innovations driven by banks, however over the past decade there has been increasing development of new entrants in the financial services sector that are small, non-bank actors. In many cases, these new fintech companies are providing the same services as banks, but at a lower cost or with a higher level of relevance and acceptability to the user (OZILI, 2018). Traditional banks are concerned about the fintech disruption, and they have reason to be, given that one-quarter of revenues have been displaced by these companies in Western countries. Traditional banks also see the important opportunity in working with fintech companies to more rapidly innovate, building on the strengths of the traditional banks in terms of branding and trust, while accessing and leveraging the agility and analysis of fintech companies in relation to looking at old problems in a new way (PMA, 2020).

Fintech may be creating fear for the established, traditional banks; however, most are small enterprises in need of capital, and in this way of integration, or fintech partnerships with banks, may bring out the best of both worlds. The banking and fintech ecosystem and realities in Palestine present unusual and rather unique issues (PWC, 2016). In addition to the usual issues, political reasons are the cause of banking and commerce disconnects as well as economic isolation for the population (BANSAL et al., 2010). Despite an underperforming economy, Palestine may be able to leverage common interests of the people, the Palestinian authorities, established banks in Palestine and up and coming fintech startups to reduce the impact of the continued political actions. That process will create certain strengths that may hold long term advantages and benefits for banking, fintech and innovation in Palestine (DE OLIVEIRA MALAQUIAS & HWANG, 2018).

2.5. Conceptual Framework: Extended TAM (E-TAM)

The technology acceptance model (TAM) has provided the main way of predicting, analyzing and identifying consumer adoption of technology, including fintech products and services (CHUANG et al., 2016). Developed by DAVIS et al. (1989) the model was intended to bridge the human aspect of technological engineering - behavior. The theory of reasoned action and theory of planned behavior provided a basis for determining technological adoption based on what people say that they would do. The original priority variables were simply perceived usefulness and perceived ease of use (DAVIS et al., 1989).

2.5.1. Theories of technology adoption and acceptance

There are a number of theoretical frameworks in relation to purchasing intention in marketing studies, and these have evolved for the most part over the past fifty years, becoming widely influential and even becoming the common or popular paradigm. In 1977, HILL et al. theory of reasonable action (TRA) helped to provide a basis for predictive studies of purchase intention (HILL et al., 1977, p.244). This was followed by theory of planned behavior which provided further connection points between a person's intention and behavior or actions. The theory of planned behavior (TPB) was built on the basis and foundation of TRA, and further proposed that the TRA tents could be used to create a link between beliefs and attitudes and subsequent behavior, leading to the concept of behavioral intention (AJZEN, 1985). From these, the TAM helped to provide a specific focus for these theoretical tools- the determination of adoption of technology.

2.5.2. Technology Acceptance Model (TAM)

DAVIS et al. (1989) further extended TRA and TPB in figure 10 in order to have a model of behavioral or use intention, rather than purchase intention. The function of the model may have been what contributed to the initial popularity as the publication of the article coincided with a rising use of individual computers in the workplace, and this encountered significant resistance that was a source of confusion to executives seeking new efficiencies. It was however a departure in relation to the use of the TRA and TPB, which were essentially marketing theories drawn from psychology intended for the understanding of consumers, not potential technology users.





Source: LAI (2017, p.18)

Decomposed Theory of Planned Behavior

TAYLOR & TODD (1995a, p.137) proposed that models of intention and action could be decomposed and further refined and validate to provide support for various functions and research interests. In this decomposition, each of the dimensions and factors could be validated and dropped, or modified, in order to better suit the research circumstances. This provided permission, in a sense, for the decomposition and restructuring of the TAM, resulting in a new diversity of extended TAM models.

Extended Technology Acceptance Model and variations

There was no question that the TAM had greatly expanded understanding and insights into technology use and acceptance, and that it had predictive value (MCFARLAND & HAMILTON, 2006). TAM was only able to explain between 4% and 45% of variation in adoption, and refinements were needed leading to greater accuracy, figure 11 shows the driven TAM context (MCFARLAND & HAMILTON, 2006).



Figure 11. Context driven TAM Source: MCFARLAND & HAMILTON (2006, p.433)

VENKATESH & DAVIS (2000) extended the TAM in order to better understand social influence as well as cognitive processes that were known to have an impact on behavior with the TAM 2 model. There was an assumed context of the workplace, rather than consumer behavior (VENKATESH & DAVIS, 2000). New social dimension included the perception of norms, the level of voluntary discretion, and the image of the technology, with cognitive dimensions of job relevance, output quality, and results of use (VENKATESH & DAVIS, 2000). VENKATESH & BALA (2008) further described the TAM 3 in figure 12, which included points for intervention in the system as a tool for managerial decision making.



Figure 12. Extended TAM 3 with adoption, context and points of intervention

Source: VENKATESH & BALA (2008, p.280)

Understanding technology acceptance in fintech today

The theory of reasonable action (TRA) and theory of planned behavior (TPB) were borrowed from these as the basis and the justification for the evolution of the technology acceptance models (TAM) (TAHERDOOST, 2018). The resulting model is very flexible and forgiving, in that factors driving acceptance can be added, validated or rejected, however, this has resulted in increasing heterogeneity of the model rather than increased consistency and standardization (TAHERDOOST, 2018).

2.5.3. The Nine dimensions of E-TAM

Perceived Usefulness

Perceived usefulness referred to beliefs that a task or duty could be made easier with the use of technology (DAVIS et al., 1989). If no connection was made in relation to the usefulness of technology in achieving a task then the perceived usefulness was low. This would reflect the relative priorities of the user, and the perceived aspects were often in relation to that priority framework. For example, if the user prized speed of the task, but the technology focused on increasing the quality of the task output or the collation and storage of all data, then this might not register as useful to the user.

CHANG et al. (2016) found in their study that knowing your customer is one of the most important issues in Fintech adoption, mapping the customer knowledge to better understand the provided Fintech services and having the customer attention and awareness that these services are useful for him. Moreover, another study by CARLIN et al. (2017) investigated about the Fintech adoption determinants of the Millennials; the results revealed that their financial knowledge has significant influences on Millennials' behavioral intention of their Fintech adoption.

Perceived Ease of Use

Perceived ease of use refers to the effort required to achieve the task by using the technology (DAVIS et al., 1989). This reflected the ease of use which was determined by a user before actually using technology, and often without actually witnessing any use of the technology. In cases where they could not relate to how the technology was used, the resulting measurement of this dimension would be low. Many studies investigated about the significant relationship between the perceived ease of use and the consumers' technology adoption, RIQUELME & RIOS (2010) found that

perceived usefulness has a significant impact on consumers attitude toward adopting Fintech services, whereas if the consumers knew that these Fintech services are easy to use they have a high potential to adopt them, and also SUM CHAU & NGAI (2010) & ABBAD (2013) found that Perceived Ease of Use is a key variable in determining Fintech adoption among users. Furthermore, another study by TAYLOR & TODD (1995b, p.144) revealed that perceived ease of use has a positively impact on perceived usefulness through their study by using the Technology Acceptance Model (TAM), Theory of Planned Behavior (TPB) and Decomposed Theory of Planned Behavior (DTPB).

Trust

Trust refers to the user's belief that their use of the financial services or tools will not result in negative impacts such as misuse of information, or a breach of privacy or property. Trust does not come as the result of researching the issue or making reasoned analysis, it is a property that is challenging to earn and lost in a moment with any kind of misstep, real or perceived, that would result in a low trust score. The researcher found many studies that express the role of trust in adopting Fintech services, KOKSAL (2016, p.327) and BASAK et al. (2016) found that the Trust in the Fintech service provider gave the consumer the confidence to use these services which are provided from this provider. Another study found that there is a significant impact of trust on Fintech adoption intention (HANAFIZADEH et al., 2014, p.62).

Brand Image

Brand image refers to the impression of the sponsoring firm or owner, based on image characteristics as well as media reports and general presentation of the company. This brand image is determined separately from the product or service itself. The service provider brand image plays a critical role in influencing the image of a reliable service to the consumers in the market, it has a significant positive effect on the consumers' perception to use these services (PARK et al., 2014). Moreover, a study by RIYADH et al. (2010, p.1) found that brand image has a positive impact on consumers' quality perception; SALEEM & RASHID (2014) agreed with these results they found that there is a positive influence of brand image on consumers satisfaction. While LEE & CHUNG (2009) found that brand image plays a significant role in influencing the users' trust for the brand itself.

Perceived Risk

The perceived risk is different from trust, in that the trust measures the extent to which it is believed that the firm is trustworthy and would not have malintent or negligence, whereas the risk refers to the problems that could result from using the technology itself; the types of risk associated with consumers regarding their intention to use Fintech services classified into two types, financial risk and the privacy risk perceived by consumers when using fintech services (KHEDMATGOZAR & SHAHNAZI, 2017, p.389).

Users usually have fear when dealing with their personal information; especially when other parties misusing their personal information (BANSAL et al., 2010). Usually, when users want to access any fintech services they need to provide their personal information in order to verify their identities to let them use these services, so; it merits to investigate if perceived risk has a significant impact on consumer's trust in such a brand that provides fintech services (DE OLIVEIRA MALAQUIAS & HWANG, 2018). There is a study that found that perceived risk is associated with users' trust; the researcher considered this dimension as one of the ninth dimensions used in TAM model (KIM & PRABHAKAR, 2000).

Government Support

Government support refers to the regulatory framework and conditions, as well as the macroeconomic effects and overall positive or negative position of government agencies in relation to the technology. Many government agencies have funded and supported startup incubators, for example, as a means of ensuring that startups get early support that might lead to innovation and new industry. Where government support is limited, or even contrary to the technology, the result for this dimension would be low, this dimension is the main factor that affects Fintech adoption (YEE-LOONG et al., 2010). Government support affects the user's intention to adopt Fintech services (KIWANUKA, 2015). Government support is an important factor that influences the online services adoption as Fintech services (MARAKARKANDY et al., 2017).

User Innovativeness

The level of innovation exposure and interest of the user is a factor in technology acceptance and the context of technology acceptance. This can be captured and interpreted in a number of ways for operational purposes, and it is therefore very heterogeneous across studies that use it. User innovativeness is expressed in a way that the users are highly innovative and this innovativeness is the main reason to mitigate their risk perception toward their intention to adopt Fintech services (LEICHT et al., 2018). Human innovation is interpreted by the degree that this human (user) is interested in new things to try and use it (ADEIZA et al., 2017). KIM et al. (2010) found that user innovativeness has a significant positive impact on the users' intention to use online services.

Attitude

Attitude refers to the aggregate feeling of being willing to try to use technology, or to even be enticed and excited to use it. On the other end of the spectrum are those who clearly do not want to engage with the technology, in other ways it is defined as the personal tendencies associated with his intention behavior to show a specific behavior (LIFEN ZHAO et al., 2010). Two studies found through using the TAM model that there is a positive relation between the users' attitude to technology and their adoption intention to use this technology as Fintech services (SHAIKH & KARJALUOTO, 2015, p.129; ABOELMAGED & GEBBA, 2013).

Intention

The human intention behavior is affected by many key drivers in order to use the technology in such context, this behavior comes from the person's belief that information technology has a contributed impact in enhancing the work performance. This intention is highly associated with these two predictors perceived ease of use and perceived usefulness (VENKATESH & BALA 2008, LEGRIS et al. 2003). Furthermore, government support has a significant influence on the person's intention to use the e-banking services (JARUWACHIRATHANAKUL & FINK, 2005).

2.5.4. The use of TAM in studies of fintech and financial technology adoption

The use of TAM and customized extended TAM continues to be one of the most accepted approaches to behavioral intention in relation to technology acceptance. HU et al. (2019) proposed yet another iteration of the extended TAM model by which was then used in combination with perceived risk as determining factors of the trust which mediated technology adoption, a slight refinement of Davis and associated original model. JIN et al. (2019) reported on fintech acceptance in the Malaysian context, using the TAM dimensions of usefulness, ease of use and perceived risk, with the addition of the categories of relative advantage, perceived cost, and the mediating effect of awareness of consumers. It can be seen that the decomposition factor is active, however, this creates issues of comparison.

2.5.5. E-TAM & Fintech Study Results

The following table 4 presents some of the dimensions of E-TAM in relation to recent studies and results.

Table 4. Study results related to E-TAM and Fintech

VARIABLE (DIMENSION)	AUTHORS	SAMPLE	ADOPTION OF WHAT	WHERE	FINDINGS
Perceived Usefulness	CHUANG et al. (2016)	440 consumers (convenience sample)	Fintech	Taiwan	Perceived usefulness has a significantly positive effect on the attitudes toward using Fintech dimension.
Perceived Usefulness	MUÑOZ -LEIVA et al. (2017)	103 bank customers	Mobile banking app created by a bank	Spain	This study rejected perceived usefulness as a factor correlated with intention to use mobile banking applications
Perceived Usefulness	JIN et al. (2019)		Fintech	Malaysia	Perceived Usefulness positively the Consumers Intention to use and adopt Fintech Services
Perceived Ease of Use	CHUANG et al. (2016)	440 consumers (convenience sample)	Fintech	Taiwan	Perceived ease of use has a significantly positive effect on the attitudes toward using Fintech dimension.
Perceived Ease of Use	HU et al. (2019)	387 bank users	Fintech	China	Perceived ease of use does not affect users' attitudes toward the adoption regarding Fintech services.

VARIABLE (DIMENSION)	AUTHORS	SAMPLE	ADOPTION OF WHAT	WHERE	FINDINGS
Trust	CHUANG et al. (2016)	440 consumers (convenience sample)	Fintech	Taiwan	Brand and service trust has a significantly positive effect on the attitudes toward using Fintech dimension.
Trust	HU et al. (2019)	387 bank users	Fintech	China	Trust in Fintech services has a significant influence on users' attitudes for adoption.
Brand Image	HU et al. (2019)	587 bank users	Fintech	China	The study shows that Brand Image has a significant relationship with users' attitude to adopt Fintech services
Perceived Risk	HU et al. (2019)	387 bank users		China	Perceived risk does not affect users' attitudes toward the adoption regarding Fintech services.
Perceived Risk	JIN et al. (2019)		Fintech	Malaysia	
Perceived Risk	MUÑOZ -LEIVA et al. (2017)	103 (convenience sample	Mobile banking app created by a bank	Spain	This study rejected risk as a factor correlated with intention to use mobile banking applications
Government Support	SÁNCHEZ- TORRES et al. (2018)	600	Online financial services (bank and non- bank)	Columbia	Government support did not have a significant impact on technology adoption.
User Innovativeness	ZHANG et al. (2018)	520 Amazon Mechanical Turk	Fintech	Worldwide	The study reveals that User innovativeness is important in Fintech adoption

VARIABLE (DIMENSION)	AUTHORS	SAMPLE	ADOPTION OF WHAT	WHERE	FINDINGS
Attitudes	CHUANG et al. (2016)	440 consumers (convenience sample)		Taiwan	Attitudes have a significantly positive effect on behavioral intention to use fintech.
Attitudes	MUÑOZ -LEIVA et al. (2017)	103 (convenience sample	Mobile banking app created by a bank	Spain	Attitude was the main factor determining user acceptance of mobile banking applications
Intention	MARAKARKANDY et al. (2017)	300 Internet bank users	Fintech	India	Intention is associated with Fintech adoption and have a significant impact on increasing the usage

Source: Author's own construction based on literature

3. MATERIALS AND METHODS

This chapter describes each topic involved in the construction of this research work for the PhD thesis. The topics covered are; Section One: Data collection methods, Section Two: Study instrument (questionnaire design), Section Three: Conceptual model, Section Four: Study population, Section Five: Sample size, and Section Six: Methods of data analysis.

3.1. Data collection

In order to answer the study questions and hypotheses, the researcher collects the reliable data that are aligned with the study objectives. The main data source used is the primary source, since it is an exploratory study designed to explore the reality and the intention in adopting Fintech services in Palestine. It also examines the Palestinian Banks readiness to the requirements of Fintech industry in the Banking financial services by gathering reliable data.

3.1.1. Primary Data

The study used two main sources of data, the first source is the interviews with the pioneer banks in Palestine whom involved in digitizing their financial services and following the international trend to adopt the Fintech services. These banks are upgrading their systems to meet their customers' needs. These interviews were with the key top management level in each of these banks. They are involved and responsible for the financial technology transition and having the long-term strategies of Fintech in their banks. They provided the real context for Palestinian banks' readiness for this emerging Fintech era within the banking industry.

The second source is a questionnaire. The researcher used this approach in order to collect the required information that addresses and answers the study questions and hypotheses. According to FODDY & MANTLE (1994, p.382) this type of questionnaire is one of the main tools for data collection.

The questionnaires in this study are in the e-form method. The researcher targeted two populations in Palestine. These two populations reflect the two generations that meet the objectives of the study, Millennials and Gen Z. They are the main motivators for banks to adopt the Fintech technology within the industry since they have high intention to adopt the Fintech services.

Services that are provided by companies and other financial institutions worldwide, beyond the banking industry. The study used two questionnaires, with very similar items with few differences in social profile. One questionnaire targeted the Millennials and the other targeted Gen Z. The major source of data for Gen Z was the Arab American University, one of the biggest universities. The purpose of using this university is it has the solid base of technology where many students are aware of these services, and there is a huge cultural mix. Hence, this university was the best option to target Gen Z in order to get responses about their intention to adopt the new Fintech services within the market. Millennials are the bank users in West Bank-Palestine were their age between 25-40. The researcher reached this age group through social media channels. Furthermore, the researcher collaborated with a social media specialist to find this group; especially the employees who own bank account.

Finally, the questionnaires were structured to discover and explore the social behavior of these generations in terms of their financial behavior and their intention to adopt Fintech services when using the extended model of TAM (Technology Acceptance Model). Measuring this behavior will give a clear indicator banks in Palestine, and elsewhere, about how to adjust, renovate, upgrade, and use the last cutting-edge technology to meet their customers' needs.

3.1.2. Secondary Data

The researcher used other data sources to provide evidence. Studies, experts, official reports and government bodies involved and qualified to provide the recorded data about this topic. The researcher obtains this source of data from journals, textbooks, periodicals, and reports.

3.2. Thesis Instrument

The researcher adopted the following method for this thesis:

3.2.1. Questionnaire Design

The two study survey questionnaires are in three sections: Section one is the demographic variable; it is consisted of 10-11 items where the Millennials one consists of 11 items. Section two covers the consumers' financial behavior and Fintech perception. The section consists of 22-23 items. Millennials are covered with 23 items, while the last section is about the respondents' intention to adopt Fintech (according to the Extended Technology Acceptance Model E-TAM). This section consists of nine sub-sections, Perceived Usefulness (consists of 4 items), Perceived Ease of Use (3 items), Trust (2 items), Brand Image (3 items), Perceived Risk (3 items), Government support (3 items), User Innovativeness (2 items), Attitude (3 items), Intention (2 items). The two questionnaires have the same nine sub-sections with the same items for each sub-section. These questionnaires are constructed on the basis of five Likert scales in the third section: Consumers Financial Behavior and Fintech Perception, using the Extended Technology Acceptance Model.

The questionnaire steps

To build a well administered questionnaire the researcher chose to use a validated questionnaire especially adapted to learn Fintech Adoption Intentions. Here the Extended Technology Acceptance Model (E-TAM) is utilized. It is the most well-known model for achieving this purpose. The model has nine scales, as follows in table 5 (ZHANG et al., 2018).

Variables	Scales	Sources			
	Fintech could meet my financial services needs	(I OCKETT &			
Perceived	"Fintech services could save my time"	LITTLER, 1997)			
Variables Perceived Usefulness Perceived Ease of Use Trust Brand Image	"Fintech services could improve services efficiency"	and			
	On General, Fintech services are suitable to me	(HUH et al., 2009)			
	Fintech services are easy to use	(CHENC at al			
Perceived Ease of Use	"I think the operation interface of Fintech services interface is user friendly and easy to understand"	(CHENG et al., 2007) and (ZANDHESSAMI & GERANMAYEH, 2014)			
	Fintech services equipment's are easy to obtain (mobiles, APPs, Internet Connection, et al.)				
	"Fintech services keep my personal information safe"	(YEE-LOONG et al 2010) and			
Trust	"Fintech services are trustable"	(SÁNCHEZ - TORRES et al., 2018)			
	"The bank could provide good services and products"	(HA, 2004) and			
Trust Brand Image	I prefer services provided by familiar brands	(RUPARELIA et al.,			
	The bank has a good reputation	2010)			
	Money could be stolen when using Fintech Services				

Table 5. Thesis questionnaire scale

Perceived	"I think that my personal privacy will be under threat to be disclosed"	(MARAKARKAND Y et al., 2017) and (GRABNER-		
Risk	On general, Fintech services are risky	KRÄUTER & FAULLANT, 2008)		
	In my opinion the government encourage and supports the usage of Fintech services			
Government Support	I think the government provided the solid base from regulations and legislation to facilitate the work of Fintech services	(MARAKARKAND Y et al., 2017)		
	I believe that government provided the required infrastructure that push the Fintech services in the market			
User	When there is a new product, I am among the early birds who would like to try and use it	ZHANG et al.		
ss	"In my opinion using Fintech services is a very good idea"	(2018)		
	It is a pleasant experience when using Fintech services			
Attitudo	"I am interested in using Fintech services"	(GRABNER-		
Attitude	"If I used Fintech services before I will continue using it"	FAULLANT, 2008)		
Intention	I am looking for using fintech services very soon	(MARAKARKAND Y et al., 2017) and		
Intention	"I am willing to recommend Fintech services to friends"	(PATEL & PATEL, 2018)		

Source: Own Construction based on literature

3.2.2. Banks Readiness Measure

The researcher in this study gathers the main Fintech functions that banks could adopt and develop their products and services accordingly, while it handles the most recent technology, regulation requirements to introduce Fintech services that make them able to compete with other Fintech rivals in the market, this model has been developed based on the most recent cutting-edge technologies and Fintech requirements and functions that have a direct impact on banks' main systems and products. The model has been developed based on the 6th main Fintech core technologies as the following: Remittances & Payments, Big Data & Artificial Intelligence, Digital Banking, Lending & Alternative Financing, Security & Risk Management, and Blockchain Services, these six categories are the main Fintech categories worldwide that a bank could compare its competencies and capacities according to these global Fintech requirements in order to be capable to follow the fast pace in the digital financial services.

The researcher used the categories mentioned in table 1 (Fintech Core technologies) to reveal the extent of application of these categories by banks through personal interviews with the top three banks in Palestine in Fintech adoption and experience in this domain, these banks have the highest Fintech services and committed to providing the most recent technologies in this field, so the researcher builds this model to compare the compliance and the adoption for each category by these banks. The author used the mean analysis for each category and then used the mean for all categories to measure the overall compliance of this model.

3.2.3. Validity of Questionnaire

This study uses Principal Component Analysis (PCA) in order to test the study model; convergent validity. Validity of instrument means the degree that the study model is a good fit with survey data, that's including convergent validity test. "The convergent validity reflects the correlation degree of multiple indicators for a variable, which is measured by the average variance extracted AVE of the latent variable, the CR, and the loading of corresponding measurable variables" (RUVIO et al., 2008, p.41). The AVE of the sample must be larger than 0.5, while the loadings of the study measurable variables must be greater than 0.7 (RUVIO et al. 2008, CHIN 1998). All the evidences in table 6 support the convergent validity of all constructs. As shown in table 6, the AVE was greater than 0.5 for all variables and CR is larger than 0.7, so the validity is granted in this model.

Variable	Ttoma	AV	E	C	Degral4/Degra	
variable	Items	Millennials	Gen Z	Millennials	Gen Z	Result/Pass
Perceived Usefulness	4	0.542	0.544	0.756	0.763	Yes
Perceived Ease of Use	3	0.533	0.584	0.706	0.734	Yes
Trust	2	0.529	0.531	0.722	0.756	Yes
Brand Image	3	0.512	0.533	0.716	0.703	Yes
Perceived Risk	3	0.573	0.760	0.800	0.904	Yes
Government Support	3	0.517	0.819	0.729	0.931	Yes

Table 6. Validity Test

User	2	0 536	0.527	0 704	0 759	Ves
Innovativeness	2	0.550	0.527	0.701	0.757	105
Attitude	3	0.522	0.665	0.766	0.856	Yes
Intention	2	0.562	0.751	0.719	0.858	Yes

Source: Author's own calculation.

3.2.4. Normality Test

The researcher used different methods to examine if the study data closely to be normally distributed, Skewness and Kurtosis were used, the researcher extracted the Z-Value per each Skewness and Kurtosis if the values between these cutoff points (-1.96,1.96), the researcher used this measure for both questionnaire the Millennials and Gen Z, tables (7 & 8) show the results from this test (FIELD, 2018, p.79).

Table 7. Skewness & Kurtosis Z-Value

			Mille	nnials			Gen Z					
	Skew	mess	Kurt	tosis	Z-Values Skewness	Z-Values Kurtosis	Skew	Skewness Kurtosis		Z-Values Skewness	Z-Values Kurtosis	
PU	146	.170	414	.338	-0.9	-1.2	246	.167	620	.333	-1.47	-1.86
PEU	133	.170	333	.338	-0.8	-1.0	253	.167	567	.333	-1.52	-1.70
TRU	157	.170	366	.338	-0.9	-1.1	212	.167	516	.333	-1.27	-1.55
BI	043	.170	277	.338	-0.3	-0.8	120	.167	537	.333	-0.72	-1.61
PR	.069	.170	201	.338	0.4	-0.6	012	.167	542	.333	-0.07	-1.63
GS	.071	.170	138	.338	0.4	-0.4	.066	.167	371	.333	0.40	-1.12
UI	005	.170	211	.338	0.0	-0.6	304	.167	614	.333	-1.82	-1.85
ATT	130	.170	170	.338	-0.8	-0.5	318	.167	582	.333	-1.91	-1.75
INT	246	.170	.139	.338	-1.4	0.4	304	.167	404	.333	-1.82	-1.21

Source: Author's own work based on SPSS results

According to table 7, all the Z-Values for both Skewness and Kurtosis were between -1.96 and 1.96, which means that the study data are a little skewed and kurtosis for all the study variables, but it doesn't differ significantly from normality. The researcher can assume that the data are approximately normally distributed (GEORGE & MALLERY, 2010; TROCHIM & DONNELY, 2006; FIELD, 2009; GRAVETTER & WALLNAU, 2014).

The second method the researcher used is Kolmogorov-Smirnov and Shapiro-Wilk to test normality based on the p-value for each variable in the study, the results supported if the p-value is greater than 0.05 then we could assume that the data is approximately normally distributed. The blow table shows the test for both Millennials and Gen Z for the nine dimensions of the study variables (SALKIND, 2007).

	Tests of	Norn	nality	(Millenn	ials)			Tests	of No	rmali	ty (Gen Z	Z)	
	Kolmogorov- Smirnov ^a		V-	Shapi	ro-Wi	lk		Kolm Smi	logoro [.] irnov ^a	V-	Shapi	ro-Wi	lk
	Statistic	df	Sig.	Statistic	df	Sig.		Statistic	df	Sig.	Statistic	df	Sig.
PU	.194	550	.052	.932	550	.662	PU	.130	560	.057	.936	560	.762
PEU	.123	550	.059	.916	550	.601	PEU	.155	560	.054	.930	560	.642
TRU	.168	550	.524	.878	550	.413	TRU	.182	560	.523	.925	560	.613
BI	.195	550	.510	.942	550	.794	BI	.171	560	.530	.933	560	.548
PR	.113	550	.064	.965	550	.895	PR	.112	560	.067	.963	560	.527
GS	.153	550	.061	.955	550	.743	GS	.125	560	.059	.958	560	.437
UI	.132	550	.052	.905	550	.591	UI	.162	560	.051	.908	560	.416
ATT	.150	550	.058	.894	550	.470	ATT	.152	560	.052	.918	560	.541
INT	.103	550	.067	.819	550	.415	INT	.121	560	.061	.864	560	.356

Table 8. Kolmogorov-Smirnov and Shapiro-Wilk Test

a. Lilliefors Significance Correction

Source: Author's own work based on SPSS results

Table 8 revealed that both tests support the normality assumption that the study data is approximately normally distributed, all of the sig. are above 0.05 which indicates that the data are approximately normally distributed (STEINSKOG et al. 2007, SHAPIRO et al. 1968).

3.2.5. Collinearity Test

The researcher used the collinearity test through SPSS using Linear Regression test to assess the Multicollinearity effect among the study variables, here in this study the researcher used two different questionnaires for TAM (Technology Acceptance Model), one used for Millennials and the other for Gen Z to check their adoption intention for Fintech using this model. So, the collinearity test used for both questionnaires, the researcher depends on the VIF cutoff which is 5, all VIF below 5 will be accepted according to RINGLE et al. (2015) and it means that Multicollinearity doesn't exist between the tested variables in the study, Multicollinearity means

that there are two or more variables in the study model are highly linear related, it is a problematic issue in assessing the relationships between the variables.

Table 9 shows the collinearity test for both questionnaires, Millennials, and Gen Z.

Table 9. Collinearity test/ Millennials & Gen Z

Coefficients ^a					
Model		Millennials Collinearity Statistics		Gen Z Collinearity Statistics	
		Dimensions	PU	.465	2.150
PEU	.523		1.913	.359	2.785
TRU	.481		2.077	.397	2.517
BI	.703		1.423	.450	2.224
PR	.779		1.284	.624	1.603
GS	.637		1.569	.729	1.371
UI	.618		1.618	.359	2.788
ATT	.485		2.060	.280	3.570

a. Dependent Variable: INT

Source: Author's own work based on SPSS results.

Table 9 shows that all the VIF for both questionnaires were below 5 then the researcher concluded that there is no multicollinearity among the study variables.

3.2.6. Reliability of Questionnaire

Pre-testing the questionnaire considered an important step for the earlier observations through the pilot test technique in order to ensure its reliability. According to FINK (2003, p.117), the pilot study must have at minimum 10 questionnaires. This thesis pre-tested by using a 30 sample of students and the same number of 30 people under the criteria to achieve the objective of the questionnaire. The questionnaires tested for reliability and content forms to ensure the conformity and the compliance with the research instrument validity guidelines (MACKENZIE, 2003, p.323).

This thesis used Cronbach Alpha reliability test, this test used in both the pilot study and in the final survey. The researcher used this test in this study by distributing 30 questionnaires for two samples, these questionnaires were distributed for each sample which is similar to the targeted
sample that has similar specifications (using TAM model) as a pilot thesis. The researcher paid significant attention and the importance of discussing the content and the objective of these questionnaires with the study respondents.

The researcher used to give the required explanations to the study respondents in the main places that the study takes place, this process became before answering these questionnaires. Because of these explanations, all the participants got ready and they were able to answer the questionnaires. This method was intentionally adopted by the researcher to achieve the best meaning of data reliability. According to TAVAKOL AND DENNICK (2011), the study must meet the acceptable Alpha value which is aligned with the instrument statistical requirement, so the acceptable value must be equal to or greater than 0.70

The questionnaires' reliability can be tested according to TAVAKOL & DENNICK (2011) by comparing the questionnaires results with the threshold value which is 0.7. Table 10 shows that the reliability values for all the study variables are accepted according to the accepted value which is greater or equal to 0.7.

Vhla	T 4	Reliat	oility	D 14 /D
variable	Items	Millennials	Gen Z	Result/Pass
Perceived Usefulness	4	0.814	0.780	Yes
Perceived Ease of Use	3	0.762	0.784	Yes
Trust	2	0.908	0.812	Yes
Brand Image	3	0.705	0.798	Yes
Perceived Risk	3	0.868	0.910	Yes
Government Support	3	0.875	0.918	Yes
User Innovativeness	2	0.747	0.713	Yes
Attitude	3	0.852	0.897	Yes
Intention	2	0.878	0.916	Yes

Table 10. Reliability test/ Millennials & Gen Z

Source: Author's own work based on SPSS results

As shown from table 10, validity of the questionnaires was examined by coefficients correlation and the results for all dimensions were above 0.5, also, reliability of the instruments was tested by using Cronbach's Alpha coefficient and the result was found to be more than 0.7.

3.3. Conceptual Model

The overall objective of this thesis is to find out the readiness of the Palestinian Banks for the Fintech technology in the banking industry; through studying the Palestinian financial ecosystem, to discover the financial situation if it encourages the adoption of Fintech or it is a threat for the banks. Moreover, the study shows two main players in the ecosystem which are the main drivers to adopt Fintech in the market; these two players are Millennials and the Generation Z, these two generations have a significant impact on the Fintech adoption intention, it assists banks to discover their adoption intention and to tailor and digitize the current banks services to meet their needs to compete the current Fintech competitors in the market; as these companies targeted Millennials and Gen Z in the first line because of the high unbanked ratio in Palestine which is around 70% of the population.

So, the researcher used the extended Technology Acceptance Model to explore these generations intention to adopt the Fintech services, as it is an indicator for the banks and other Fintech companies about the market direction and trends toward these financial technology services as it is a guideline and strategy that lead all of them to provide these generations with suitable financial services that fit and satisfy their needs. Therefore, the researcher in this thesis formulated the conceptual framework to be the guide for the study as the follows in figures 13 and 14.

The researcher used the Structural Equation Modeling (SEM) by using AMOS software version 24 to examine the impact of E-TAM dimensions on these three internal variables from the same E-TAM model which are the most influenced dimensions in the E-TAM that affect Millennials and Gen Z Fintech adoption. These three variables are (Attitude, Perceived Usefulness, and Intention) considered as the dependent variables of the study; while the rest of the variables were independent variables. SEM is used in this study because it is one of the most efficient statistical methods which deals with the relationship between the study variables by using the covariance matrix, multiple regression, and path analysis tests (POOLTHONG & MANDHACHITARA, 2009). The researcher designed the conceptual models of this study for each generation based on these three determinants (Attitude, Perceived Usefulness, and Intention), in each model the researcher examined the impact of all of the E-TAM dimensions on these three variables and how could interpret the variables through the covariance matrix. Moreover, the researcher used the SEM

to measure the influence of independent variables on the study dependent variables. SEM estimates' calculations were used to predict the econometric equation for the study variables. The researcher designed the study conceptual models illustrated in the following two figures 13 & 14; the results in these two figures are based on the SEM analysis results (Path Analysis, regression weights, and the squared multiple correlations).



Figure 13. SEM Conceptual Model 1-2 (Millennials)

Source: Author's own construction (Derived from E-TAM)

Note: Numbers (0.626, 0.550, 0.589) obtained from the squared multiple correlations tables, while other number extracted from the Standardized Regression Weights tables (Appendix 2)



Figure 14. SEM Conceptual Model 2-2 (Gen Z)

Source: Author's own construction (Derived from E-TAM)

Note: Numbers (0.626, 0.550, 0.589) obtained from the squared multiple correlations tables, while other number extracted from the Standardized Regression Weights tables (Appendix 2)

3.4. Population

The population of thesis is divided into two main segments, Millennials are the generation of people born between 1981 and 1996 (DIMOCK, 2019) and Gen Z is the generation of people born 1997 onward (DIMOCK, 2019) in West Bank Area in Palestine. The questionnaires were distributed randomly via social media channels to achieve an acceptable sample size; it was in the form of e-Form questionnaire targeted people whom in the mentioned age. Moreover, for the Gen Z population, the researcher chose a very famous and popular location to distribute his e-Form questionnaire which is the Arab American University-Palestine (AAUP) with 12,000 students' population. It consists of a complete mix of students of the targeted age, the university has an optimal distribution of students according to the geographic location to reflect the Palestinian market opinion toward Fintech adoption intention. AAUP has been selected for the dedicated Gen

Z as it expresses exactly the required age group (18-24 years), location diversity, different cultures, and different financial behavior. While for Millennials the author targeted the bank users in West-Bank, Palestine (age group 25-40, 1.1217 Million, 22% of Population). The researcher targeted this age group through social media channels, the main social media channels used to distribute the survey are FB and LinkedIn, and the researcher collaborated with a specialist in social media to target this group, the researcher aimed to target the employees within this age segment as the majority have a bank account and Fintech experience. Appendix 1 (Palestine Population) shows the demographic distribution and the number of the population per each group and location.

The researcher also used the technical interview technique (this type of interview used with IT specialists because the interview is related mostly to IT categories) to explore the pioneer Palestinian banks in Fintech adoption and their readiness for the Fintech cutting-edge technologies to adopt and digitize the latest financial technologies in the banking industry, so the researcher holds interviews with three pioneer banks in this domain (Fintech Industry), actually the banks' top management insisted to keep their names hidden due to the sensitive data that they provide for this research. The researcher selected one Islamic bank which is the highest reputed bank in Palestine and it has a significant impact on the digital financial industry in Palestine. Whereas the author selected two Palestinian commercial banks within the same criteria as the Islamic Bank. There are 14 registered banks in Palestine (table 11) according to the Palestinian Monetary Authority, local and foreign, there are 7 foreign banks and 7 local banks. There are three Islamic Banks from the local banks, Palestine has no international foreign Islamic Banks. The questionnaires were limited for the Palestinian Banks because it is hard to make a sensitive interview about this topic with an international bank, it needs high coordination and negotiation with their top management to accept, and also all their headquarters are out of Palestine it needs high logistician efforts. Banks in Palestine employ around 8,587. Table 11 shows the banks' list.

Number	Bank Name	# of Employees	# of Branches	Classification Local/ Foreign
1	Bank of Palestine	2,326	98	Local
2	Arab Bank	923	32	Foreign
3	The National Bank	1,296	73	Local

Table 11. Banks in Palestine

4	Quds Bank	741	39	Local
5	Palestine Islamic Bank	664	45	Local
6	Arab Islamic Bank	595	25	Local
7	Cairo Amman Bank	514	22	Foreign
8	The Housing Bank for Trade & Finance	279	15	Foreign
9	Bank of Jordan	344	20	Foreign
10	Palestine Investment Bank	272	20	Local
11	Jordan Ahli Bank	218	10	Foreign
12	Jordan Commercial Bank	138	7	Foreign
13	Safa Bank (Islamic Bank)	127	9	Local
14	Egyptian Arab Land Bank	150	7	Foreign
	Total	8,587	422	-

Source: Author's own work

3.5. Sample size

The researcher used the stratified sampling to insure the equitable presentation for the study targeted population for the two questionnaires. Thesis sample size identified according to KREJCIE & MORGAN (1970) equation as the following:

Study minimum sample size (n)

$$(n) = p\% \times q\% \times [\frac{z}{e\%}]^2$$

Where:

"n : the sample size required
p% : the proportion belonging to the specified category
q% : the proportion not belonging to the specified category
z : the z value corresponding to the level of confidence required
e% : the margin of error required"

"The adjusted sample size n is calculated as:" $n \div \{1 + \lfloor \frac{n}{N} \rfloor\}$

Where:

"n: the sample size N: the total population" The sample = $50\% \times 50\% \times [1.96/5\%]^2$ = 384.16

The University Population (Arab American University- Palestine) is 12,000 students.

The adjusted sample size $=384.16 \div \{1 + [384.16/12,000]\}$

Minimum Sample size = 372 observations, and the minimum number will be 385 samples for any population size.

A number of 600 questionnaires distributed to respondents for both generations. A number of 589 respondents out of the total 600 have been retrieved, 29 questionnaires have been discarded due to the corruption in data, so 560 questionnaires were adopted for the analysis for Gen Z population. The response rate is 98%. While for Millennials, 600 questionnaires distributed via social media, 568 have been retrieved, 18 have been discarded due to the corruption in data, so the response rate is 95%, so 550 questionnaires were adopted.

3.6. Method of data analysis

The researcher used SPSS version 25 (the statistical package for social science) and AMOS version 24 (Analysis of Moment Structures) for data analysis. The researcher checked that study data for entry errors and ensured the stability and the accuracy of data. The study used the parametric tests to assess the relationship between the study variables. The parametric tests were used for this purpose as the following: Frequency test used to describe the demographic variable, mean and standard deviation used for the research questions, one sample T test to test part of hypotheses, where AMOS used to find the correlations among the study variables to examine the relationship between variables, Path Analysis, and squared multiple correlations were used to examine the significant impact of the E-TAM model on Millennials and Gen Z Attitude/Perceived Usefulness/Intention of Fintech Adoption.

4. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

4.1. Participants' Social Profile

This study will reflect the Financial Behavior and the Fintech Adoption Intention among two Generations in Palestine, Millennials (born between 1981-1996) & Generation Z (1997 onward) in Palestine.

The study was based on a full structured questionnaire distributed to more than 600 persons under the target population of this study basis on these two categories on the base of a sample random sampling technique. For the Gen Z questionnaire; the targeted population is the students of the Arab American University in Palestine, West Bank Area.

Social Pro	file	Millenr	nials	Valid N	Gen	Valid N				
Items	Dimensions	Frequencies	%		Frequencies	%				
Sau	Male	297	54.0%		263	47.0%				
Sex	Female	253	46.0%		297	53.0%				
	500-1599									
	NIS	48	8.8%		74	13.2%				
Monthly Income	1600-2599	89	16.1%		74	13.2%				
	2600-5000	225	41.0%		220	39.2%				
	>5000	188	34.1%		192	34.4%				
Own Bank	Yes	526	95.6%		346	61.8%				
Account	No	24	4.4%		214	38.2%				
	I don't									
	have Bank									
	Account	19	3.4%		174	31.1%	0			
	I don't			550			560			
	Use it	199	36.1%		248	44.3%				
e-banking Usage	Once a									
	Month	134	24.4%		69	12.3%				
	Twice a									
	Month	32	5.9%		27	4.8%				
	3+ Times									
	a Month	166	30.2%		42	7.5%				
	Yes	550	100.0%		560	100.0%				

Table 12. Participants' Social Profile

Own							
Smartphone	No	0	0.0%	0	0.0%		
Tuition Fees Payment Method	NA	318	58.0%	0	0.0%		
	Cash	121	22.0%	426	76.0%		
	Money						
	Transfer	105	19.0%	128	23.0%		
	Cheque	6	1.0%	6	1.0%		

Source: Author's own work

4.2. Analysis of Participants' Social Profile

- Table 12 shows that around 40% of Gen Z is Unbanked, it is a positive indicator for both banks and Fintech companies to target this segment.
- Around 45% of Gen Z don't use e-Banking service (the following four sentences interpret this statement)
- It means that there are no awareness programs from the bank side to encourage and motivate the usage of e-banking services.
- This segment has no knowledge or information about the advantage of using this kind of e-service.
- The bank advantage in cost reduction when this segment directed to use this e-channel.
- Around 12% of Gen Z use e-banking once a month; it has many indicators for banks, Did the banks meet their needs and wants through e-banking? Did they provide the exact service to use via e-banking? Is it easy to use? Is it an effective tool to use (time-saving, 24h availability, user friendly... Etc.)?
- Around 36% of the Millennials don't use e-banking service, it is a negative indicator for both banks and Fintech companies to target this segment (the following four sentences interpret this statement)
- It means that percentage is a burden for banks and Fintech companies, it indicates that this segment has no interest to use e-channels, it is a bad indicator for Fintech companies, if this percentage will not be treated and to direct them to use the e-services in the future they will lose the financial benefits generated from their usage.
- On the other side, it will be hard then to adopt the new technologies associated with their financial services.

- It is a chance for Fintech on the optimistic side, that they can target this segment to provide them with easy and simple financial solutions that meet their needs.
- It deserves to evaluate the effectiveness and the efficiency of the provided e-services in order to achieve routes that will guide the banks about the suitable services and channels that will fit the customer's needs.
- Around 61% of Millennials use e-banking either once/twice/ +3 a month; it indicates that the majority of users use the e-banking services (the following three sentences interpret this statement):
- The positive indicator for Banks; banks could attract millennials (with no e-services experience) to adopt the e-services in the future, and they are the winning marketing tool to encourage others to use these services, the word-of-mouth marketing strategy is still the most effective marketing strategy in Palestine and WW.
- The negative indicator, these types of users already used and have feedback about the usage of e-services, they have the knowledge, feedback, suggestions, and their own experience; so, Fintech companies can attract them (positive indicator for Fintech) to use their services as it is brand new services in the financial services that depend on the availability of technology and the ability to use this technology. So, Fintech can provide them with the exact products and services that meet their needs.
- Another negative indicator, this segment (61%) could be underbanked in the near future, they will quit using banks services to use the Fintech services due to many reasons, ease of use, 24h service availability, feasibility, profitability if it is related to a wealth management module that provided by Fintech companies.

For Fintech companies, it is the chance to exploit this segment:

- Data shows that all the sample own smartphone by (100%).
- It is one of the main indicators that Fintech relies on to penetrate the market and spread its services.
- The other Indicator is the percentage of unbanked/Underbanked Gen Z and Millennials, the recent financial inclusion studies show that more than 50% of the Palestinians are unbanked.

• The important note is around 25% of Gen Z and 19% of Millennials transfer money to pay their tuition fees, which means it is a great opportunity to push them to pay these fees via e-Wallet.

For Banks, there is a good indicator, actually it is a critical one which needs higher negotiation skills and capital to enhance and empower their appearance in the Higher Education Organizations:

- Data shows that the majority of Gen Z have a bank account in the bank that has an appearance in the same university (43% the dominance of one bank compared with others) so it is a major role that the bank can play to increase its market share among this generation and promote its services.
- Banks have the opportunity to adopt the Fintech role to invest or establish this kind of services under the umbrella of Fintech services under the control of the bank (partnership, cooperation, investment, acquisition business model with Fintech companies).

For Fintech, it is also a good indicator, actually this point also enhances the idea behind fintech companies to target the students in the Universities, if they will establish contacts with the top management of these institutes to open e-Wallet account for the unbanked segment as the first priority, then opening new virtual accounts for students who already have a bank account.

4.3. Analysis of Participants' Financial Behavior & Fintech Perception

Table 13 shows the analysis results for both Millennials and Gen Z Financial behavior and Fintech perception.

Item	Millennials	Gen Z	Notes					
Most	Reliability/Trust	Ease of Use	Let your services easy to use to be					
Important	45%	46%	adopted by Gen Z					
About	Essa of Usa	Doliobility/Trust	While investing in your trust image with					
Financial	Lase 01 Use	250/	Millennials and let your services easy to					
Services	40%	33%	use					
Financial	Branch Visit	Branch Visit	Gen Z: Lower Trust indicated higher					
Services	50%	62%	visits to the bank itself					
Access	Mobile Banking	Mobile Banking	Millennials: Higher Trust, leads to higher					
(Method)	29%	17%	mobile banking usage					
Using Banks			Higher Trust with Millennials leads to					
Services	65% A gree	50% A gree	higher use of bank services					
rather than	05% Agree	J970 Agree	While lower trust leads to higher					
Fintech			intention to use Fintech services					
	Cash 580/	Cash 800/	Lower # of Banks Account holders (Gen					
	Cash 38%	Cash 80%	Z) leads to use cash intensively					
Payment	Debit/Credit	Debit/Credit	Affording Millennials Debit/Credit cards					
Method	Card 30%	Card 18%	leads to higher card payments					
(Frequently)		I	Fintech Advantage (Chance): to use e-					
			wallet service to migrate cash users into					
			e-payment through e-wallet					
Fintech	480/	280/	Good Indicator for Fintech industry to					
Awareness	48%	38%	start in the Palestinian market					
	9% Active	6% Active						
Using	Users	Users	Using Online Payment Services					
Fintech	46% User	25% Users						
services		1	e-Payment service is needed by these two					
			segments in the market					

 Table 13. Results Comparison between Millennials & Gen Z (1-4)

Source: ABU DAQAR et al. (2020)

Table 14. Results Comparison between Millennials & Gen Z (2-4)

Item	Millennials	Gen Z	Notes				
Prefer Using e- Wallet to access work Payroll	88%	NA	Opportunity for Fintech to provide e- Wallet service for companies and organizations Opportunity for companies and organization to reduce costs and getting rid of indemnity				
Using e-Wallet to pay tuition fees	84% want it	84% want it	It shows that e-Wallet service is needed in the market, it promotes Fintech services				
Prefer Real-time Service	87% Agree	70% Agree	The majority need real-time financial services, which means Banks specifically need to highly invest in technology to achieve this milestone in their financial services Fintech opportunity to provide solutions and services to grant banks this kind of service				
Need an Instant Money Transfer (Previous situation)	50% faced this situation	47% faced this situation	This means the market in need for an instant money transfer service				
What do you think	48% Complemen tary	45% Complementary	Majority said Fintech companies is playing complementary role				
about Fintech?	19% Competitor	32% Competitor	We conclude that Gen Z is dominant to adopt Fintech services in the market				
What service let you quit your bank	Better Service,	Better Service, Ease of Use &	We conclude that both Generations agreed that Fintech services could				

to use Fintech	Ease of Use	Speed of	guarantee these three categories of
services?	& Speed of	Service	Fintech features compared with banks
	Service		services

Source: ABU DAQAR et al. (2020)

Table 15. Results Comparison between Millennials & Gen Z (3-4)

Item	Millennials	Gen Z	Notes			
Fintech Services Security through Mobile	63% Secured	56% Secured	It means that security issue perception toward fintech services is granted, no problem with security issues			
Financial Trust (Banks)	86% trust banks	82% trust banks	It means that Banks have a solid base and could promote Fintech services with the cooperation with Fintech companies, and they could promote new financial services competing fintech companies			
The Benefit of Mobile	61% Time- Saving	41% Time- Saving	Millennials looking for time- saving in accessing financial services			
Banking Services	25% 24h Access	30% 24h Access	Gen Z looking for the service availability to be 24h			
Fintech Services	62% think so	66% think	It shows that all generations have a positive perception that Fintech services are cheaper			
Services	02 <i>%</i> unitk so	SO	It means that they have the intention to adopt the Fintech services			
Promotion is a driver for e-Banking usage?	90% agreed	90% agreed	We conclude that promotion is a key factor to promote and encourage the usage of e- Banking services			
Financial Services want to use at Mobile	63% Payment Services	58% Payment Services	Banks and Fintech must target the payment category			

26% Wealth Management	24% Wealth Management	It a surprising result, banks said customers have no interest in these services, but in fact, it is the contrary
6% Robot Advisor	14% Robot Advisor	Customers want a personal financial consultant to manage their financial issues

Source: ABU DAQAR et al. (2020)

Table 16. Results Comparison between Millennials & Gen Z (4-4)

Item	Millennials	Gen Z	Notes
	e-Bills Payment	Purchasing via e- commerce	Millennials prefer the four
Which e-Wallet service	Purchasing via e-commerce	Deposit and Withdraw	categories with the same priority
wants to use?	Deposit and Withdraw	e-Bills Payment	Gen Z prefer these four
	Money Transfer	Internet & Mobile top- up	categories (the first category has the main priority)
	Mobile Phone	Mobile Phone	Millennials prefer the four
Type of Bills you want to pay on Mobile?	Mobile Charge top-up	Mobile Charge top- up	categories; mobile phone bills are the highest among them
	Goods for Work	Tuition Fees	Gen Z prefer these four categories mobile phone bills is
	Others	Others	the highest among them
Daily Mobile Apps Usage	The majority of Millennials 53.3% using mobile apps on daily basis between 70- 100%	71.2% of Gen Z using mobile Apps daily, between 70- 100%, The notable issue is 21.7% of them using apps on this percentage 90-100%	The results indicate that Gen Z have more app experience and usage than Millennials, it helps banks and Fintech to target them toward using mobile app services

Source: ABU DAQAR et al. (2020)

4.4. Questions Results

Q1: To answer the thesis question: "What is the readiness level of the Palestinian Banks for the Fintech requirements in the financial digital transformation?"

To answer this question the author depends on the last cutting-edge standards of Fintech core technologies that a bank should establish to create the base of Fintech services in Future as a competitive advantage. The readiness is completely based on the technology base of Fintech. The six Categories of Fintech Core technology as follows:

The author used the categories mentioned in table 1 to check the compliance of the three main operated banks in Palestine investing in Fintech services along with their high interest in adopting the latest technology to digitize the traditional banking services into pure automated services.

Sub - Cat	Ren & I	1. nittar Paym	ices ent	Sub - Cat	2. I	Big Da & AI	ata	Sub - Cat	3. Ba	Digit ankir	al 1g	Sub - Cat	4. Lending & Sub Alternative Financing		b Alternative Financing Cat		5. Security & Risk Management			Sub - Cat	Bla Se	6. ockch ervice	ain es
ego	Ba	Ba	Ba	ego	Ba	Ba	Ba	ego	Ba	Ba	Ba	ego	Ba	Ba	Ba	ego	Ba	Ba	Ba	ego	Ba	Ba	Ba
ry	nk	nk	nk	ry	nk	nk	nk	ry	nk	nk	nk	ry	nk	nk	nk	ry	nk	nk	nk	ry	nk	nk	nk
	A	В	С		A	В	С	_	A	В	C		A	В	C		A	B	C		A	В	C
1.1	Х	Х	Х	2.1	Х	Х		3.1	Х	Х	Х	4.1	Х	Х	Х	5.1				6.1	Х	Х	Х
1.2	\checkmark	\checkmark		2.2	х	х	х	3.2	х	х	х	4.2	Х	Х	Х	5.2	х			6.2	х	х	Х
1.3	Х		х	2.3	х	Х	\checkmark	3.3	\checkmark	\checkmark	Х	4.3	Х	Х	Х	5.3				6.3	х	х	Х
1.4	Х			2.4	х	Х	Х	3.4	\checkmark	\checkmark		4.4				5.4		х		6.4	х	х	Х
1.5			х	2.5		Х	Х	3.5	х	х	Х	4.5	Х	Х	Х	5.5		х	Х	6.5	х	х	Х
1.6	\checkmark	\checkmark		2.6	х	х	х	3.6	\checkmark	\checkmark										6.6	х	х	Х
Tot	50	83	50		17	0	33		50	50	33		20	20	20		80	60	80		0	0	0
al	%	%	%		%	%	%		%	%	%		%	%	%		%	%	%		%	%	%
AV																							
G		61%				17%				44%				20%				73%				0%	

 Table 17. Banks' Compliance with Fintech Core technologies

Source: Author's own construction

Table 17 shows the results based on these categories and subcategories as illustrated in table 1, it expresses how banks use/adopt these technological requirements to compete the massive competition imposed by the Fintech companies worldwide:

- The two categories that banks in Palestine have an impact are (Remittances & Payment and Security & Risk Management); these categories are the core functions and the standard systems required to provide financial services for the clients. It is clear that banks have many differences in this category, API development, Third-party integration are the main sub-category functions that banks need to invest in and to adopt such technology to provide the associated services with this technology in their internal systems. While one of these banks has a better recognition for the fast pace of disruptive technology in Financial services; so, these banks has the solid base to establish the required services and to respond immediately to any competition or to fulfill the client's requests. While all banks missing the Omnichannel payment feature; it helps the bank clients to operate all types of payments either locally or internationally in one place, in one platform in the bank itself through its digital platforms. The majority of these banks achieve 50% of the required technology to better compete in the market and achieving higher customer base through providing the competitive services aligned with the customer's needs.
- For the second category (Security & Risk Management); the security requirements were mostly fulfilled by banks as it's the core and the obligatory requirements for the safety of the financial transactions, the majority of the banks are a little bit behind the risk management technology; as Advanced Risk System and Fraud Detection, they need to enhance their entire system to embed it with the latest technology that enables their systems to discover the risk issues automatically through the financial transactions.
- Digital Banking: the results show a shocking result in this category where the majority of these banks are within the threshold, and others didn't meet at least the threshold of the requirements for digital banking. It's clear that there are weaknesses in their digital banking systems; the systems didn't support the Personal Financial Management, Onboarding New Customers & Banking Data Aggregation APIs. Through the structured questionnaire in this study; both generations (Millennials & Gen Z) agreed that they need the personal financial management services to be provided in their digital financial services, and though these results based on the interviews with the banks; they have no features support this service in their digital services. The current banking system didn't support the digital acquisition of new customers; for example, the long account opening procedure makes it

difficult for the customer to spend much time and to sign dozens of papers to open and account; taking into consideration some of the challenges that prohibit banks to adopt the full digitizing acquisition procedure is that the digital signature still not validated in Palestine. While Data Aggregation APIs mean that the client will Integrate his financial solutions through an API to avoid the need to collect banking data to access services; all banks have no access to this technology in their systems.

- Big Data & AI: The majority of banks have no intelligent systems for Big Data Analysis and Artificial Intelligence systems embedded in their banking software's and systems; where predictive analytics and data-driven decisions are the core of AI and Big Data systems. Some banks have the experience to adopt business intelligence systems and they are using these systems but not it's not a full AI system, it's a platform linked with the banks' systems to retrieve data and start analyzing these data but it doesn't give solutions and predictions.
- Lending & Alternative Financing: Banks have no access and have no systems and technology to enter the lending space and the other supply chain financing services either locally and internationally; these results aligned with the same results that the author obtained when he did a deep interview with PMA (Palestinian Monetary Authority) it is the government body which is responsible on all banks issues stating from the regulations and ending with their services; crowdfunding and P2P lending is still not validated in Palestine so it is a weakness in the overall financial system in Palestine.
- Blockchain Services: The banks in Palestine still far away from this technology to be implemented in Palestine, due to the high cost of this technology besides to it needs that the government in Palestine to establish and create the infrastructure for this technology in order to be adopted by the banks in Palestine, without this intervention the banks will not be able to use this technology in their financial services.

The Answer to the question: We conclude that the banks' readiness for the Fintech era is around 35%, which is classified as a low level of readiness. (Mainly two categories out of six are applicable to meet the Fintech requirements in the banking financial technology).

Q2: What is the Attractiveness level of the Palestinian Market for Fintech Services?

This question has been answered through interviews with the bank's top management, there is a consensus that the Palestinian market is attractive for Fintech services; there is something which is the main pillar of Fintech to target a market which is the unbanked ratio in the county, in Palestine the unbanked ratio is 70%, which means that this segment has no bank account, they are the target segment for these companies to acquire them in new Fintech services. We can conclude that level of attractiveness is High due to the high percentage of the unbanked in Palestine. Furthermore, there are feasibility studies that show the feasibility of these Fintech services in the Palestinian market. These studies are based on business intelligence software that measures the potential of these services according to the customers' financial behavior. The banks didn't provide any specific data in this regard because of its sensitivity in the market.

Q3: What is the usage level of Fintech Services among Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine?

The results reflect the two generations usage behavior for Fintech services, it was clear that the usage is low according to the low scores that both generations scores regarding the usage behavior (the only method I used for e-payment, I use it frequently), Millennials is 19% while Gen Z is 11.4%.

Q4: What is the intention level of Fintech Services usage among Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine?

The results from the questionnaires show that the Intention level of Fintech services usage is high among the two generations. (Millennials, Gen Z), (M=4.0732., SD=0.5596), (M=4.1297., SD=0.8252) respectively.

Q5: What is the Government Support level for Fintech Services in Palestine from the Millennials and Gen Z point of view?

The results show that the Government Support level of Fintech services in Palestine is medium among the two generations. (Millennials, Gen Z), (M=3.216., SD=0.867), (M=3.165, SD=0.979) respectively. The results were expected from the respondents; actually, Fintech services need the Government Support to provide a suitable infrastructure in terms of the technical part as

blockchain infrastructure. Furthermore, the Political situation plays a significant role in these kinds of services in Palestine; so, government intervention is needed to provide a solid base for the international companies to invest in this technology in the country, banks and Fintech companies will be the direct parties who involved in this intervention to gain benefits and to secure their business to meet the cutting-edge technology in the financial services.

4.5. Hypotheses Results

Hypothesis 1

H1: Government Support plays a significant role in supporting the Fintech in Palestine (From the Millennials and Gen Z point of view)?

One sample t-test was used to examine the first hypothesis (Government Support plays a significant role in supporting the Fintech in Palestine) in table 18, with a 95% level confidence, table 17 shows that Government Support from the Millennials and Gen Z point of view (mean=3.216, SD=.8678 (mean=3.165, SD=.979) respectively wasn't significantly different from 3.67 (cut point), (t= 53.064, p=0.000) (t= 47.035, p=0.000) respectively. The results support the null hypothesis which means that Government support doesn't play a significant role in supporting the Fintech in Palestine (From the Millennials and Gen Z point of view.

Table 18. The results of one samp	ole t test for Government Support
-----------------------------------	-----------------------------------

Concretions	Dimonsion	Moon	Std.	Mean	T-	P –
Generations Dimension		Mean	deviation	differences	value	value
Millennials	Government	3.216	.8678	3.216	53.064	.000
	Support					
Gen Z	Government	3.165	.9797	3.165	47.035	.000
	Support					

Source: Author's own work based on SPSS results

Correlation coefficients among exogenous and endogenous variables.

The size of the value of the correlation coefficient was decided, for indicating the relationship strength between two variables. According to COHEN's standard (1962), the guidelines for assessing the relationship are showing in Table (19):

Table 19. The guidelines for assessing the relationship

Strength	Value
Small	0.10 to 0.29
Medium	0.30 to 0.49
Large	0.50 to 1.0

Source: Author's Own Construction adopted from COHEN (1962)

Hypothesis 2

H2: There is a significant relationship in exogenous and endogenous variables in the Fintech Adoption Intention for Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine

Table 20. Millennials Correlation coefficients among E-TAM variables

	Path Direction	on	Estimate
PEU	<>	PU	.580
PU	<>	TRU	.569
PU	<>	BI	.412
PU	<>	PR	.067
PU	<>	GS	.226
PU	<>	UI	.466
PU	<>	ATT	.620
PU	<>	INT	.588
PEU	<>	TRU	.584
PEU	<>	BI	.460
PEU	<>	PR	.044
PEU	<>	GS	.324
PEU	<>	UI	.369
PEU	<>	ATT	.501
PEU	<>	INT	.454
TRU	<>	BI	.419
TRU	<>	PR	.092
TRU	<>	GS	.431
TRU	<>	UI	.411
TRU	<>	ATT	.473
TRU	<>	INT	.478
BI	<>	PR	134
BI	<>	GS	.282
BI	<>	UI	.252
BI	<>	ATT	.360
BI	<>	INT	.372
PR	<>	UI	013
PR	<>	GS	339

PR	<>	ATT	.107
PR	<>	INT	.053
GS	<>	UI	.325
GS	<>	ATT	.240
GS	<>	INT	.347
UI	<>	ATT	.570
UI	<>	INT	.519
ATT	<>	INT	.722

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

Table 20 shows that the correlations between all Extended Technology Acceptance Model variables are seen positive except between (Perceived Risk & Government Support -0.339), Millennials see Perceived Risk of Fintech adoption is negatively correlated with the Government Support; it means the higher Government Support the lower Perceived Risk among all generations. The researcher can show the following results based on table 20, in Palestine, the Millennials Intention toward the Fintech adoption is highly correlated with their Attitude (0.722), Millennials Attitude also highly correlated with the Perceived Usefulness (0.620) of the Fintech services. The top three variables that are highly correlated with Millennials' Intention for Fintech adoption are (Perceived Usefulness, User Innovativeness & Attitude), which means that these variables highly predicted the Millennials' Intention to adopt Fintech services.

While the surprising fact that Perceived Risk has no place or effect on the Millennials Intention to adopt Fintech services; it means that the Perceived Risk toward these kinds of services hasn't any role in Millennials' adoption Intentions. Perceived Usefulness variable is the only variable among all variables that is highly correlated with all variables except with Perceived Risk that has no effect in Millennials adoption Intention of Fintech services. Millennials show that Government Support didn't play that important role to facilitate the mission for Fintech companies to provide the solid base that let these companies offer their Fintech services in the market; these results aligned with the first Hypothesis findings.

Path Direction			Estimate
PEU	<>	PU	.709
PU	<>	TRU	.600
PU	<>	BI	.619

Table 21. Gen Z Correlation coefficients among E-TAM variables

PU	<>	PR	.222
PU	<>	GS	.061
PU	<>	UI	.673
PU	<>	ATT	.769
PU	<>	INT	.728
PEU	<>	TRU	.652
PEU	<>	BI	.582
PEU	<>	PR	.154
PEU	<>	GS	.046
PEU	<>	UI	.641
PEU	<>	ATT	.667
PEU	<>	INT	.555
TRU	<>	BI	.429
TRU	<>	PR	.409
TRU	<>	GS	.155
TRU	<>	UI	.580
TRU	<>	ATT	.597
TRU	<>	INT	.552
BI	<>	PR	115
BI	<>	GS	.291
BI	<>	UI	.549
BI	<>	ATT	.610
BI	<>	INT	.620
PR	<>	GS	289
PR	<>	UI	.157
PR	<>	ATT	.202
PR	<>	INT	.195
GS	<>	UI	.214
GS	<>	ATT	.081
GS	<>	INT	.054
UI	<>	ATT	.758
UI	<>	INT	.663
ATT	<>	INT	.849

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

Table 21 shows that the correlations between all Extended Technology Acceptance Model variables are seen positive except between (Perceived Risk & Government Support -0.289), this result is aligned and typically similar with Millennials view, so both generations see Perceived Risk of Fintech adoption is negatively correlated with the Government Support; it means the higher Government Support the lower Perceived Risk among all generations. The researcher can conclude the following, In Palestine, Gen Z Intention toward the Fintech adoption is highly correlated with

their Attitude (0.849) which is the highest relation between variables, Gen Z Attitude also highly correlated with the Perceived Usefulness (0.769) of the Fintech services, the results also typically similar with Millennials view. The top three variables that are highly correlated with Gen Z Intention of Fintech adoption are (Perceived Usefulness, User Innovativeness & Attitude (0.728, 0.663, 0.849 respectively), which means that these variables highly predicted Gen Z Intention to adopt Fintech services.

Furthermore, Government Support doesn't play a significant role to encourage Gen Z to adopt Fintech services; it means that the Government Support from their point of view toward these kinds of services has a lower level. It means that the government has a limited engagement in this issue to support, encourage, and create the base for Fintech services in Palestine. Perceived Usefulness variable is the only variable among all variables that is highly correlated with all variables except with Government Support that has no role in Gen Z adoption Intention of Fintech services. Gen Z shows that Government Support didn't create the required Fintech ecosystem to push these services in the market.

Hypothesis 3

H3: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Attitude toward Fintech services in Palestine

Table 22. Squared Multiple Correlations (Millennials) H3

Variable	Estimate
ATT	0.626

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

The researcher concludes from table 22; by using SEM; the squared multiple correlations show a significant relationship exists between E-TAM variables in this model, in other words, it Indicates that the combination of E-TAM variables (**INT, PR, BI, GS, UI, PEU, TRU, PU**) significantly predict the Millennials Attitude in Fintech Services Adoption, also as R^2 = 0.626 which means that the independents' variables could explain 62.6% from the variation in the dependent variable "Millennials Attitude".

Variable	Estimate
ATT	0.814

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

The researcher concludes from table 23; by using SEM; the squared multiple correlations show a significant relationship exists between E-TAM variables in this model, in other words, it Indicates that the combination of E-TAM variables (**INT, PR, BI, GS, UI, PEU, TRU, PU**) significantly predict the Gen Z Attitude in Fintech Services Adoption, also R^2 = 0.814 which means that the independents, variables could explain 81.4% from the variation in the dependent variable "Gen Z Attitude".

Table 24. Regression Weights (Millennials) H3

	Path Direct	tion	Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р
ATT	<	PU	.194	.046	4.230	***
ATT	<	PEU	.099	.040	2.451	.064
ATT	<	TRU	.005	.028	.189	.850
ATT	<	BI	.032	.041	.775	.439
ATT	<	PR	.033	.027	1.223	.221
ATT	<	UI	.182	.036	5.080	***
ATT	<	INT	.413	.039	10.658	***
ATT	<	GS	035	.025	-1.388	.165

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

SEM (Path Coefficients) analysis was used to test if E-TAM variables significantly predicted the Millennials' Attitude in Fintech services adoption. The results indicated that the three predictors (Perceived Usefulness, User Innovativeness & Intention) explained 62.6% of the variance (R^2 = 0.626). It was found that PU significantly predicted Millennials Attitude in adopting Fintech services (β =.194, p< 0.001), as did UI & INT (β =.182, p< 0.001), (β =.413, p< 0.001) respectively.

The econometric model equation Based on table 24:

Millennials Attitude = 0.194 PU+ 0.182 UI + 0.413 INT

The interpretations of the significant independent variables:

- There is a direct impact between Millennials Attitude (ATT) and (PU, UI & INT), an increase in the following predictors' coefficients values (PU, UI & INT) by (1.94, 1.82 & 4.13) units respectively would increase Millennials Attitude by 10 units.
- But there is no impact for these predictor variables (PR, BI, GS, PEU, TRU) on Millennials Attitude.

Path Direction		Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р	
ATT	<	PU	.170	.037	4.641	***
ATT	<	PEU	.140	.035	4.035	***
ATT	<	TRU	.009	.028	.309	.757
ATT	<	BI	.006	.034	.179	.858
ATT	<	PR	.006	.022	.281	.779
ATT	<	GS	011	.024	444	.657
ATT	<	UI	.228	.028	8.179	***
ATT	<	INT	.486	.028	17.267	***

Table 25. Regression Weights (Gen Z) H3

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

SEM (Path Coefficients) analysis was used to test if E-TAM variables significantly predicted the Gen Z Attitude in Fintech services adoption. The results indicated that the four predictors (Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, User Innovativeness & Intention) explained 81.4% of the variance (R^2 = 0.814). It was found that PU significantly predicted Gen Z Attitude in adopting Fintech services (β =.170=, p< 0.001), as did PEU, UI & INT (β =.140, p< 0.001), (β =.228, p< 0.001), (β =.486, p< 0.001) respectively.

The econometric model equation based on table 25:

Gen Z Attitude = 0.170 PU+ 0.140 PEU+ 0.228 UI + 0.486 INT

The interpretations of the significant independent variables:

- There is a direct impact between Gen Z Attitude (ATT) and (PU, PEU, UI & INT), an increase in the following predictors' coefficients values (PU, PEU, UI & INT) by (1.70, 1.40, 2.28 & 4.86) units respectively it might increase Gen Z Attitude by 10 units.
- But there is no impact for these predictor variables (PR, BI, GS & TRU) on Gen Z Attitude.

Hypothesis 4

H4: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Perceived Usefulness of Fintech Adoption in Palestine from Millennials/Gen Z point of view

Table 26. Squared Multiple Correlations (Millennials) H4

Variable	Estimate
PU	0.550
a <u>1</u>	

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

The researcher concludes from table 26; by using SEM; the squared multiple correlations show a significant relationship exists between E-TAM variables in this model, in other words, it Indicates that the combination of E-TAM variables (**INT, PR, BI, GS, UI, PEU, TRU, ATT**) significantly predict the Perceived Usefulness of Millennials in adopting Fintech Services, also R^2 = 0.550 which means that the independents variables can explain 55% from the variation in the dependent variable "Perceived Usefulness".

Table 27. Squared Multiple Correlations (Gen Z) H4

Variable	Estimate
PU	0.70
~	

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

The researcher concludes from table 27; by using SEM; the squared multiple correlations show a significant relationship exists between E-TAM variables in this model, in other words, it indicates that the combination of E-TAM variables (INT, PR, BI, GS, UI, PEU, TRU, ATT) significantly predict the Perceived Usefulness of Gen Z in adopting Fintech Services, also R^2 = 0.700 which means the independents variables can explain 70% from the variation in the dependent variable "Perceived Usefulness".

Path Direction			Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р
PU	<	PEU	.197	.041	4.766	***
PU	<	TRU	.142	.028	5.041	***
PU	<	BI	.063	.042	1.497	.134
PU	<	PR	018	.028	641	.522
PU	<	GS	068	.026	-2.667	.008
PU	<	UI	.067	.037	1.838	.066
PU	<	ATT	.203	.044	4.637	***
PU	<	INT	.161	.040	4.048	***

Table 28. Regression Weights (Millennials) H4

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

SEM (Path Coefficients) analysis was used to test if E-TAM variables significantly predict the Millennials' Perceived Usefulness of Fintech services adoption. The results indicated that the five predictors (Perceived Ease of Use, Trust, Government Support, Attitude & Intention) explained 55% of the variance (R^2 = 0.550). It was found that PEU significantly predicted Millennials Perceived Usefulness of Fintech services adoption (β =.197, p<0.001), as did TRU, GS, ATT & INT (β =.142, p<0.001), (β =-.068, p=0.008), (β =.203, p<0.001), (β =.161, p<0.001) respectively.

The econometric model equation based on table 28:

Perceived Usefulness = 0.197 PEU + 0.142 TRU - 0.068 GS + 0.203 ATT + 0.161 INT

The interpretations of the significant independent variables:

- There is a direct impact between Perceived Usefulness (PU) and (PEU, TRU, GS, ATT & INT), an increase/decrease in the following predictors' coefficients values (PEU, TRU, GS, ATT & INT) by (1.97, 1.42, -0.68, 2.03 & 1.61) units respectively it would increase Perceived Usefulness by 10 units.
- But there is no impact for these predictor variables (INT, PR, BI, UI) on **Perceived** Usefulness.

Path Direction			Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р
PU	<	PEU	.255	.036	7.137	***
PU	<	TRU	.027	.028	.949	.343
PU	<	BI	.144	.035	4.094	***
PU	<	PR	.047	.023	2.068	.089
PU	<	GS	017	.024	693	.488
PU	<	UI	.064	.029	2.234	.225
PU	<	ATT	.180	.031	5.894	***
PU	<	INT	.158	.029	5.458	***

Table 29. Regression Weights (Gen Z) H4

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

SEM (Path Coefficients) analysis was used to test if E-TAM variables significantly predict the Gen Z Perceived Usefulness of Fintech services adoption. The results indicated that the four predictors (Perceived Ease of Use, Brand Image, Attitude & Intention) explained 70% of the variance (R^2 = 0.700). It was found that PEU significantly predicted Gen Z Perceived Usefulness of Fintech services adoption (β =.255, p<0.000), as did BI, ATT & INT (β = .144, p<0.000), (β = .180, p<0.000), (β = .158, p<0.000) respectively.

The econometric model equation based on table 29:

Perceived Usefulness = 0.255 PEU + 0.144 BI + 0.180 ATT + 0.158 INT

The interpretations of the significant independent variables:

- There is a direct impact between Perceived Usefulness (PU) and (PEU, BI, ATT & INT), an increase in the following predictors' coefficients values (PEU, BI, ATT & INT) by (2.55, 1.44, 1.80 & 1.58) units respectively it might increase Perceived Usefulness by 10 units.
- But there is no impact for these predictor variables (PR, GS, UI, TRU) on **Perceived** Usefulness.

Hypothesis 5

H5: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Intention for Fintech services adoption in Palestine

Table 30. Squared Multiple Correlations (Millennials) H5

Variable	Estimate
INT	0.589

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

The researcher concludes from table 30; by using SEM; the squared multiple correlations show that a significant relationship exists between E-TAM variables in this model, in other words, it indicates that the combination of E-TAM variables (**ATT, PR, BI, GS, UI, PEU, TRU, PU**) significantly predict the Millennials Intention in adopting Fintech Services, also R^2 = 0.589 which means the independents variables could explain 58.9% from the variation in the dependent variable "Intention".

Table 31. Squared Multiple Correlations (Gen Z) H5

Variable	Estimate
INT	0.762

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

The researcher concludes from table 31; by using SEM; the squared multiple correlations show that a significant relationship exists between E-TAM variables in this model, in other words, it indicates that the combination of E-TAM variables (ATT, PR, BI, GS, UI, PEU, TRU, PU) significantly predict the Gen Z Intention in adopting Fintech Services, also R^2 = 0.762 which means the independents variables could explain 76.2% from the variation in the dependent variable "Intention".

Table 32. Regression Weights (Millennials) H5

Path Direction			Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р
INT	<	PU	.206	.053	3.870	***
INT	<	PEU	024	.047	520	.603
INT	<	TRU	.015	.032	.472	.637
INT	<	BI	.066	.048	1.379	.168
INT	<	PR	.035	.031	1.111	.266
INT	<	GS	.102	.029	3.516	***
INT	<	UI	.080	.042	1.926	.054
INT	<	ATT	.554	.050	11.169	***

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

SEM (Path Coefficients) analysis was used to test if E-TAM variables significantly predicted the Millennials Intention in Fintech services adoption. The results indicated that the three predictors (Perceived Usefulness, Government Support & Attitude) explained 58.9% of the variance (R^2 = 0.589). It was found that PU significantly predicted Millennials Intention in Fintech services adoption (β = .206, p<0.001), as did GS & ATT (β = .102, p<0.001), (β = .554, p<0.001) respectively.

The econometric model equation based on table 32:

Intention = 0.206 PU + 0.102 GS + 0.554 ATT

The interpretations of the significant independent variables:

- There is a direct impact between Millennials Intention in Fintech services adoption (INT) and (PU, GS & ATT), an increase in the following predictors' coefficients values (PU, GS & ATT) by (2.06, 1.02, 5.54) units respectively it might increase Intention by 10 units.
- But there is no impact for these predictor variables (PR, BI, UI, PEU, TRU) on Millennials' Intention in Fintech services adoption.

Path Direction			Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р
INT	<	PU	.213	.044	4.869	***
INT	<	PEU	234	.041	-5.650	***
INT	<	TRU	.087	.033	2.640	.078
INT	<	BI	.239	.041	5.866	***
INT	<	PR	.012	.026	.462	.644
INT	<	GS	062	.028	-2.180	.069
INT	<	UI	.029	.033	.870	.384
INT	<	ATT	.693	.035	19.558	***

Table 33. Regression Weights (Gen Z) H5

Source: Author's own work based on AMOS results

SEM (Path Coefficients) analysis was used to test if E-TAM variables significantly predicted the Gen Z Intention in Fintech services adoption. The results indicated that the four predictors (Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, Brand Image & Attitude) explained 76.2% of the variance (R^2 = 0.762). It was found that PU significantly predicted Gen Z Intention in Fintech services adoption (β = .213, p<0.001), as did PEU, BI & ATT (β = -.234, p<0.001), (β = .239, p<0.001), (β = .693, p<0.001) respectively.

The econometric model equation based on table 33:

Intention = 0.213 PU - 0.234 PEU + 0.239 BI + 0.693ATT

The interpretations of the significant independent variables:

- There is a direct impact between Gen Z Intention in Fintech services adoption (INT) and (PU, PEU, BI & ATT), an increase/decrease in the following predictors' coefficients values (PU, PEU, BI & ATT) by (2.13, -2.34, 2.39, 6.93) units respectively it would increase Intention by 10 units.
- But there is no impact for these predictor variables (PR, GS, UI, TRU) on Gen Z Intention in Fintech services adoption.

The researcher summarized the study hypotheses, table 34 shows all the tested hypotheses and the result per each hypothesis if it is accepted or rejected.

No	Urmathagag	Result: Accepted / Rejected		
190.	Hypotheses	Millennials	Gen Z	
1	Government Support plays a significant role in supporting the Fintech in Palestine	Rejected	Rejected	
2	There is a significant relationship in exogenous and endogenous variables in the Fintech Adoption Intention for Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine	Accepted	Accepted	
3	There is a significant impact of TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Attitude toward Fintech services in Palestine	Accepted	Accepted	
4	There is a significant impact of TAM dimensions on Perceived Usefulness of Fintech Adoption in Palestine from Millennials/Gen Z point of view	Accepted	Accepted	
5	There is a significant impact of TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Intention for Fintech services adoption in Palestine	Accepted	Accepted	

Table 34. Summary of Study Hypotheses

Source: Author's own work

4.6. Findings Discussion

4.6.1. Questions Discussion

In this section, the researcher discussed each question in the thesis with the previous studies mentioned in the literature review.

Q1: "What is the readiness level of the Palestinian Banks for the Fintech requirements in the financial digital transformation?"

The researcher founds that the Palestinian banks' readiness for Fintech requirements in terms of the technological base is around 35%, which is classified as a low level of readiness. The Palestinian banks met the requirements of these two categories with above than 60% for all of them (Remittances & Payment, and Security & Risk Management). As a researcher I found that this is a weak point in this industry as banks dominating the financial industry in Palestine; other categories (digital banking, big data and AI, and blockchain technology) are important in the financial industry; regardless others may consider that they achieve a very good ranking in Payments and Remittances as this category formulated about 75% of Fintech adoption worldwide (EY,2019). This percentage changed in a rapid way since 2015 compared with 2019, the adoption was 18% (2015), 50% (2017), and 75% (2019); these percentages reflect how trends changed in this industry in the World Wide context; It means that financial institution needs to adopt other categories related to this industry to meet the requirements and the main functions of the digital transformation in the financial industry as consumers are the main key drivers for this transformation, as well-knowns consumer behavior changed periodically so banks and other financial institutions need plans to face this transformation in order to meet their consumers' needs and expectations and to be aligned with the market requirements and trends. It is considered as an opportunity and threat at the same time.

The researcher would like to point out one of his recent results about the role of Top Management in enhancing the quality of service and meeting the new customers' expectation; this result contributed to how the banks must be ready to listen to the market needs and have a keen hearing and also having the best intelligence tools to stay in the competition in the market and meet the customers' needs, top management commitment in the total quality management system (TQM) is the most influencing factor that affects the organizational competency and capacity for innovation (ABU DAQAR & CONSTANTINOVITS, 2020).

Q2: What is the Attractiveness level of the Palestinian Market for Fintech Services?

Fortunately, the researcher reached the top management who was involved in the banks strategic planning process to obtain the real image about the Palestinian market attractiveness for Fintech services from the banks' point of view; there is a consensus among all interviewees that the Palestinian market is attractive for Fintech services. The main driver for this attractiveness is the high percentage of the unbanked people in Palestine which is around 70% as mentioned earlier in the Literature Review section; it supports the banks' arguments to target this group with digital financial services based on the available technology in the country related to financial services, it helps the financial institution to increase their market share in the market and on the other side they will improve their financial services into competitive Fintech services that meet the consumer's needs (PMA, 2020). The researcher found that there is a high attractiveness level in the market for the Fintech services adoption by these financial institutions due to the high percentage of unbanked people. The researcher stresses that there is a pure opportunity banks need to exploit, as fast as they exploit this opportunity it will stay an opportunity; unless it will be a critical threat that other Fintech companies will exploit to target the unbanked people with their innovative and easy to use services.

Q3: What is the usage level of Fintech Services among Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine?

The Results reflect a low usage of Fintech services among these generations based on their scores; Millennials is 19% while Gen Z is 11.4%, this result hide two indicators for the financial industry in Palestine, the first one is the unavailability of Fintech services provided to the customers in the market, as the researcher mentioned earlier there was a low level of awareness among consumers in this regard, the other indicator the new Fintech comers (Fintech companies) have a clear image and solid base to establish their services because the rivalry in this context still have no place because there are no experts or established businesses who provide such services in this domain. ENVISIONIT (2018) stresses in their recent study that around 73% of respondents are more receptive to use Fintech services from well-known companies which is a real threat to banks that need to overcome and to find the best solutions to decrease the competition in this situation (ENVISIONIT, 2018).

Q4: What is the intention level of Fintech Services usage among Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine?

As the researcher mentioned earlier; awareness is different than intention toward Fintech services from his point of view, as it needs proof; the target group awareness in this study scored a low level while the intention level to adopt Fintech services scored a high level of intention; both generations showed high interest in Fintech services according to these scores; (Millennials, Gen Z), (M=4.0732., SD=0.5596), (M=4.1297., SD=0.8252) respectively. This result supports the fact that 73% of the target group have the intention to use Fintech services while 68% of them see that the way that we access money will be changed soon in the next five years (ENVISIONIT, 2018). The findings are aligned with the researcher's work through investigating the intention of Millennials and Gen Z for Fintech adoption, high Intention level recoded for both of them, while Millennials have the highest intention (ABU DAQAR et al., 2020). These results support that there is an opportunity for Fintech companies to exploit these trends and tendencies toward adopting Fintech services by Millennials and Gen Z, moreover, banks need to pay efforts to either compete with Fintech companies or to cooperate with them to develop and enhance their digital services to meet the consumers' needs.

Q5: What is the Government Support level for Fintech Services in Palestine from the Millennials and Gen Z point of view?

This study revealed that the Government Support level of Fintech services in Palestine is medium from the two generations' point of view. (Millennials, Gen Z), (M=3.2163., SD=0.8678), (M=3.1651, SD=0.9797) respectively. According to the researcher's background about the Fintech ecosystem in Palestine, the results were aligned with the actual situation about the Fintech support by the Government. Actually, Fintech services heavily rely on the Government Support to provide the accurate infrastructure in terms of the technical part as blockchain infrastructure to facilitate the mission for the service providers to push their innovative services through the digital channels. Furthermore, the Political situation plays a significant role in providing such services in this regard; the researcher analyzed the situation; it needs a government intervention to establish a solid base for international companies to direct their investment in this domain, banks and Fintech companies will be the direct beneficiaries who involved in this intervention to gain benefits and to secure their business to meet the cutting-edge technology in their financial services. Government support is the key pillar in Fintech adoption and one of the main reasons that affect the consumers' intention to
adopt Fintech services (YEE-LOONG et al. 2010, KIWANUKA 2015, MARAKARKANDY et al. 2017).

4.6.2. Research Hypotheses Discussion

In this section, the researcher will discuss the thesis hypotheses with the previous studies' hypotheses mentioned in the literature review.

Ha-1: Government Support plays a significant role in supporting the Fintech in Palestine (From the Millennials and Gen Z point of view)?

The results show that Government support doesn't play a significant role in supporting Fintech in Palestine from the Millennials and Gen Z point of view, both generations agreed that Government has no role in motivating or creating the suitable infrastructure that supports Fintech to provide these kinds of services to the market. The researcher result matches other researchers results; SÁNCHEZ -TORRES et al. (2018) found that Government Support has no significant impact on supporting the adoption of online financial services, these results compared with the degree level that government intervenes to support Fintech, in this study, the results show a low level of government intervention. Other studies show that higher government intervention will lead to higher Fintech support and adoption (YEE-LOONG et al. 2010, KIWANUKA 2015, MARAKARKANDY et al. 2017).

Ha-2: There is a significant relationship in exogenous and endogenous variables in the Fintech Adoption Intention for Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine

All study variables are positively correlated except between (Perceived Risk & Government Support), which means that Millennials & Gen Z see that the higher Government Support the lower Perceived Risk. The researcher results revealed that Millennials Intention toward Fintech adoption is highly correlated with Attitude, and also Millennials & Gen Z Attitude are highly correlated with Perceived Usefulness of Fintech services which is the same as Gen Z. The researcher found these three variables (Perceived Usefulness, User Innovativeness & Attitude) were the most highly correlated with Millennials & Gen Z Fintech Adoption Intention, it shows that these variables highly predicted their Fintech Adoption Intention. The most interesting results in this study are

Perceived Risk has no place or effect on Millennials Fintech Adoption Intention; it means that Perceived Risk has no role on their adoption intention which is a strong point and opportunity for banks and Fintech companies to exploit it to provide services in this domain without paying critical attention toward the perceived risk toward these services. Perceived Usefulness is highly correlated with all study variables except with Perceived Risk, it reflects truth and proof for banks and Fintech companies to tress delivering the benefits to consumers and instill these benefits in their minds.

Furthermore, Millennials & Gen Z see that Government Support didn't play any important role to facilitate the mission for Fintech companies to provide their services in the Palestinian market, the researcher concludes that Government Support didn't create the required Fintech ecosystem to push these services in the market, this result matches SÁNCHEZ-TORRES et al. (2018) results that Government support has no impact on Fintech adoption. The study results coincide with significant studies in this context, where perceived risk does not affect consumers attitude toward Fintech adoption (HU et al. 2019, JIN et al. 2019, MUÑOZ-LEIVA et al. 2017). Moreover, CHUANG et al. (2016) found that perceived usefulness is a key variable that positively affect the consumers attitude in Fintech adoption.

Ha-3: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Attitude toward Fintech services in Palestine

This study shows there is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on both Millennials and Gen Z Attitude toward Fintech Adoption, (Millennials R^2 = 0.626; Gen Z R^2 = 0.814) which means the independents' variables could explain 62.6%, 81.4% from the variation in the dependent variable "Millennials and Gen Z Attitude" respectively. Gen Z predictors highly predict the generations attitude rather than Millennials, it is a highly noted result complied with the most recent results by Forbes that Gen Z is the highest adopter for Fintech services and surpasses Millennials (FUSCALDO, 2020).

The researcher econometric model equation shows the following:

Millennials Attitude = 0.194 PU+ 0.182 UI + 0.413 INT

Gen Z Attitude = 0.170 PU+ 0.140 PEU+ 0.228 UI + 0.486 INT

There is a direct impact between **Millennials Attitude (ATT)** and (PU, UI & INT), an increase in the following predictors' coefficients values (PU, UI & INT) by (1.94, 1.82 & 4.13) units respectively it might increase **Millennials Attitude** by 10 units, while there is a direct impact between **Gen Z Attitude (ATT)** and (PU, PEU, UI & INT), an increase in the following predictors' coefficients values (PU, PEU, UI & INT) by (1.70, 1.40, 2.28 & 4.86) units respectively it would increase **Gen Z Attitude** by 10 units. The results show that Perceived Ease of Use plays a significant role in Gen Z attitude, which means that these generations need an easy and simple way to access these services compared with Millennials, this fact needs full consideration from banks and Fintech companies to promote their products on this basis. All the mentioned variables in this hypothesis that predict Millennials and Gen Z attitude in Fintech Adoption aligned with these researchers' results (CHUANG et al. 2016, JIN et al. 2019, HU et al. 2019, MARAKARKANDY et al. 2017).

Ha-4: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Perceived Usefulness of Fintech Adoption in Palestine from Millennials/Gen Z point of view

The researcher found that there is a significant impact of TAM variables on Perceived Usefulness of Fintech Adoption from both Millennials and Gen Z point of view, (Millennials R^2 = 0.550; Gen Z R²= 0.700) which means the independents' variables could explain 55%,70% from the variation in the dependent variable "Perceived Usefulness" respectively.

The researcher econometric model equation shows the following:

Perceived Usefulness (Millennials) = 0 .197 PEU + 0.142 TRU - 0.068 GS + 0.203 ATT + 0.161 INT

Perceived Usefulness (Gen Z) = 0.255 PEU + 0.144 BI + 0.180 ATT + 0.158 INT

There is a direct impact between **Perceived Usefulness** (**PU**) and (PEU, TRU, GS, ATT & INT) from Millennials point of view, an increase/decrease in the following predictors' coefficients values (PEU, TRU, GS, ATT & INT) by (**1.97, 1.42, -0.68, 2.03 & 1.61**) units respectively it might increase **Perceived Usefulness** by 10 units, while there is a direct impact between **Perceived Usefulness** (**PU**) and (PEU, BI, ATT & INT) from Gen Z point of view, an increasing in the following predictors' coefficients values (PEU, BI, ATT & INT) by (**2.55, 1.44, 1.80 & 1.58**) units

respectively it would increase **Perceived Usefulness** by 10 units. The common variable between these two generations that predict Perceived Usefulness is Perceived Ease of Use, it is a key result that shows that PEU is the main pillar that helps banks and Fintech companies to make their services simple, user friendly, and easy to use to attract consumers to adopt their Fintech services. These results match the findings of these research's that PEU highly predicts and affect Fintech adoption (RIQUELME & RIOS, 2010; SUM CHAU & NGAI, 2010; ABBAD, 2013).

Ha-5: There is a significant impact of E-TAM dimensions on Millennials/Gen Z Intention for Fintech services adoption in Palestine

The study shows that TAM variables significantly have an impact on consumers Intention in adopting Fintech Services from Millennials and Gen Z point of view, (Millennials $R^2 = 0.589$; Gen Z $R^2 = 0.762$) which means the independents variables could explain 58.9%, 76.2% from the variation in the dependent variable "Intention" respectively.

The researcher econometric model equation shows the following:

Intention (Millennials) = 0.206 PU + 0.102 GS + 0.554 ATT

Intention (Gen Z) = 0.213 PU - 0.234 PEU + 0.239 BI + 0.693ATT

There is a direct impact between Millennials **Intention** in Fintech services adoption (**INT**) and (PU, GS & ATT), an increase in the following predictors' coefficients values (PU, GS & ATT) by (**2.06, 1.02, 5.54**) units respectively it might increase **Intention** by 10 units, while there is a direct impact between Gen Z **Intention** in Fintech services adoption (**INT**) and (PU, PEU, BI & ATT), an increase/decrease in the following predictors' coefficients values (PU, PEU, BI & ATT) by (**2.13, -2.34, 2.39, 6.93**) units respectively it would increase **Intention** by 10 units. The researcher found that (Perceived Usefulness and Attitude) are the common variables among both generations that have the highest prediction impact on consumers intention toward Fintech adoption these results matched and aligned with these researchers results (LIFEN ZHAO et al. 2010, SHAIKH & KARJALUOTO 2015, p.129, ABOELMAGED & GEBBA 2013) which stressed that Attitude is highly associated and predict consumers intention toward Fintech adoption, moreover, consumers

Perceived Usefulness is also highly associated with consumers Intention toward Fintech adoption (CHANG et al. 2016, CARLIN et al. 2017).

4.6.3. Novel Results

The researcher contributed and added new scientific results for the Fintech context in both the local (the Palestinian context) and the global context, these results revealed though exploring the main measures that affect the Fintech adoption by the banking industry. Moreover, exploring the market attractiveness for Fintech services especially through studying the two specific segments groups which are Millennials and Gen Z, the following results show the researcher's contribution in each specific context.

a) Global Fintech Context Contribution

This study explored and measured the Fintech ecosystem in the banking context among the two main Fintech adopters which are Millennials and Gen Z, it combines for the first time in a study a comparison between these two generations in the Palestinian context and how it is different than the global context.

b) Banks Readiness Model for Fintech Adoption

This study has measured for the first time the banks' readiness to Fintech core technologies as the main threshold for Fintech adoption services (in the Palestinian Context). This Readiness Model is a unique indicator and a tool for the banks to measure and analyze their compliance with the Fintech core technologies in the world. The study measured the Palestinian Banks' readiness which is around 35% to the Fintech core technologies. This tool could be adopted in the global context.

c) Market Attractiveness of Fintech

The researcher revealed an indicator about the market attractiveness for Fintech services; the explored drivers that are linked with higher market attractiveness are the percentage of the unbanked segments in the country (higher unbanked ratio leads to higher Fintech adoption intention), and the penetration of the digital gadgets especially the smartphone ownership in the country, these two drivers are the main triggers that will give a clear indicator for any market attractiveness for Fintech adoption. The researcher concluded that lower financial inclusion leads

to higher Fintech adoption especially in these two segments (Millennials and Gen Z); these segments are the highest among other segments in the market for Fintech adoption.

d) Fintech Ecosystem

Through the conceptual model the researcher aimed to explore the role of the Palestinian Government in Fintech Adoption from the Millennials and Gen Z point of view, both of them show that the Government has no significant impact to support Fintech infrastructure, this finding reflects a new imperial result that will be added to Fintech context. Millennials and Gen Z trust in Government plays an important role in Fintech adoption, the government has a technological responsibility to provide a solid base for Banks and Fintech companies to promote and invent new Fintech services in the market such as blockchain structure that facilitates a huge sector of Banks financial services such as money transfer and digital identity.

The study manifests that the Fintech adoption intention among these generations is extremely affected by their Attitude, which shows a significant scientific contribution that attitude is the main indicator that reflects the generations adoption intention of Fintech. The second issue proves that Millennials and Gen Z attitudes toward Fintech adoption highly associated with Perceived Usefulness; these novel results linked for the first time a real comparison between these generations and disclose that the two generations have the same interest in this regard.

The researcher contributed to finding the most significant elements that affect Millennials and Gen Z attitude based on the E-TAM model; Millennials attitude highly predicted by Perceived Usefulness, User Innovativeness, and their Intention. While for Gen Z; Perceived Usefulness, Perceived Ease of Use, User Innovativeness, and Intention. The researcher found that both generations in Palestine have three common dimensions that affect their attitude toward Fintech adoption, whereas Gen Z required the ease of use to highly adopt Fintech services. Furthermore, the User Innovativeness dimension has been highlighted as a common indicator and driver which is directly associated with Attitude.

The researcher used a detailed approach which shows a novel investigation method that reveals the interrelated and inner connections among the E-TAM model for the first time in a study that combines the most Fintech adopters' segments in the society. Millennials perceived usefulness highly associated with Perceived Ease of Use, Trust, Government Support, Attitude, and Intention. While for Gen Z; Perceived Ease of Use, Brand Image, Attitude, and Intention.

These results are clarified the main difference between Millennials and Gen Z perceived usefulness; Millennials affected by the Government Support intervention while Gen Z affected by the Band Image; this point shows why Gen Z is the highest Fintech adopters in the International context. These results are highly contributing and adding new novel results associated with the E-TAM model.

The researcher was able to provide a clear strategy for Fintech adoption especially for the main segments in this context which are Millennials and Gen Z; clear indicators and drivers have been connected and associated in the Fintech context to reveal the roadmap for the Fintech adoption requirements either through the generations adoption intention and the technological requirements in the market that are required to digitize the financial services to meet the customers' needs and expectations that are aligned with the global Fintech context.

e) The Highest adopting segments

The results show for the first time in a study that Millennials are the highest adopters for Fintech services than Gen Z (in the Palestinian context), the researcher studied both generations Financial behavior and Fintech perception; both of generations have a low awareness level of Fintech; these findings revealed the deficiency from the banks level to move toward the digital transformation infrastructure in their financial services. This fact is one of the significant indicators that will cause both generations to quit the traditional financial services into new digital and real-time financial services.

5. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1. Conclusion

In conclusion, the researcher will present the study main findings as conclusion. These results considered the key inputs for the financial industry, especially the banking and Fintech companies. The results reflect their readiness and awareness of Fintech Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine intention to adopt the Fintech services. The results also compare the situations and the adoption intentions among these generations. Finally, it measures the Palestinian banks' readiness to engage in financial digital transformation.

The aim of this thesis has been to look for new exploratory contributions that may clarify the true role of Millennials and Gen Z in driving the Fintech transformation in Palestine. Their intention to adopt Fintech services is an indicator for banks and Fintech companies to develop and enhance the financial services in the market. The thesis also studies the banks' readiness for this financial transformation by incorporating Fintech requirements. Furthermore, this section will explain the strategic plans for the financial institutions in Palestine; plans about the Fintech ecosystem that can help them to drive this transformation. It will be formulated in a way that lead these institutions to identify conceptions and practices needed to establish the required strategies and work plans; and how to promote the Fintech services that meet the consumers' needs and expectations.

In this section the researcher measured the Palestinian banks readiness for Fintech requirements. The pioneer banks scored 35% of their readiness for the international requirements to Fintech transformation and adoption. This result indicates a low level of readiness according to the measurement tool adopted in this study. Noteworthy is that banks scored their best performance in the Payment and Remittances category, which is considered the dominating category for Fintech worldwide functions. The majority of Fintech companies are focused on payment and remittances solutions for consumers. Hence, banks in Palestine had near a 60% readiness score in this domain. The researcher found that the Palestinian market is considered an attractive market for Fintech services industry. If they can attract financial institutions to invest in this domain, it will yield profitable results, based on the feasibility studies for earnings.

The study reveals that government support has no significant impact on Millennials and Gen Z intentions to adopt Fintech within Palestine. This is a critical finding since it is aligned with the questions and hypotheses in this study. Once the government's support is high, banks and other Fintech companies will have a safe and well-equipped infrastructure; a major requirement to move toward digitization in financial services. Then promotion of these services to the targeted group in the market, Millennials and Gen Z, moreover, it is aligned with lower Fintech usage.

The researcher has clarified the correlation between the study variables used in E-TAM model; the results show that there is a positive correlation between all variables except between perceived risk & government support. Millennials intention toward Fintech adoption is highly correlated with their attitude. Millennials & Gen Z attitudes are highly correlated with the perceived usefulness of Fintech services.

Perceived Usefulness, User Innovativeness & Attitude are the most highly correlated variables for Millennials & Gen Z inclinations to adopt. It means that these three variables highly predict the Fintech Adoption Intention, while Perceived Risk and Government Support have no role related to Millennials and Gen Z intentions to adopt Fintech. Perceived Usefulness is highly correlated with all study variables except for Perceived Risk. The study explains that there is a significant impact of E-TAM variables on both Millennials and Gen Z Attitude toward Fintech Adoption. These Gen Z predictors are highly predictive of that generations attitude, and more so than Millennials. In additions it shows a direct correlation between Millennials Attitude (ATT) and (PU, UI & INT). There is also a direct relationship between Gen Z Attitude (ATT) and (PU, PEU, UI & INT). Moreover, all mentioned variables (between brackets) are strong predictors for the Millennials and Gen Z attitude toward Fintech adoption.

E-TAM variables significantly have an impact on Government Support role in Fintech Adoption from the Millennials and Gen Z perspective. The results indicate a positive and strong linear relationship between Government Support and the predictors for Millennials; while for Gen Z it shows positive but a moderately linear trend. Also, there is a direct impact between Government Support Role (GS) and (PU, TRU, PR & INT)- Millennials view.

For Gen Z there is a direct impact between Government Support Role (GS) and (PEU, TRU, BI PR & UI). These results explain the significant differences between the two generations- the Millennial result indicate Perceived Usefulness, Trust, Perceived Risk and Intention as the best

predictors of Government support. In contrast, Gen Z results indicate Perceived Ease of Use, Trust, Brand Image, Perceived Risk, and User Innovativeness as strong predictors.

E-TAM variables have a significant influence on Perceived Risk for Fintech Adoption. This result also indicates differences between the two generations response to Perceived Risk for Fintech Adoption, with Gen Z having the highest perception.

The study explains that E-TAM variables have a significant impact on Perceived Usefulness of Fintech Adoption, according to both Millennials and Gen Z. In addition, Millennials see that these variables PEU, TRU, GS, ATT & INT predict Perceived Usefulness (PU), while for Gen Z PEU, TRU, GS, ATT & INT are the best predictors. Hence, PEU is generally a key pillar in consumers Fintech adoption.

It was clarified also that E-TAM variables have a significant impact on consumer intentions when adopting Fintech Services. Millennials believe also that these variables (PU, GS & ATT) highly predict positive intention in Fintech services adoption, while for Gen Z, these variables (PU, PEU, BI & ATT) have the highest impact. Also, this research work found that Perceived Usefulness and Attitude have the highest prediction impact on consumers intention toward Fintech adoption.

5.2. Recommendations

This is the first study in Palestine which investigates the Fintech ecosystem in the financial industry involving banks and Fintech companies. The research findings include indicators and valuable recommendations for the financial institutions in Palestine. These recommendations allow business owners in this domain to design their strategies and plans to meet the market trends, for both a local and international context. The researcher provides banks with the most cutting-edge readiness criteria required for banks to adopt Fintech transformations for delivery of their financial services. Moreover, it provides a threshold structure to compare themselves to this structure, and hence the ability to measure their readiness for this evolution.

Given the high unbanked ratio in Palestine; the researcher recommends banks in the first order to exploit this massive segment by attracting the unbanked segment to open virtual accounts. This approach is viable since the majority have smartphones. This tool is the key driver for banks to offer the Fintech services to potential consumers. The Fintech strategy is based on two pillars. The first is the unbanked people and the smartphone penetration ratio. Since the ratios are high, the Fintech adoption intention will be high among this segment. Hence it is recommended that banks promote the e-wallet concept to Millennials and Gen Z; especially since these generations are the early adopters for Fintech services worldwide. The study shows that Millennials have the highest intention to adopt Fintech services; and their use of Fintech services is higher than Gen Z.

The researcher also recommends banks and Fintech companies use e-wallet to facilitate the financial services for both generations. For example, Millennials indicate highly a preference for using e-wallet for payroll functions, along with payments transactions. They prefer the ease of 24-hour availability and access to real-time services. Moreover, the researcher recommends that banks should enhance their real-time systems to meet the consumers' needs. He found that this critical function, adopted by banks, can to meet the threshold requirements for real-time Fintech services.

It is recommended that banks spread the awareness to both their consumers and prospective customers about e-banking services. According to the study results, the e-services awareness (Fintech services) scored a low level of awareness. Therefore, it is the banks' best interest to design special awareness strategies and programs that target current consumers. Strategies that encourage them to use these services through a variety of channels. Branches should take the initiatives to train customers to use e-services. By expressing the high benefits mobile Fintech services that they will gain through their usage, awareness campaign; banks employees will target customers at their work places to explain the new e-services at their smartphones. On the other side banks recommended to dedicate awareness campaigns in universities, schools, higher education institutes, and colleges as it is the main target strategies to attract Gen Z, as the majority don't have bank account, e-wallet concept will be pushed on spot to show them the ease of use for this kind of services, and huge benefits that they will gain during the usage of e-wallet and how it facilitates their financial transactions; this segment is the most valuable segment as Gen Z became the highest Fintech adopters segment worldwide, they will attract their friends and families to use these services; they are the free marketing tool for the banks.

Banks highly recommended to use Fintech services and to digitize their services to be aligned with the international financial trends; it considered as a main reason to reduce their costs, the same to Fintech new companies in Palestine, they are highly advised to establish their businesses through targeting Millennials and Gen Z; as they are motivating and having the intention to use Fintech services; so Fintech companies have a significant potential opportunity to exploit the unbanked Millennials and Gen Z, and on the other hand they have another prospective segment which are the underbanked consumers, they can attract them to the most developed Fintech services that shortening their orders requests in their financial services.

Banks and Fintech companies must be alerted to these requirements based on Millennials and Gen Z positive feedback on Fintech adoption; the majority of Millennials and Gen Z. They desire financial services must be characterized by time saving and available 24 hour. These requirements are the key issues in the financial industry and must be taken into consideration when developing, or updating their services.

Banks have a great opportunity rather than Fintech companies as it considered a real threat for Fintech companies. Millennials and Gen Z have a credible view of banks. They indicate an 86% trust in level for banks, their systems, and applications; so, banks have strength to gain more trust from their consumers by attracting them to new beneficial services. This trend can help reduce the bank's costs and gain more profits in an indirect way. This argument is supported by the data: Millennials and Gen Z both believed that the Perceived Ease of Use and the Perceived Risk are most important variables for trust among financial institutions. With banks already reducing the perceived risk from the consumers' side, they can now concentrate on humanizing their financial services and enhance their usage perception.

Banks need to be aware of Millennials and Gen Z's current perceptions about the role (s) Fintech plays in the market. Around 20% of Millennials find that Fintech are the main competitors for banks, while 32% of Gen Z see them as competitors. This finding highlights a critical issue: Gen Z is the main segment intending to adopt Fintech services. While banks take advantage of this intention, Fintech should simultaneously act on this good opportunity to target them.

Banks and Fintech companies must realize that the physical presence of banks in the education institute have the greatest impact on attracting students to obtain an account. Around 43% of students have an account in the bank located in their education institute. This indicator is a pure opportunity to offer their Fintech services to these students. It also shows an opportunity for Fintech companies to establish cooperative services with banks by providing solutions to enhance e-services.

Fintech has another strong option; it can open new virtual accounts for the students to facilitate all their financial transactions. It can provide students with payment solutions, and money top up services that sends students an instant remittance. This helps him/ her to manage financial issues in either the education institute or in the market. This method is one of the country strategies to solve the liquidity issue in the market, according to many pioneer countries' practices in Sweden, for instance. Fintech companies could also provide point of sales and other shop markets with QR systems to facilitate the concept of using e-wallet in the market.

Another key indicator for Fintech adoption among Millennials and Gen Z is their support for Better Service, Ease of Use, and Speed of Service. Meeting these needs that can motivate them to quit accounts with their current banks and join a Fintech provider. It is a threat for banks and an opportunity for Fintech companies. Both parties could make a better service to obtain this segment based on their expressed needs and expectations. Banks and Fintech companies recommended to concentrate their attention toward Millennials and Gen Z preferred financial services available to their mobiles. For instance, around 60% want payment services, 25% want wealth management solutions, and 14% of Gen Z want robot advisor services. These results are the key drivers for banks and Fintech companies to tailor their e-banking and Fintech services when aligned with these categories; A surprising and noteworthy result is that wealth management has a great impact among these generations.

Financial institutions can pay less attention to perceived risk associated with Millennials and Gen Z Fintech adoption intention. Perceived risk has no impact or influence. It is aligned with other research results indicating perceived risk has no influence on intentions to adopt. Hence, these financial institutions have the opportunity to overcome this obstacle in adopting new technologies in the financial industry.

Finally, it is strongly recommended that banks and Fintech companies have a strategic view when studying and analyzing consumers and customers' Fintech adoption intentions. They have to stress concentration and focus on these categories' Perceived Usefulness and Attitude. They are highly associated with consumers/customers adoption intention. Moreover, they have to be aware enough to fully investigate the characteristics that affect and have an impact on their perceived usefulness and attitude toward Fintech services. Banks need to apply Artificial Intelligence (AI) solutions and systems to predict the consumers' characteristics. The researcher recommends that banks create

AI based decisions as a winning approach to utilize the Fintech industry. They can tailor their plans and strategies on perceived usefulness and attitude, because the results indicate these characteristics have the highest influence and impact on consumers/customers likelihood of Fintech adoption.

5.3. Research Limitations and Future Research Directions

The researchers aim in this study is to reveal the readiness of banks for Fintech adoption. The researcher was obliged to focus the study on banks sole based in Palestine. This choice is made because other banks operating in Palestine have a centralized management based outside the Palestinian Territories. For these banks, it was not possible to access the key managers for approval to interview the targeted people and departments. Furthermore, the local Fintech infrastructure is still in its first stage in Palestine. Hence, there is significant potential to enhance the banks capabilities and competences to take advantage of the Fintech digital transformation.

The researcher is looking to apply and measure the readiness model by other researchers in this context to reveal and discover the efficiency of this model on this particular context of the banks. Moreover, future research work is proposed; ideally with a thorough comparison between these two banks segments. A comprehensive view of local and international banks, operating in the same country, can reveal how these bank segments may successfully adopt, implement, and utilize Fintech services. Furthermore, the researcher was limited to include one country for this study which is Palestine; the sample size was exclusive for the Palestinian respondents.

6. THESIS SUMMARY

The objective of this thesis is to explore the Palestinian banks readiness to adopt Fintech. The thesis measures extensively the Fintech ecosystem in Palestine. These measures identify the adoption potentials by the main Fintech adopter groups- Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine. The researcher used the extended Technology Acceptance Model (E-TAM) to explore the Fintech Adoption Intention among both Millennials and Gen Z in Palestine. The researcher created a benchmark criterion to measure the Palestinian banks technological readiness for Fintech requirements. The main study instruments were utilized: an exploratory questionnaire and structured base interviews. Two distinct questionnaires were implemented, one for Millennials and the other for Gen Z. The researcher utilized the technical interview as part of the structured interviewes.

This thesis indicates novelty evidences. The results indicate that Palestinian bank readiness is at a 35% level for Fintech requirements. Also, banks score close to 60% within the compliance to payment, the most important Fintech category, globally. The data indicates banks have a high awareness level to Fintech (80-90%).

These results demonstrate that the Palestinian market can be considered very attractive for Fintech services. Millennials and Gen Z have a lower awareness level of Fintech, compared with the global awareness level for these two generations outside of Palestine. Hence, they are a high potential market within Palestine, with Millennials being more receptive to Fintech adoption than Gen Z. However, both groups have high adoption intention. Banks e-services considered not attractive to users compared with traditional services.

Results indicate that Government support and Perceived risk have no role on Fintech adoption intention for these generations. Perceived Usefulness and Attitude have the highest prediction impact on these consumer's intention to utilize Fintech services.

The researcher recommends banks and Fintech companies target unbanked people in Palestine, about 70% of all adults, by offering virtual accounts via e-wallet services. Banks definitely need to provide real-time services, along with 24-hour service availability. Promotion considered a key pillar in adopting e-banking services. It is further recommended that banks and Fintech companies customize their services to meet Millennials and Gen Z needs. AI systems can be implemented

within banks and Fintech systems to highly predict the consumers behavior, along with using AI for other data driven management decisions.

APPENDICES

References

- 1. ABBAD, M. (2013): E-banking in Jordan. *Behaviour & Information Technology*, 32(7), pp.681-694.
- ABD GHANI, M., RAHI, S., MANSOUR, M., ABED, H. & ALNASER, F. (2017): Determinants of Customer Loyalty: The Role of Service Quality, Customer Satisfaction and Bank Image of Islamic Banks in Palestine. *International Journal of Economics & Management Sciences*, 06(05), pp.1-4.
- 3. ABOELMAGED, M. & GEBBA, T. (2013): Mobile Banking Adoption: An Examination of Technology Acceptance Model and Theory of Planned Behavior. *International Journal of Business Research and Development*, 2(1), pp.35-50.
- 4. ABU DAQAR, M. & CONSTANTINOVITS, M. (2020): The role of total quality management in enhancing the quality of private healthcare services. *Problems and Perspectives in Management*, 18(2), pp.64-78.
- 5. ABU DAQAR, M. & SMOUDY, A. (2019a): The role of artificial intelligence on enhancing customer experience. *International Review of Management and Marketing*, 9(4), pp.22-31.
- 6. ABU DAQAR, M. & SMOUDY, A. (2019b): The impact of consumer buying behavior on customer relationship management in the banking sector. *International Review of Management and Marketing*, 9(4), pp.39-46.
- ABU DAQAR, M., ARQAWI, S. & ABU KARSH, S. (2020): Fintech in the eyes of Millennials and Generation Z (the financial behavior and Fintech perception). *Banks and Bank Systems*, 15(3), pp.20-28.
- 8. ABU DAQAR, M., CONSTANTINOVITS, M., ARQAWI, S. & DARAGMEH, A. (2021): The role of Fintech in predicting the spread of COVID-19. *Banks and Bank Systems*, 16(1), pp.1-16.
- ABUNIMAH, A. (2018): Paypal Freezes Out Palestine Activists In France. [online] The Electronic Intifada. Available at: <<u>https://electronicintifada.net/blogs/ali-</u> <u>abunimah/paypal-freezes-out-palestine-activists-france</u>> [Accessed 10 August 2020].
- 10. ADEIZA, A., MALEK, M. & ISMAIL, N. (2017): An Empirical Analysis of the Influence of Entrepreneurial Orientation on Franchisees' Outlet Performance and Intention to Stay. *Journal of Franchise Management*, 8(1), pp.5-18.
- 11. AJZEN, I. (1985): From Intentions to Actions: A Theory of Planned Behavior. *Action Control*, pp.11-39.
- 12. AL BAWABA (2020): Palestinian Banking Sector Growth Influenced By Fintech | Al Bawaba. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.albawaba.com/business/palestinian-banking-sector-growth-influenced-fintech-1262222</u>> [Accessed 10 August 2020].
- ALTEXSOFT (2020): Fraud Detection: How Machine Learning Systems Help Reveal Scams In Fintech, Healthcare, And Ecommerce. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.altexsoft.com/whitepapers/fraud-detection-how-machine-learning-systemshelp-reveal-scams-in-fintech-healthcare-and-ecommerce/</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].

- 14. AMERICASMI (2020): Real-time payments in latin america: potential for massive disruption. [online] Available at: <<u>https://americasmi.com/wp-</u> content/uploads/2019/01/aci-real-time-payments-in-latin-america_-potential-for-massivedisruption-english-complete.pdf> [Accessed 10 August 2020].
- 15. Arner, D. (2016). Fintech: Evolution And Regulation. [online] Law.unimelb.edu.au. Available at: https://law.unimelb.edu.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/1978256/D-Arner-FinTech-Evolution-Melbourne-June-2016.pdf> [Accessed 11 December 2020].
- 16. ARNER, D. W., BARBERIS, J. N. & BUCKLEY, R. P. (2016): FinTech, RegTech and the Reconceptualization of Financial Regulation. *Northwestern Journal of International Law & Business*, Forthcoming, University of Hong Kong Faculty of Law Research Paper No. 2016/035, Available at SSRN: <u>https://ssrn.com/abstract=2847806</u>.
- 17. ARNER, D., ZETZSCHE, D., BUCKLEY, R. AND BARBERIS, J. (2020): The Identity Challenge in Finance: From Analogue Identity to Digitized Identification to Digital KYC Utilities. *SSRN Electronic Journal*.
- ASSETS.KPMG (2017): How Financial Institutions Are Embracing Fintech To Evolve And Grow. [online] Available at: <<u>https://assets.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ch/pdf/global-fintech-benchmarking-report.pdf</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 19. BANKS, E. (2001): E-Finance. Chichester: J. Wiley.
- 20. BANSAL, S., BANSAL, A. & BLAKE, M. (2010): Trust-based Dynamic Web service Composition using Social Network Analysis. 2010 IEEE International Workshop on: Business Applications of Social Network Analysis (BASNA).
- 21. BASAK, S., GOVENDER, D. & GOVENDER, I. (2016): Examining the impact of privacy, Security, and trust on the TAM and TTF models for e-commerce consumers: *A pilot study. 2016 14th Annual Conference on Privacy, Security and Trust (PST).*
- 22. BASOLE, R. & PATEL, S. (2018): Transformation Through Unbundling: Visualizing the Global FinTech Ecosystem. *Service Science*, 10(4), pp.379-396.
- 23. BBC (2020): Internet Used By 3.2 Billion In 2015. [online] Available at: [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- BBVAOpen4U. (2020): The Best-Known Banking Data Aggregation Apis. [online] Available at: <<u>https://bbvaopen4u.com/en/actualidad/best-known-banking-data-aggregation-apis</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 25. BECH, M. & GARRATT, R. (2020): Central Bank Cryptocurrencies. [online] Bis.org. Available at: <<u>https://www.bis.org/publ/qtrpdf/r_qt1709f.htm</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- BELANCHE, D., CASALÓ, L. & FLAVIÁN, C. (2019): Artificial Intelligence in FinTech: understanding robo-advisors adoption among customers. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*, 119(7), pp.1411-1430.
- 27. BENSAR, F. Z., & RODRÍGUEZ, G. (2018): Islamic FinTech and the paradigm shift in the financial landscape. *In Islamic Social Finance* (pp. 145-159). Routledge.
- 28. BERRAIES, S., BEN YAHIA, K. & HANNACHI, M. (2017): Identifying the effects of perceived values of mobile banking applications on customers. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 35(6), pp.1018-1038.
- 29. BERTRAND, J. (2020): Real Time Payments Significant Impact On Financial Services. [online] Linkedin.com. Available at: <<u>https://www.linkedin.com/pulse/real-time-payments-significant-impact-financial-john-bertrand/</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].

- BHISHEK, V., GENG, D., LI, B., & ZHOU, M. (2020): When the Bank Comes to You: Branch Network and Customer Omnichannel Banking Behavior. *Information Systems Research*, 31(1), pp.176-197.
- 31. BJØRN, P. & BOULUS-RØDJE, N. (2018): Infrastructural Inaccessibility. ACM *Transactions on Computer-Human Interaction*, 25(5), pp.1-31.
- 32. BLÉMUS, S. & GUEGAN, D. (2020): Initial Crypto-Asset Offerings (Icos), Tokenization And Corporate Governance. [online] arXiv.org. Available at: <<u>https://arxiv.org/abs/1905.03340v1</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- BONGINI, P., IWANICZ-DROZDOWSKA, M., SMAGA, P. & WITKOWSKI, B. (2017). Financial Development and Economic Growth: The Role of Foreign-Owned Banks in CESEE Countries. *Sustainability*, 9(3), p.335.
- 34. BOONSIRITOMACHAI, W. & PITCHAYADEJANANT, K. (2017): Determinants affecting mobile banking adoption by generation Y based on the Unified Theory of Acceptance and Use of Technology Model modified by the Technology Acceptance Model concept. Kasetsart *Journal of Social Sciences*, 39(4), pp.43-73.
- BRODMANN, J., RAYFIELD, B., HASSAN, M. K., & MAI, A. T. (2018): Banking Characteristics of Millennials. *Journal of Economic Cooperation & Development*, 39(4), p.43-73.
- BRODSKY, L. & OAKES, L. (2017): Data Sharing And Open Banking. [online] McKinsey & Company. Available at: <<u>https://www.mckinsey.com/industries/financial-</u> services/our-insights/data-sharing-and-open-banking> [Accessed 19 October 2020].
- 37. BUSSMANN, O. (2017): The Future of Finance: FinTech, Tech Disruption, and Orchestrating Innovation. *Equity Markets in Transition*, pp.473-486.
- 38. CAI, C. (2018): Disruption of financial intermediation by FinTech: a review on crowdfunding and blockchain. *Accounting & Finance*, 58(4), pp.965-992.
- 39. CARLIN, B., OLAFSSON, A. & PAGEL, M. (2017): FinTech Adoption Across Generations: Financial Fitness in the Information Age. *NBER Working Papers 23798, National Bureau of Economic Research, Inc*, pp.1-42.
- 40. CHANDRA, Y., ERNAWATY & SURYANTO. (2017): Bank vs telecommunication E-Wallet : System analysis, purchase, and payment method of GO-mobile CIMB Niaga and T-Cash Telkomsel. 2017 International Conference on Information Management and Technology (ICIMTech), pp.165-170.
- 41. CHANG, Y., WONG, S., LEE, H. & JEONG, S. (2016): What motivates chinese consumers to adopt FinTech services. *Proceedings of the 18th Annual International Conference on Electronic Commerce e-Commerce in Smart connected World ICEC* '16, pp.1-3.
- 42. CHENG, T., LAM, D. & YEUNG, A. (2006): Adoption of internet banking: An empirical study in Hong Kong. *Decision Support Systems*, 42(3), pp.1558-1572.
- 43. CHIN, W.W. (1998): Commentary: Issues and Opinion on Structural Equation Modeling. *MIS Quarterly*, 22(1), pp.1-10.
- 44. CHUANG, L. M., LIU, C. C., & KAO, H. K. (2016): The adoption of fintech service: TAM perspective. *International Journal of Management and Administrative Sciences*, 3(7), pp.1-15.
- 45. CLIMER, S. (2020): The Fintech Revolution: Digital Wallet And Ecommerce Trends | Mindsight. [online] Mindsight. Available at: <<u>https://www.gomindsight.com/blog/fintech-revolution-ecommerce-trends</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].

- 46. COHEN, J. (1962): The statistical power of abnormal-social psychological research: A review. *The Journal of Abnormal and Social Psychology*, 65(3), pp.145-153.
- 47. CONSTANTIOU, I.D., & J. KALLINIKOS. (2015): New Games, New Rules: Big Data and the Changing Context of Strategy. *Journal of Information Technology*, 30 (1), p. 45.
- CUEN, L. (2020): In Palestine, Civilians Are Using Bitcoin More Than Hamas Coindesk. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.coindesk.com/palestinian-civilians-are-using-bitcoin-more-than-terrorists</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 49. DAPP, T. (2017): Fintech: The Digital Transformation in the Financial Sector. *Sustainability in a Digital World*, pp.189-199.
- DAVIS, F., BAGOZZI, R. & WARSHAW, P. (1989): User Acceptance of Computer Technology: A Comparison of Two Theoretical Models. *Management Science*, 35(8), pp.982-1003.
- 51. DAVIS, F.D. (1986): A Technology Acceptance Model for Empirically Testing New End-User Information Systems: Theory and Results. *Sloan School of Management*, *Massachusetts Institute of Technology*, pp.1-291.
- 52. DE OLIVEIRA MALAQUIAS, F. & HWANG, Y. (2018): An empirical investigation on disclosure about mobile banking on bank websites. *Online Information Review*, 42(5), pp.615-629.
- 53. DELOITTE (2015): Real-Time Payments Are Changing The Reality Of Payments. Real-Time Payments Are Changing The Reality Of Payments. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www2.deloitte.com/content/dam/Deloitte/us/Documents/strategy/us-cons-realtime-payments.pdf</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 54. DELOITTE (2019): Economic Impact Of Real-Time Payments. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www2.deloitte.com/content/dam/Deloitte/uk/Documents/financial-</u> services/deloitte-uk-economic-impact-of-real-time-payments-report-vocalink-mastercardapril-2019.pdf> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 55. DELOITTE (2020a): GDPR & Fintechs: A Competitive Advantage?. [online] Available at:<<u>https://www2.deloitte.com/uk/en/pages/financial-services/articles/is-gdpr-a-</u> <u>competitive-advantage-for-fintechs.html</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 56. DELOITTE (2020b): [online] Available at: <<u>https://www2.deloitte.com/content/dam/Deloitte/lu/Documents/technology/lu-digital-onboarding-financial-services-digital-natives-112017.pdf</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 57. DIMOCK, M. (2019): Defining Generations: Where Millennials End And Generation Z Begins. [online] Pew Research Center. Available at: <<u>https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2019/01/17/where-millennials-end-and-generation-z-begins/</u>> [Accessed 21 March 2020].
- 58. DRASCH, B., SCHWEIZER, A. & URBACH, N. (2018): Integrating the 'Troublemakers': A taxonomy for cooperation between banks and fintechs. *Journal of Economics and Business*, 100, pp.26-42.
- 59. DU, W., PAN, S., LEIDNER, D. & YING, W. (2019): Affordances, experimentation and actualization of FinTech: A blockchain implementation study. *The Journal of Strategic Information Systems*, 28(1), pp.50-65.
- 60. ECONOMIES (2020): Financial News, Economic Analysis, Stock Market Quote Economies.Com. [online] Available at: <<u>https://economies.com/</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].

- ELSON, S. (2020): All About Testing A Fintech Application. [online] Medium. Available at: https://blog.usejournal.com/all-about-testing-a-fintech-application-1b5c7ab55afe [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 62. EMARKETER (2020): Global Mobile Payment Users 2019. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.emarketer.com/content/global-mobile-payment-users-2019</u>> [Accessed 10 October 2020].
- 63. ENVISIONIT (2018): Fintech & Millennial Consumer Behavior: A Perfect Match | Envisionit. [online] Available at: <<u>https://envisionitagency.com/blog/2018/08/fintech-and-millennials</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 64. EPIXELSOFT. (2020): How To Develop A PCI DSS Compliant Fintech Mobile App?. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.epixelsoft.com/blog/how-to-develop-a-pci-dss-compliant-fintech-mobile-app</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 65. EYAL, I. (2017): Blockchain Technology: Transforming Libertarian Cryptocurrency Dreams to Finance and Banking Realities. *Computer*, 50(9), pp.38-49.
- 66. FEDERALRESERVE. (2020): Federal Reserve Board Innovation | Fintech | Financial Technology. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.federalreserve.gov/aboutthefed/innovation.htm</u>> [Accessed 10 August 2020].
- 67. FENWICK, M., MCCAHERY, J. & VERMEULEN, E. (2017): Fintech and the Financing of Entrepreneurs: From Crowdfunding to Marketplace Lending. *SSRN Electronic Journal*.
- FERNANDEZ-HERRAIZ, C., ESCLAPES-MEMBRIVES, S. AND PRADO-DOMINGUEZ, A. (2020): Tokens and Tokenization. *Emerging Tools and Strategies for Financial Management*, pp.32-58.
- 69. FIELD, A. (2009): *Discovering Statistics Using SPSS*. 3rd ed. London: Sage Publications, pp.75-80.
- 70. FIELD, A. (2018): *Discovering Statistics Using IBM SPSS Statistics*. 5th ed. London: SAGE Publications Ltd, p.79.
- 71. FINEXTRA (2019): Banks Falling Behind In Digital Transformation Efforts. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.finextra.com/newsarticle/34007/banks-falling-behind-in-digital-transformation-efforts</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 72. FINK, A. (2003): How To Ask Survey Questions. 2nd ed. Thousand Oaks: Sage, p.117.
- 73. FINTECHAUSCENSUS (2019): Global Fintech Adoption Index 2019. [online] Available at: <<u>https://fintechauscensus.ey.com/2019/Documents/ey-global-fintech-adoption-index-2019.pdf</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 74. FINTECHNEWS (2018): Fintech Now Takes Up 33% Of Revenue Share In Financial Services | Fintech Schweiz Digital Finance News - Fintechnewsch. [online] Fintech Schweiz Digital Finance News - FintechNewsCH. Available at: <<u>https://fintechnews.ch/fintech/fintech-disruption-banks-at-risk/23072/</u>>[Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 75. FODDY, W. & MANTLE, J. (1994): Constructing Questions for Interviews and Questionnaires Theory and practice in social research. *Physiotherapy*, 80(6), p.382.
- 76. FSB.ORG (2017): Financial Stability Implications From Fintech. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.fsb.org/wp-content/uploads/R270617.pdf</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 77. FUSCALDO, D. (2020): Generation Z Surpasses Millennials In P2P Payment Usage. [online] Forbes. Available at:

<<u>https://www.forbes.com/sites/donnafuscaldo/2019/02/28/generation-z-surpasses-millennials-in-p2p-payment-usage/#58c2aca28427</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].

- 78. GABOR, D. & BROOKS, S. (2016): The digital revolution in financial inclusion: international development in the fintech era. *New Political Economy*, 22(4), pp.423-436.
- 79. GAMIPHY (2020): A gamification platform to help businesses acquire and retain more customers. Revolutionizing Customers Journey. [online] Available at: https://www.gamiphy.co [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- GARDNER, D. (2018): The Rise Of Regtech Fintech Futures. [online] FinTech Futures. Available at: <<u>https://www.fintechfutures.com/2018/08/the-rise-of-regtech</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 81. GEORGE, D. & MALLERY, P. (2010): SPSS For Windows Step By Step. 10th ed. Boston, Mass.: Allyn & Bacon, pp.40-65.
- 82. GIUDICI, P., 2018. Fintech Risk Management: A Research Challenge for Artificial Intelligence in Finance. *Frontiers in Artificial Intelligence*, 1.
- 83. GIUDICI, P., HADJI-MISHEVA, B. AND SPELTA, A. (2019): Network Based Scoring Models to Improve Credit Risk Management in Peer to Peer Lending Platforms. *Frontiers in Artificial Intelligence*, 2.
- 84. GLEESON, L. (2016): How Israel Causes Palestine'S Economic Woes. [online] Green Left. Available at: <<u>https://www.greenleft.org.au/content/how-israel-causes-</u> palestine%E2%80%99s-economic-woes> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 85. GLOBALFINDEX (2017): Global Findex Database 2017. [online] Available at: https://globalfindex.worldbank.org/> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 86. GOMBER, P., KOCH, J. & SIERING, M. (2017): Digital Finance and FinTech: current research and future research directions. *Journal of Business Economics*, 87(5), pp.537-580.
- 87. GOMBER, P., ROBERT J. KAUFFMAN, PARKER, C. & BRUCE W. WEBER. (2018): On the Fintech Revolution: Interpreting the Forces of Innovation, Disruption, and Transformation in Financial Services, *Journal of Management Information Systems*, 35(1), pp.220-265.
- GOSSETT, S. (2020): Ai Bankability: 10 Ways Artificial Intelligence Is Transforming Banking. [online] Fintech News. Available at: <<u>https://www.fintechnews.org/aibakability-10-ways-artificial-intelligence-is-transforming-banking</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 89. GRABNER-KRÄUTER, S. & FAULLANT, R. (2008): Consumer acceptance of internet banking: the influence of internet trust. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 26(7), pp.483-504.
- 90. GRASSA, R. (2015): Shariah supervisory systems in Islamic finance institutions across the OIC member countries. *Journal of Financial Regulation and Compliance*, 23(2), p.135.
- 91. GRAVETTER, F. & WALLNAU, L. (2014): *Essentials Of Statistics For The Behavioral Sciences*. 8th ed. pp.34-70.
- 92. GROVER, V. (2020): How Fintechs Are Revolutionizing The Customer Onboarding Process. [online] Finextra Research. Available at: <<u>https://www.finextra.com/blogposting/16833/how-fintechs-are-revolutionizing-thecustomer-onboarding-process</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 93. GURUNG, N. & PERLMAN, L. (2018): Use of Regtech by Central Banks and Its Impact on Financial Inclusion. *SSRN Electronic Journal*, pp.1-70.

- 94. HA, H. (2004): Factors influencing consumer perceptions of brand trust online. *Journal of Product & Brand Management*, 13(5), pp.329-342.
- 95. HANAFIZADEH, P., BEHBOUDI, M., ABEDINI KOSHKSARAY, A. & JALILVAND SHIRKHANI TABAR, M. (2014): Mobile-banking adoption by Iranian bank clients. *Telematics and Informatics*, 31(1), p.62.
- 96. HATAYAMA, M. (2018): Icts And Livelihood Supports Of Refugees And Idps. [online] Pdfs.semanticscholar.org. Available at: <<u>https://pdfs.semanticscholar.org/befb/2a6f02d35c447609a58abfce8ee6791a611e.pdf</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 97. HEFFNER, M. (2019): Fintech And The Push For Transformation Readiness. [online] Ciosummits.com. Available at: <<u>https://www.ciosummits.com/Online_Assets_Appian_Whitepaper_-</u>____FinTech_Hubcast.pdf> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 98. HILL, R., FISHBEIN, M. & AJZEN, I. (1977): Belief, Attitude, Intention and Behavior: An Introduction to Theory and Research. *Contemporary Sociology*, 6(2), p.244.
- 99. HOOTSUITE. (2019): Social Media Marketing & Management Dashboard. [online] Available at: < <u>https://hootsuite.com/resources/digital-in-2019 /</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 100. HORACIO. (2019): "Invoice Financing: Best Lenders & More Information." Fintech News. [online] Available at: < <u>https://www.fintechnews.org/invoice-financing-best-</u> lenders-more-information/> [Accessed 23 Mar. 2020].
- 101. HU, Z., DING, S., LI, S., CHEN, L. & YANG, S. (2019): Adoption Intention of Fintech Services for Bank Users: An Empirical Examination with an Extended Technology Acceptance Model. *Symmetry*, 11(3), pp.1-16.
- 102. HUH, H., KIM, T. & LAW, R. (2009): A comparison of competing theoretical models for understanding acceptance behavior of information systems in upscale hotels. *International Journal of Hospitality Management*, 28(1), pp.121-134.
- 103. INGWB (2020): The Impact Of Real Time Payments On Consumers And Their Businesses | ING WB. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.ingwb.com/insights/articles/the-impact-of-real-time-payments-onconsumers-and-their-businesses</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 104. INSTAMED (2020): Omnichannel Payments In Healthcare. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.instamed.com/blog/omnichannel-payments-healthcare/</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 105. INTEL (2020): Creating A Smarter Back Office With Artificial Intelligence. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.intel.com/content/www/us/en/financial-services-it/creating-a-</u> <u>smarter-back-office-with-ai.html</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 106. IRIQAT, R. & ABU DAQAR, M. (2017a): The Role of Customer Relationship Management on Enhancing the Customers' Satisfaction in the Banks in Palestine. *Modern Applied Science*, 11(12), pp.84-91.
- 107. IRIQAT, R. & ABU DAQAR, M. (2017b): The Impact of Customer Relationship Management on Long-term Customers' Loyalty in the Palestinian Banking Industry. *International Business Research*, 10(11), pp.139-147.
- 108. IRIQAT, R. & ABU DAQAR, M. (2018): The Mediating Role of Customers' Satisfaction on the Effect of CRM on Long-Term Customers Loyalty in the Banking Sector in the Palestinian Territory. *Asian Social Science*, 14(8), pp.76-90.

- 109. JAGTIANI, J. & LEMIEUX, C. (2019): The roles of alternative data and machine learning in fintech lending: Evidence from the LendingClub consumer platform. *Financial Management*, 48(4), pp.1009-1029.
- 110. JARUWACHIRATHANAKUL, B. & FINK, D. (2005): "Internet banking adoption strategies for a developing country: the case of Thailand", *Internet Research*, Vol. 15 No. 3, pp. 295-311.
- 111. JIN, C., SEONG, L. & KHIN, A. (2019): Factors Affecting the Consumer Acceptance towards Fintech Products and Services in Malaysia. *International Journal of Asian Social Science*, 9(1), pp.59-65.
- 112. JIWASIDDI, A., ADHIKARA, C., ADAM, M. & TRIANA, I. (2019): Attitude toward using Fintech among Millennials. Proceedings of the Proceedings of The 1st Workshop Multimedia Education, Learning, Assessment and its Implementation in Game and Gamification, *Medan Indonesia*, 26th January 2019, WOMELA-GG.
- 113. JÜNGER, M. & MIETZNER, M. (2019): Banking goes digital: The adoption of FinTech services by German households. *Finance Research Letters*, 34, p.1.
- 114. JÜNGER, M. & MIETZNER, M. (2020): Banking goes digital: The adoption of FinTech services by German households. *Finance Research Letters*, 34, pp.2-15.
- 115. KAUSHAL, S. & GHOSH, A. (2016): Financial Institutions and Economic Growth: An Empirical Analysis of Indian Economy in the Post Liberalized Era. *International Journal of Economics and Financial Issues*, 6(3), pp.1003-1013.
- 116. KERSTING, K. (2018): Machine Learning and Artificial Intelligence: Two Fellow Travelers on the Quest for Intelligent Behavior in Machines. *Frontiers in Big Data*, 1.
- 117. KHEDMATGOZAR, H. & SHAHNAZI, A. (2017): The role of dimensions of perceived risk in adoption of corporate internet banking by customers in Iran. *Electronic Commerce Research*, 18(2), p.389.
- 118. KIM, C., MIRUSMONOV, M. & LEE, I. (2010): An empirical examination of factors influencing the intention to use mobile payment. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 26(3), pp.310-322.
- 119. KIM, K. & PRABHAKAR, B. (2000): Initial trust, perceived risk, and the adoption of internet banking. In: Proceedings of the Twenty First International Conference on Information Systems, *Association for Information Systems*, pp. 537–543.
- 120. KIM, Y., CHOI, J., PARK, Y. & YEON, J. (2016): The Adoption Of Mobile Payment Services For "Fintech". [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.researchgate.net/publication/298714824_The_adoption_of_mobile_payme</u> <u>nt_services_for_fintech/citations</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 121. KIWANUKA, A. (2015): Acceptance Process: The Missing Link between Utaut and Diffusion of Innovation Theory. *American Journal of Information Systems*, 3(2), pp.40-44.
- 122. KODITHUWAKKU, M. S. (2018): Impact of Internet Banking on Customer Satisfaction: A Case Study of State Banks in Kandy District. *Academy of Social Science Journal*, 3(2), pp.1114-1122.
- 123. KOKSAL, M. (2016): The intentions of Lebanese consumers to adopt mobile banking. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 34(3), p.327.
- 124. KRAYEWSKI, K. (2020): How NLP Text-Based Chatbots Work. [online] ultimate.ai. Available at: <<u>https://www.ultimate.ai/blog/ai-automation/how-nlp-text-based-chatbots-work</u>> [Accessed 20 October 2020].

- 125. KREJCIE, R.V. & MORGAN, D.W. (1970): Determining Sample Size for Research Activities. Educational and Psychological Measurement. #30, pp.607-610.
- 126. KSHETRI, N. (2018): Blockchain's roles in meeting key supply chain management objectives. *Int. J. Inf. Manage*. 39 (1), 80–89.
- 127. LAI, P. (2017): The literature review of technology adoption models and theories for the novelty technology. *Journal of Information Systems and Technology Management*, 14(1), p.18.
- 128. LAUER, K. & LYMAN, T. (2015): Digital Financial Inclusion: Implications For Customers, Regulators, Supervisors, And Standard-Setting Bodies. [online] Cgap.org. Available at: <<u>https://www.cgap.org/sites/default/files/Brief-Digital-Financial-Inclusion-Feb-2015.pdf</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 129. LEADERS (2019): The business startup incubator support program (bsis). [online] Available at: <<u>https://leaders.ps/digital-entrepreneurship-program/business-startup-</u> incubator-support-program-bsis> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 130. LEE, H., YANG, S. & KIM, K. (2019): The Role of FinTech in Mitigating Information Friction in Supply Chain Finance. *ADB Economics Working Paper Series*, N(599).
- 131. LEE, I. & SHIN, Y. (2018): Fintech: Ecosystem, business models, investment decisions, and challenges. *Business Horizons*, 61(1), pp.35-46.
- 132. LEE, K. & CHUNG, N. (2009): Understanding factors affecting trust in and satisfaction with mobile banking in Korea: A modified DeLone and McLean's model perspective. *Interacting with Computers*, 21(5-6), pp.385-392.
- 133. LEGRIS, P., INGHAM, J., & COLLERETTE, P. (2003): Why do people use information technology? A critical review of the technology acceptance model. *Information & management*, 40(3), 191-204.
- 134. LEICHT, T., CHTOUROU, A. & BEN YOUSSEF, K. (2018): Consumer innovativeness and intentioned autonomous car adoption. *The Journal of High Technology Management Research*, 29(1), pp.1-11.
- 135. LEONG, K. (2018): FinTech (Financial Technology): What is It and How to Use Technologies to Create Business Value in Fintech Way?. *International Journal of Innovation, Management and Technology*, pp.74-78.
- 136. LI, S., & MARINČ, M. (2018): Economies of Scale and Scope in Financial Market Infrastructures. *Journal of International Financial Markets*, Institutions and Money, 53, p.32.
- 137. LIFEN ZHAO, A., KOENIG-LEWIS, N., HANMER-LLOYD, S. & WARD, P. (2010): Adoption of internet banking services in China: is it all about trust?. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 28(1), pp.7-26.
- 138. LIU, J., ABHISHEK, V. AND LI, B. (2017): The Impact of Mobile Channel Adoption on Customer Omni-Channel Banking Behavior. *SSRN Electronic Journal*.
- 139. LOCKETT, A. & LITTLER, D. (1997): The adoption of direct banking services. *Journal* of Marketing Management, 13(8), pp.791-811.
- 140. MACKENZIE, S. (2003): The Dangers of Poor Construct Conceptualization. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, 31(3), p.323.
- 141. MARAKARKANDY, B., YAJNIK, N. & DASGUPTA, C. (2017): Enabling internet banking adoption. *Journal of Enterprise Information Management*, 30(2), pp.263-294.

- 142. MARUTITECH. (2020): How Can Artificial Intelligence Help Fintech Companies?. [online] Available at: <<u>https://marutitech.com/how-can-artificial-intelligence-help-fintech-companies></u> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 143. MCFARLAND, D. & HAMILTON, D. (2006): Adding contextual specificity to the technology acceptance model. *Computers in Human Behavior*, 22(3), pp.427-447.
- 144. MCKINSEY (2018): Global Payments 2018: A Dynamic Industry Continues To Break New Ground. [online] McKinsey & Company. Available at: <<u>https://www.mckinsey.com/~/media/McKinsey/Industries/Financial%20Services/Our%</u> 20Insights/Global%20payments%20Expansive%20growth%20targeted%20opportunities/ <u>Global-payments-map-2018.ashx></u> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 145. MEDIUM (2020): Top Banking Apis Enabling Access To Aggregated Rich Financial Data. [online] Available at: <<u>https://medium.com/@gomedici/top-banking-apis-enabling-access-to-aggregated-rich-financial-data-6d30cbd02fdd</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 146. MEYLIANA, M., FERNANDO, E. & SURJANDY, S. (2019): The Influence of Perceived Risk and Trust in Adoption of FinTech Services in Indonesia. *CommIT* (*Communication and Information Technology*) Journal, 13(1), p.31.
- 147. MOON, W. & KIM, S. (2017): Adaptive Fraud Detection Framework for FinTech Based on Machine Learning. *Advanced Science Letters*, 23(10), pp.10167-10171.
- 148. MUÑOZ-LEIVA, F., CLIMENT-CLIMENT, S. & LIÉBANA-CABANILLAS, F. (2017): Determinants of intention to use the mobile banking apps: An extension of the classic TAM model. *Spanish Journal of Marketing ESIC*, 21(1), pp.25-38.
- 149. NAVARETTI, G., CALZOLARI, G., MANSILLA-FERNANDEZ, J. & POZZOLO, A. (2018): Fintech and Banking. Friends or Foes?. *SSRN Electronic Journal*,2, pp.e9-30.
- 150. OZILI, P. (2018): Impact of digital finance on financial inclusion and stability. *Borsa Istanbul Review*, 18(4), pp.329-340.
- 151. PALANDRANI, P. (2019): Fintech Trends: M&A And Mobile Payments Driving Recent Growth. [online] Global X ETFs. Available at: <<u>https://www.globalxetfs.com/fintechtrends-ma-and-mobile-payments-driving-recent-growth</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 152. PALPAY (2020a): Home Palpay. [online] Available at: <<u>http://www.palpay.ps</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 153. PARK, E., KIM, H. & OHM, J. (2014): Understanding driver adoption of car navigation systems using the extended technology acceptance model. *Behaviour & Information Technology*, 34(7), pp.741-751.
- 154. PATEL, K.J. & PATEL, H.J. (2018): Adoption of Internet Banking Services in Gujarat. *Int. J. Bank Mark.* 36, pp.147–169.
- 155. PAYPAL (2020b): Send And Receive International Payments Paypal Worldwide. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.paypal.com/cgi-bin/webscr?cmd=%5fdisplay%2dcountry%2dfunctionality%2doutside&dispatch=5885d8</u> 0a13c0db1f8e263663d3faee8db8175432b4df92754f4b4adb5a123d61> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 156. PHAN, D., NARAYAN, P., RAHMAN, R. & HUTABARAT, A. (2020): Do financial technology firms influence bank performance?. *Pacific-Basin Finance Journal*, 62, pp.2-43.
- 157. PMA (2020): National Financial Inclusion Strategy In Palestine. [online] Available at: <<u>http://www.pma.ps</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].

- 158. POLLARI, I. & RUDDENKLAU, A. (2019): The pulse Of Fintech 2018 Biannual Global Analysis Of Investment In Fintech. [online] KPMG. Available at: <<u>https://assets.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/fi/pdf/2019/02/the-pulse-of-fintech-2018.pdf</u>>.
- 159. POOLTHONG, Y. & MANDHACHITARA, R. (2009): Customer expectations of CSR, perceived service quality and brand effect in Thai retail banking. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 27(6), pp.408-427.
- 160. PUBDOCS.WORLDBANK (2019a): Fintech-Executive-Summary. Fintech-Executive-Summary. [online] Available at: <<u>http://pubdocs.worldbank.org/en/361051561641115477/pdf/Fintech-executive-summary.pdf</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 161. PUBDOCS.WORLDBANK (2019b): Palestine's Economic Update. [online] Available at: <<u>http://pubdocs.worldbank.org/en/904261553672463064/Palestine-MEU-April-2019-Eng.pdf</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 162. PUSCHMANN, T. (2017): Fintech. Business & Information Systems Engineering, 59(1), pp.69-76.
- 163. PWC (2016): Customers In The Spotlight How Fintech Is Reshaping Banking. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.pwc.com/jg/en/publications/fin-tech-banking-2016.pdf</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 164. PYMNTS. (2020): How Fintechs Help Merchants With GDPR | PYMNTS.Com. [online] PYMNTS.com. Available at: <<u>https://www.pymnts.com/news/retail/2019/how-fintechs-help-merchants-with-gdpr-compliance/</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 165. QI, Y. & XIAO, J. (2018): Fintech. Communications of the ACM, 61(11), pp.65-69.
- 166. RABAYAH, K. (2019): The Impact of Culture on Acceptance of E-Learning: A Palestinian Case Study Using Structural Equation Model. 2019 IEEE Global Engineering Education Conference (EDUCON), p.1.
- 167. RABIN, K. (2019): The Fintech Landscape Of The 21St Century. [online] finextra. Available at: <<u>https://www.finextra.com/blogposting/17924/the-fintech-landscape-of-the-21st-century</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 168. REPLICON (2020): What Is An API? Replicon. [online] Available at: https://www.replicon.com/customer-zone2/kb-4430/> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 169. RINGLE, CHRISTIAN M., WENDE, SVEN, BECKER & JAN-MICHAEL. (2015): SmartPLS 3. Bönningstedt: SmartPLS. Available at: < <u>https://www.smartpls.com/</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 170. RIQUELME, H. & RIOS, R. (2010): The moderating effect of gender in the adoption of mobile banking. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 28(5), pp.328-341.
- 171. RIYADH, A., BUNKER, D. & RABHI, F. (2010): Barriers to E-Finance Adoption in Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs) in Bangladesh. *SSRN Electronic Journal*, p.1.
- 172. ROLFE, A. (2013): Swish Mobile Payments An Amazing Success Payments Cards & Mobile. [online] Payments Cards & Mobile. Available at: <<u>https://www.paymentscardsandmobile.com/swish-mobile-payments-amazing-success/></u> [Accessed 13 August 2020].
- 173. ROLFE, A. (2019): Global Mobile Wallet Trends Annual Report 2019. [online]
 Payments Cards & Mobile. Available at:
 <<u>https://www.paymentscardsandmobile.com/mobile-wallet-trends-annual-report-2019</u>>
 [Accessed 12 August 2020].

- 174. ROMĀNOVA, I. & KUDINSKA, M. (2016): Banking and Fintech: A Challenge or Opportunity?. *Contemporary Studies in Economic and Financial Analysis*, pp.21-35.
- 175. ROOZBAHANI, SOLEIMANI, HOJJATI, SANAZ, NIKGHADAM, AZAD AND REIHANEH. (2015): The Role of E-Payment Tools and E-Banking in Customer Satisfaction Case Study: Pasargad Bank E-Payment Company. *International Journal of Advanced Networking and Applications*. 7. pp. 2640-2649.
- 176. RUPARELIA, N., WHITE, L. & HUGHES, K. (2010): Drivers of brand trust in internet retailing. *Journal of Product & Brand Management*, 19(4), pp.250-260.
- 177. RUVIO, A., SHOHAM, A. & MAKOVEC BRENČIČ, M. (2008): Consumers' need for uniqueness: short-form scale development and cross-cultural validation. *International Marketing Review*, 25(1), pp.33-53.
- 178. SACHDEV, S. (2019): Welcome The New Kids On The Block: How Millennials And Gen Z Are Disrupting Fintech. [online] MarTech Series. Available at: <<u>https://martechseries.com/mts-insights/guest-authors/welcome-the-new-kids-on-theblock-how-millennials-and-gen-z-are-disrupting-fintech/</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 179. SALEEM, Z. & RASHID, K. (2014): Relationship between Customer Satisfaction and Mobile Banking Adoption in Pakistan. *International Journal of Trade, Economics and Finance*, pp.537-543.
- 180. SALEM, M., BAIDOUN, S. & WALSH, G. (2019): Factors affecting Palestinian customers' use of online banking services. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 37(2), pp.426-451.
- 181. SALKIND, N. (2007): Shapiro-Wilk Test for Normality. *Encyclopedia of Measurement and Statistics*, vol. 0, pp. 883-884.
- 182. SÁNCHEZ-TORRES, J., CANADA, F., SANDOVAL, A. & ALZATE, J. (2018): Ebanking in Colombia: factors favouring its acceptance, online trust and government support. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 36(1), pp.170-183.
- 183. SARIKA, P., & VASANTHA, S. (2019): Impact of Mobile Wallets on Cashless Transaction. *International Journal of Recent Technology and Engineering (IJRTE)*, 7(6S5), p.1164.
- 184. SENYO, P. & OSABUTEY, E. (2020): Unearthing antecedents to financial inclusion through FinTech innovations. *Technovation*, 98(1), pp.2-14.
- 185. SEWELL, H. (2020): Fintech Launches AI Loan Comparison Service. [online] BusinessCloud.co.uk. Available at: <<u>https://www.businesscloud.co.uk/news/fintech-launches-ai-loan-comparison-service</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].
- 186. SHAIKH, A. & KARJALUOTO, H. (2015): Mobile banking adoption: A literature review. *Telematics and Informatics*, 32(1), p.129.
- 187. SHAPIRO, S., WILK, M., & CHEN, H. (1968): Journal of the American Statistical Association. 63(324), pp.1343-1372.
- 188. SHENG, T. (2020): The effect of fintech on banks' credit provision to SMEs: Evidence from China. *Finance Research Letters*, p.101558.
- 189. SIRAJ, K. K, PILLAI, P. (2012). Comparative Study On Performance Of Islamic Banks And Conventional Banks In GCC Region. *Journal of Applied Finance & Banking*, 2(3), pp.123-161.
- 190. STATISTA (2020): Digital Users Worldwide 2020 | Statista. [online] Available at: <<u>https://www.statista.com/statistics/617136/digital-population-worldwide</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].

- 191. STEINSKOG, D., TJØSTHEIM, D. & KVAMSTØ, N. (2007): A Cautionary Note on the Use of the Kolmogorov–Smirnov Test for Normality. *Monthly Weather Review*, 135(3), pp.1151-1157.
- 192. STRANDVIK, T., HOLMLUND, M. & LÄHTEENMÄKI, I. (2018): "One of these days, things are going to change!" How do you make sense of market disruption?. *Business Horizons*, 61(3), pp.477-486.
- 193. SUM CHAU, V. & NGAI, L. (2010): The youth market for internet banking services: perceptions, attitude and behaviour. *Journal of Services Marketing*, 24(1), pp.42-60.
- 194. TAHERDOOST, H. (2018): A review of technology acceptance and adoption models and theories. *Procedia Manufacturing*, 22, pp.960-967.
- 195. TAKEDA, F., TAKEDA, K., TAKEMURA, T. & UEDA, R. (2020): The impact of information technology investment announcements on the market value of the Japanese regional banks. *Finance Research Letters*, 1(1), pp.2-18.
- 196. TALLA, S., SHOBAKI, M., ABU-NASER, S. & AMUNA, Y. (2020): Crowdfunding Role In Boosting The Entrepreneurial Creativity Of University Students. [online] Philpapers.org. Available at: <<u>https://philpapers.org/rec/TALCRI-2</u>> [Accessed 10 August 2020].
- 197. TAN, E. & LEBY LAU, J. (2016): Behavioural intention to adopt mobile banking among the millennial generation. *Young Consumers*, 17(1), pp.18-31.

198. TASSEV, S. (2020): Fintech Startups And PCI DSS Compliance: What You Need To Know [Opinion] - Ventureburn. [online] Ventureburn. Available at: <<u>https://ventureburn.com/2020/02/fintech-startups-and-pci-dss-compliance-what-youneed-to-know-opinion/</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].

- 199. TAVAKOL, M. & DENNICK, R. (2011): Making sense of Cronbach's alpha. International *Journal of Medical Education*, 2, pp.53-55.
- 200. TAYLOR, S. & TODD, P. (1995a): Decomposition and crossover effects in the theory of planned behavior: A study of consumer adoption intentions. *International Journal of Research in Marketing*, 12(2), p.137.
- 201. TAYLOR, S. & TODD, P. (1995b): Understanding Information Technology Usage: A Test of Competing Models. *Information Systems Research*, 6(2), p.144.
- 202. TOFFANO, PRISCILLA, YUAN & KATHY. (2019): E-shekels across borders: a distributed ledger system to settle payments between Israel and the West Bank. *eprints.lse.ac.uk*, 28. p.1.
- 203. TROCHIM, M. & DONNELLY, J. (2006): Trove. [online] Trove.nla.gov.au. Available at: <<u>https://trove.nla.gov.au/work/17158592</u>> [Accessed 12 August 2020].
- 204. TULGAN, B. (2000): Tulgan, B., 2000. *Managing Generation X*. New York: W.W. Norton, pp.210-216.
- 205. VENKATESH, V. & BALA, H. (2008): Technology Acceptance Model 3 and a Research Agenda on Interventions. *Decision Sciences*, 39(2), pp.273-315.
- 206. VENKATESH, V. & DAVIS, F. (2000): A Theoretical Extension of the Technology Acceptance Model: Four Longitudinal Field Studies. *Management Science*, 46(2), pp.186-204.
- 207. VENTURELAB (2020): The Need For QA Testing In Fintech. [online] Available at: <<u>https://venture-lab.org/2019/the-need-for-qa-testing-in-fintech/</u>> [Accessed 23 March 2020].

- 208. WAMBA, F., KAMDJOUG, K., BAWACK, J., & KEOGH, J. (2019): Bitcoin, Blockchain and Fintech: a systematic review and case studies in the supply chain. *Production Planning & Control*, 31(2-3), pp.1-54.
- 209. WANG, Y., XIUPING, S. & ZHANG, Q. (2020): Can fintech improve the efficiency of commercial banks? —An analysis based on big data. *Research in International Business and Finance*, 55, p.101338.
- 210. WEBCACHE (2020): Cybersecurity And Fintech At A Crossroads. [online] Available at:

<<u>https://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:tRsFNLU6PRoJ:https://www.isaca.org/-/media/files/isacadp/project/isaca/articles/journal/2019/volume-1/cybersecurity-and-fintech-at-a-</u>

crossroads_joa_eng_0219+&cd=3&hl=en&ct=clnk&gl=ps> [Accessed 23 March 2020].

- 211. WENDEL, S. (2018): Top 20 Fintech Startups In The Middle East 2018. [online] Forbes ME. Available at: <<u>https://www.forbesmiddleeast.com/list/top-20-fintech-startups-in-the-middle-east-2018</u>> [Accessed 11 August 2020].
- 212. WINNEFELD, C. & PERMANTIER, A. (2017): FinTech The digital (R)Evolution in the German Banking Sector?. *Business and Management Research*, 6(3), pp.65-84.
- 213. YADAV, M. & ARORA, M. (2019): Study on Impact on Customer Satisfaction for E-Wallet Using Path Analysis Model. International Journal of Information Systems & Management Science, 2(1), p.1.
- 214. YEE-LOONG CHONG, A., OOI, K., LIN, B. & TAN, B. (2010): Online banking adoption: an empirical analysis. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 28(4), pp.267-287.
- 215. YEHIA, A. (2018). The State of Digital Investments in MENA 2013–2016. *KnE Social Sciences*, 3(10), p.30.
- 216. ZACHARIADIS, M. AND OZCAN, P. (2017): The API Economy And Digital Transformation In Financial Services: Open Banking | The SWIFT Institute. [online] Swiftinstitute.org. Available at: <<u>https://swiftinstitute.org/research/impact-of-open-apisin-banking/</u>> [Accessed 20 October 2020].
- 217. ZALAN, TATIANA, TOUFAILY & ELISSAR. (2017): The Promise of Fintech in Emerging Markets: Not as Disruptive. *Contemporary Economics*, 11(4), pp. 415-430.
- 218. ZANDHESSAMI, H. & GERANMAYEH, P. (2014): Determinants of user acceptance of internet banking: An empirical study. *Management Science Letters*, 4(7), pp.1369-1374.
- 219. ZHANG, T., LU, C. & KIZILDAG, M. (2018): Banking "on-the-go": examining consumers' adoption of mobile banking services. *International Journal of Quality and Service Sciences*, 10(3), pp.279-295.

Appendix 1: Descriptive & Statistical Analysis- Millennials and Gen Z

Question 4: Intention Level

Group	Dimension	Ν	Minimum	Maximum	Mean	Std. Deviation
Millennials	GS	550	1.00	5.00	4.0732	0.5596
Gen Z	GS	560	1.00	5.00	4.1297	0.8252

Question 5: Government Support Level

Group	Dimension	N	Minimum	Maximum	Mean	Std. Deviation
Millennials	GS	550	1.00	5.00	3.2163	0.8678
Gen Z	GS	560	1.00	5.00	3.1651	0.9797

Palestine Population

	Population/					
Category	Million	Details				
All	5.1					
Male	2.59					
Female	2.51					
West Bank	3.05					
West Bank Male	1.55					
West Bank						
Female	1.5					
Gaza	2.05					
Gaza Male	1.04					
Gaza Female	1.01					
1/3 of Population	1 938	38% of	36% West	41%		
<15 Years	1.950	Population	Bank	Gaza		
15-24	0.969	19% of Population				
41-64	0.918	18% of Population				
25-40	1.1217	22% of Population				
>=65	0.1533	3% of Population	4% West 1 3% Ga	Bank za		

Source: http://pcbs.gov.ps/

Validity Analysis (Millennials)

Items	λ
PU1	.832
PU2	.707
PU3	.734
PU4	.757
PEU1	.792
PEU2	.711
PEU3	.769
TRU1	.818
TRU2	.737
BI1	.708
BI2	.877
BI3	.740
PR1	.779
PR2	.797
PR3	.791
GS1	.805
GS2	.742
GS3	.789
UI1	.803
UI2	.755
ATT1	.829
ATT2	.705
ATT3	.734
INT1	.840
INT2	.790

SPSS Calculation based on Principal Component Analysis (Component Matrix)

Validity Analysis (Gen Z)

Items	λ
PU1	.764
PU2	.718
PU3	.759
PU4	.727
PEU1	.776
PEU2	.735
PEU3	.759
TRU1	.727
TRU2	.708
BI1	.737
BI2	.743
BI3	.864
PR1	.862
PR2	.884
PR3	.869
GS1	.908
GS2	.908
GS3	.899
UI1	.833
UI2	.756
ATT1	.792
ATT2	.848
ATT3	.806
INT1	.875
INT2	.859

SPSS Calculation based on Principal Component Analysis (Component Matrix)

Financial Behavior & Fintech Perception		Millennials		Gen Z	
Items	Dimensions	Frequencies	%	Frequencies	%
Most important to	Reliability/trust	247	44.9%	198	35.4%
	Ease of use	217	39.5%	257	45.8%
you about a	Service	64	11.6%	82	14.6%
Financial Service	Financial incentive	11	2.0%	18	3.3%
	Other	11	2.0%	5	0.9%
	Online	116	21%	114	20.3%
How you primarily	Mobile	158	29%	95	17.0%
Financial Services	Branch Visit for a Bank	276	50%	346	61.8%
T manetal Services	Telephone	0	0%	5	0.9%
	Strongly Disagree	6	1.0%	21	3.7%
I prefer using Bank	Disagree	86	15.6%	74	13.2%
Services rather than	Neutral	102	18.5%	135	24.1%
Fintech Services	Agree	294	53.7%	256	45.8%
	Strongly Agree	62	11.2%	74	13.2%
	Cash	319	58.0%	446	79.7%
	Debit/Credit Card	164	29.8%	104	18.5%
Which payment method do you use	Contactless Debit/Credit Card (PayWave)	8	1.4%	0	0.0%
Trequentry	Mobile/Wearable Technology	11	2.0%	5	0.9%
	Cheques	48	8.8%	5	0.9%
Are you aware of	Yes	263	47.8%	211	37.7%
the term 'Fintech'	No	287	52.2%	349	62.3%
Do you know that	Yes	370	67.3%	267	47.6%
e-Wallet is a mobile-based Application	No	180	32.7%	293	52.4%
	The only method I used for online payment	48	8.8%	32	5.7%
	Frequently	56	10.2%	32	5.7%
Have you used	Occasionally	196	35.6%	108	19.3%
Fintech Services	Once	11	2.0%	53	9.4%
	Rarely	116	21.0%	85	15.1%
	Never	123	22.4%	200	35.8%
	I don't know about it	0	0.0%	50	9.0%
	Strongly Disagree	6	1.0%	NA	

Appendix 2: Participants' Financial Behavior & Fintech

Happy to use e-	Disagree	6	1.0%		
Wallet to access	Neutral	56	10.2%		
and manage your	Agree	353	64.4%		
salary Payroll	Strongly Agree	129	23.4%		
	Strongly Disagree	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
	Disagree	0	0.0%	34	6.1%
Financial Services	Neutral	73	13.2%	135	24.1%
Tillalicial Services	Agree	292	53.1%	240	42.9%
	Strongly Agree	185	33.7%	151	26.9%
	Strongly Disagree	32	5.9%	16	2.8%
Have you been in a	Disagree	102	18.5%	135	24.1%
Hard Situation to	Neutral	140	25.4%	146	26.0%
Money Transfer?	Agree	214	39.0%	173	31.1%
Woney Hunster.	Strongly Agree	62	11.2%	90	16.0%
	Strongly Disagree	1	0.2%	11	1.9%
Do you prefer using	Disagree	21	3.9%	16	2.9%
your e-Wallet to	Neutral	66	12.0%	63	11.3%
fees?	Agree	325	59.0%	288	51.4%
	Strongly Agree	137	24.9%	182	32.5%
	Competitors	102	18.5%	177	31.6%
The role of Fintech	Complementary	268	48.8%	253	45.3%
companies in the	Accelerators	70	12.7%	66	11.8%
Banking Industry	Partners	78	14.1%	48	8.5%
	Other	32	5.9%	16	2.8%
	Financial incentive	46	8.3%	77	13.7%
What persuade you quit the current	Better services	158	28.8%	153	27.4%
	Ease of Use	134	24.4%	122	21.7%
bank to join a	Cheaper	35	6.3%	63	11.3%
service?	Speed of services	113	20.5%	135	24.1%
	Ease of process	64	11.7%	10	1.8%
	90-100%	54	9.8%	122	21.7%
	80-89%	122	22.0%	145	25.9%
	70-79%	118	21.5%	132	23.6%
Daily Mobile Apps	60-69%	48	8.8%	42	7.5%
Usage	50-59%	62	11.2%	74	13.2%
	40-49%	67	12.2%	11	1.9%
	20-39%	15	2.8%	21	3.8%
	1-19%	64	11.7%	13	2.4%
Financial services	Strongly Disagree	6	1.0%	0	0.0%
provided through	Disagree	62	11.2%	100	17.9%

Mobile Apps	Neutral	137	24.9%	148	26.4%
secured as web services	Agree	243	44.4%	172	30.7%
	Strongly Agree	102	18.5%	140	25.0%
	Strongly Disagree	17	3.0%	6	1.0%
	Disagree	22	4.0%	11	2.0%
I Trust my Bank	Neutral	39	7.0%	84	15.0%
	Agree	291	53.0%	313	56.0%
	Strongly Agree	181	33.0%	146	26.0%
	Cost saving (Lower rates, transaction fees)	62	11.2%	140	25.0%
The most Useful	Time saving (no need to go to bank or ATM)	332	60.5%	227	40.6%
Benefit of Mobile Banking Services	24 h Access (can make transaction any time)	137	24.9%	164	29.2%
	Physical security (no need to go out with cash)	19	3.4%	29	5.2%
	Strongly Disagree	6	1.0%	5	0.9%
Fintech Services	Disagree	32	5.9%	26	4.7%
Cheaper than Banks	Neutral	171	31.1%	162	28.9%
Services?	Agree	268	48.8%	248	44.3%
	Strongly Agree	73	13.2%	119	21.2%
Promotion is	Strongly Disagree	6	1.0%	0	0.0%
important to	Disagree	11	2.0%	11	1.9%
increase your	Neutral	37	6.8%	45	8.1%
interest in e- banking	Agree	365	66.3%	322	57.5%
	Strongly Agree	131	23.9%	182	32.5%
	Robot advisor	32	5.9%	77	13.7%
	Payments Services	349	63.4%	322	57.5%
Financial Services want to use at	Wealth management app	145	26.3%	132	23.6%
Mobile	Virtual Currency Platforms	13	2.4%	13	2.4%
	Venture/ P2P lending	11	2.0%	16	2.8%
e-Wallet services you're interested to use	Deposit and Withdraw from and into the e- Wallet.	88	16.0%	95	17.0%
	Money Transfer	83	15.0%	67	12.0%
	Issuing the International Internet Shopping Card	44	8.0%	50	9.0%
	Internet and Mobile Top-up	66	12.0%	78	14.0%
	Purchasing and Payment through QR (for Merchants)	44	8.0%	50	9.0%
---	---	-----	-------	-----	-------
	E-Bills Payment	98	18.0%	90	16.0%
	Purchasing e-Cards such as Google and Apple cards	33	6.0%	28	5.0%
	Purchasing through e- commerce sites and applications	94	17.0%	102	18.0%
	Mobile phone bill	138	25.0%	162	29.0%
What type of bills would you pay on your mobile phone	Utility (electricity, water)	66	12.0%	28	5.0%
	School/University fees	44	8.0%	101	18.0%
	Mobile Charge (top-up)	104	19.0%	118	21.0%
	Goods for work	77	14.0%	45	8.0%
	Other	121	22.0%	106	19.0%

Appendix 3: AMOS Calculations (Millennials & Gen Z)

Millennials Covariances

	Path Coefficie	ents	Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р	Label
PEU	<>	PU	.147	.020	7.164	***	par_1
PU	<>	TRU	.211	.030	7.066	***	par_2
PU	<>	BI	.102	.019	5.439	***	par_3
PU	<>	PR	.025	.027	.953	.341	par_4
PU	<>	GS	.092	.029	3.143	.002	par_5
PU	<>	UI	.133	.022	6.037	***	par_6
PU	<>	ATT	.148	.020	7.529	***	par_7
PU	<>	INT	.155	.021	7.239	***	par_8
PEU	<>	TRU	.247	.034	7.202	***	par_9
PEU	<>	BI	.130	.022	5.964	***	par_10
PEU	<>	PR	.019	.030	.625	.532	par_11
PEU	<>	GS	.150	.034	4.396	***	par_12
PEU	<>	UI	.120	.024	4.948	***	par_13
PEU	<>	ATT	.136	.021	6.397	***	par_14
PEU	<>	INT	.136	.023	5.909	***	par_15
TRU	<>	BI	.173	.031	5.518	***	par_16
TRU	<>	PR	.058	.044	1.310	.190	par_17
TRU	<>	GS	.294	.052	5.657	***	par_18
TRU	<>	UI	.195	.036	5.427	***	par_19
TRU	<>	ATT	.188	.031	6.108	***	par_20
TRU	<>	INT	.210	.034	6.156	***	par_21

BI	<>	PR	057	.030	-1.901	.057	par_22
BI	<>	GS	.128	.033	3.876	***	par_23
BI	<>	UI	.080	.023	3.490	***	par_24
BI	<>	ATT	.096	.020	4.840	***	par_25
BI	<>	INT	.109	.022	4.976	***	par_26
PR	<>	GS	236	.051	-4.580	***	par_27
GS	<>	UI	.170	.038	4.412	***	par_28
PR	<>	ATT	.044	.029	1.521	.128	par_29
PR	<>	INT	.024	.031	.760	.447	par_30
GS	<>	ATT	.105	.032	3.330	***	par_31
GS	<>	INT	.168	.036	4.687	***	par_32
UI	<>	ATT	.174	.025	7.070	***	par_33
UI	<>	INT	.175	.027	6.583	***	par_34
ATT	<>	INT	.204	.024	8.362	***	par_35
PR	<>	UI	006	.034	179	.858	par_36

Gen Z Covariances

Pat	h Coeffi	cients	Estimate	S.E.	C.R.	Р	Label
PEU	<>	PU	.300	.036	8.401	***	par_1
PU	<>	TRU	.319	.043	7.473	***	par_2
PU	<>	BI	.266	.035	7.644	***	par_3
PU	<>	PR	.147	.047	3.149	.002	par_4
PU	<>	GS	.038	.043	.891	.373	par_5
PU	<>	UI	.354	.044	8.114	***	par_6
PU	<>	ATT	.380	.043	8.855	***	par_7
PU	<>	INT	.380	.044	8.552	***	par_8
PEU	<>	TRU	.365	.046	7.930	***	par_9
PEU	<>	BI	.264	.036	7.303	***	par_10
PEU	<>	PR	.107	.049	2.211	.027	par_11
PEU	<>	GS	.030	.045	.663	.507	par_12
PEU	<>	UI	.356	.045	7.841	***	par_13
PEU	<>	ATT	.348	.043	8.060	***	par_14
PEU	<>	INT	.305	.043	7.047	***	par_15
TRU	<>	BI	.245	.043	5.730	***	par_16
TRU	<>	PR	.359	.065	5.497	***	par_17
TRU	<>	GS	.127	.057	2.225	.026	par_18
TRU	<>	UI	.404	.055	7.287	***	par_19
TRU	<>	ATT	.391	.053	7.447	***	par_20
TRU	<>	INT	.382	.054	7.022	***	par_21
BI	<>	PR	081	.049	-1.657	.098	par_22
BI	<>	GS	.193	.048	4.060	***	par_23
BI	<>	UI	.310	.044	6.995	***	par_24
BI	<>	ATT	.323	.043	7.568	***	par_25
BI	<>	INT	.347	.045	7.656	***	 par_26

PR	<>	GS	295	.073	-4.030	***	par_27
PR	<>	UI	.137	.060	2.256	.024	par_28
PR	<>	ATT	.165	.057	2.881	.004	par_29
PR	<>	INT	.168	.060	2.780	.005	par_30
GS	<>	UI	.174	.057	3.046	.002	par_31
GS	<>	ATT	.062	.053	1.177	.239	par_32
GS	<>	INT	.044	.055	.790	.429	par_33
UI	<>	ATT	.492	.056	8.778	***	par_34
UI	<>	INT	.453	.056	8.024	***	par_35
ATT	<>	INT	.546	.058	9.402	***	par_36

Millennials Attitude (Standardized Regression Weights)

	Path Direction		Estimate
ATT	<	PU	.220
ATT	<	PEU	.127
ATT	<	TRU	.010
ATT	<	BI	.040
ATT	<	PR	.063
ATT	<	UI	.264
ATT	<	INT	.553
ATT	<	GS	072

Millennials Perceived Usefulness (Standardized Regression Weights)

	Path Direct	tion	Estimate
PU	<	PEU	.274
PU	<	TRU	.290
PU	<	BI	.086
PU	<	PR	037
PU	<	GS	153
PU	<	UI	.106
PU	<	ATT	.266
PU	<	INT	.233

Millennials Intention (Standardized Regression Weights)

Path Directi	Estimate	
<	PU	.203
<	PEU	027
<	TRU	.025
<	BI	.072
<	PR	.058
<	GS	.184
	Path Directi < < < < < < < <-	Path Direction < PU < PEU < TRU < BI < PR < GS

INT	<	UI	.101
INT	<	ATT	.586

Gen Z Attitude (Standardized Regression Weights)

	Path Direction	n	Estimate
ATT	<	PU	.187
ATT	<	PEU	.163
ATT	<	TRU	.012
ATT	<	BI	.007
ATT	<	PR	.011
ATT	<	GS	018
ATT	<	UI	.330
ATT	<	INT	.697

Gen Z Perceived Usefulness (Standardized Regression Weights)

	Path Direc	tion	Estimate
PU	<	PEU	.379
PU	<	TRU	.050
PU	<	BI	.218
PU	<	PR	.110
PU	<	GS	037
PU	<	UI	.119
PU	<	ATT	.313
PU	<	INT	.290

Gen Z Intention (Standardized Regression Weights)

	Path Direct	ion	Estimate
INT	<	PU	.185
INT	<	PEU	214
INT	<	TRU	.100
INT	<	BI	.222
INT	<	PR	.017
INT	<	GS	083
INT	<	UI	.033
INT	<	ATT	.741

Appendix 4: Millennials & Gen Z Questionnaire

Millennials & Gen Z Questionnaire Part 1-2

(Social Profile, Financial Behavior & Fintech Perception)

Social Profile			
Items	Dimensions		
Ser	Male		
Sex	Female		
	500-1599 NIS		
Monthly Income	1600-2599		
Monully Income	2600-5000		
	>5000		
Own Ponk Account	Yes		
Own Bank Account	No		
	I don't have Bank Account		
	I don't Use it		
E-banking Usage	Once a Month		
	Twice a Month		
	3+ Times a Month		
Own Smartnhone	Yes		
Own Smartphone	No		
	NA		
Tuition Fass Payment Method	Cash		
runion rees rayment wiethou	Money Transfer		
	Cheque		

Financial Behavior & Fintech Perception

Items	Dimensions
	Reliability/trust
	Ease of use
Most important to you about a Financial Service	Service
	Financial incentive
	Other
How you primarily access your	Online
	Mobile
T manetar Services	Branch Visit for a Bank
I must an using Dark Services with an them	Strongly Disagree
I prefer using Bank Services rather than	Disagree
Timeen Services	Neutral

	Agree		
	Strongly Agree		
	Cash		
	Debit/Credit Card		
Which payment method do you use	Contactless Debit/Credit Card (PayWave)		
Frequentry	Mobile/Wearable Technology		
	Cheques		
Α	Yes		
Are you aware of the term 'Fintech'	No		
Do you know that e-Wallet is a mobile-	Yes		
based Application	No		
	The only method I used for online payment		
	Frequently		
	Occasionally		
Have you used Fintech Services	Once		
	Rarely		
	Never		
	Strongly Disagree		
	Disagree		
Happy to use e-Wallet to access and	Neutral		
manage your salary Payroll	Agree		
	Strongly Agree		
	Strongly Disagree		
	Disagree		
Prefer Realtime Financial Services	Neutral		
	Agree		
	Strongly Agree		
	Strongly Disagree		
	Disagree		
Have you been in a Hard Situation to	Neutral		
Receive Instant Money Transfer?	Agree		
	Strongly Agree		
	Strongly Disagree		
	Disagree		
Do you prefer using your e-Wallet to	Neutral		
pay your tuition fees?	Agree		
	Strongly Agree		
	Competitors		
The role of Fintech companies in the	Complementary		
Banking industry	Accelerators		

	Partners			
	Other			
	Financial incentive			
	Better services			
What persuade you guit the current bank	Ease of Use			
to join a digital financial service?	Cheaper			
	Speed of services			
	Ease of process			
	90-100%			
	<u>20 200/0</u>			
	70-79%			
	60-69%			
Daily Mobile Apps Usage	50-59%			
	<u> </u>			
	20.30%			
	1_10%			
	Strongly Disagree			
	Disagree			
Financial services provided through	Neutral			
Mobile Apps secured as web services	Agree			
	Strongly Agree			
	Strongly Agree			
	Disagree			
I Trust my Bank	Neutral			
I Hust my Dank	Agree			
	Agree Strongly Agree			
	Strongly Agree			
The most Heefel Depetit of Makile	Cost saving (Lower fates, transaction fees)			
Banking Services	Time saving (no need to go to bank of ATM)			
Danking Scivices	24 n Access (can make transaction any time)			
	Physical security (no need to go out with cash)			
	Strongly Disagree			
Fintech Services Cheaper than Banks	Disagree			
Services?	Neutral			
	Agree			
	Strongly Agree			
	Strongly Disagree			
Promotion is important to increase your	Disagree			
interest in e-banking	Neutral			
	Agree			
	Strongly Agree			

	Robot advisor		
	Payments Services		
Financial Services want to use at Mobile	Wealth management app		
	Virtual Currency Platforms		
	Venture/ P2P lending		
	Deposit and Withdraw from and into the e-Wallet.		
	Money Transfer		
	Issuing the International Internet Shopping Card		
e-Wallet services you're interested to	Internet and Mobile Top-up		
use	Purchasing and Payment through QR (for Merchants)		
	E-Bills Payment		
	Purchasing e-Cards such as Google and Apple cards		
	Purchasing through e-commerce sites and		
	applications		
	Mobile phone bill		
	Utility (electricity, water)		
What type of bills would you pay on your mobile phone	School/University fees		
	Mobile Charge (top-up)		
	Goods for work		
	Other		

Millennials & Gen Z Questionnaire Part 2-2

(Extended Technology Acceptance Model- ETAM)

E-TAM Questionnaire

E-TAM		5 Likert Scale Scales				
Variables	Items	Stron gly Agre e	Agr ee	Neut ral	Disag ree	Stron gly Disag ree
	Fintech could meet my financial services needs					
Dorocivad	"Fintech services could save my time"					
Usefulness	"Fintech services could improve services efficiency"					
	On General, Fintech services are suitable to me					
	Fintech services are easy to use					

	"I think the operation interface of			
	Fintech services interface is user			
Perceived	friendly and easy to understand"			
Ease of Use	Fintech services equipment's are easy			
	to obtain (mobiles, APPs, Internet			
	Connection)			
	"Fintech services keep my personal			
Trust	information safe"			
	"Fintech services are trustable"			
	"The bank could provide good			
	services and products"			
Brand Image	I prefer services provided by familiar			
	brands			
	The bank has a good reputation			
	Money could be stolen when using			
	Fintech Services			
Perceived	"I think that my personal privacy will			
Risk	be under threat to be disclosed"			
	On general, Fintech services are risky			
	In my opinion the government			
	encourage and supports the usage of			
	Fintech services			
	I think the government provided the			
Government	solid base from regulations and			
Support	legislation to facilitate the work of			
	Fintech services			
	I believe that government provided			
	the required infrastructure that push			
	the Fintech services in the market			
	When there is a new product, I am			
User	among the early birds who would like			
Innovativenes	to try and use it			
S	"In my opinion using Fintech services			
	is a very good idea"			
	It is a pleasant experience when using			
	Fintech services			
Attitude	"I am interested in using Fintech			
7 Hillinge	services"			
	"If I used Fintech services before I			
	will continue using it"			
	I am looking for using fintech services			
Intention	very soon		 	
Intention	"I am willing to recommend Fintech			
	services to friends"			

Appendix 5: Banks Interviews Questions

Fintech Core Technology Categories						
	1. Remitt ances & Payme nt	2. Big Data & Artificial Intelligenc e	3. Digital Banking	4. Lendin g & Alterna tive Financi ng	5. Secur ity & Risk Mana geme nt	6. Blockch ain Services
	1.1 Omnichann el payment	2.1 Automated support	3.1 Personal Financial Management	4.1 Lending Marketplace s	5.1 PCI & DSS	6.1 Process Automation
gories	1.2 Money Transfer	2.2 Predictive Analytics	3.2 Onboarding New Customers	4.2 Loan Comparison Solutions	5.2 GDPR	6.2 P2P transactions
ogy Sub-Cate	1.3 API Developme nt	2.3 Financial Data Management	3.3 Digitalization of Banking	4.3 Supply Chain Financing	5.3 Security Testing	6.3 Supply Chain Management
tech Technol	1.4 Third-party integration	2.4 Data-driven management decision	3.4 Fraud and Security	4.4 Invoice- based Financing	5.4 Fraud Detection	6.4 Asset Tokenization
Fin	1.5. Mobile Payments	2.5 Fraud Detection	3.5 Banking Data Aggregation APIs	4.5 Fund Managemen t	5.5 Advanced Risk System	6.5 Data Access Decentralizat ion
	1.6 Online payment	2.6 AI for Back Office	3.6 Anti-money Laundering			6.6 Digital Identity

Banks Readiness Measure to Fintech-B

Service Type	Do you Know About it (Yes, No)	Is It Available (Yes, No)	Could it be Implemented (Yes, No)
Omnichannel payment			
Money Transfer			
API Development			
Third-party integration			
Mobile Payments			
Online payment			

Banks Readiness Measure 1 (Remittances & Payment)

Banks Readiness Measure 2 (Big Data & Artificial Intelligence AI)

Service Type	Do you Know About it (Yes, No)	Is It Available (Yes, No)	Could it be Implemented (Yes, No)
Automated support			
Predictive Analytics			
Financial Data Management			
Data-driven management decision			

Fraud Detection		
AI for Back Office		

Banks Readiness Measure 3 (Digital Banking)

Service Type	Do you Know About it (Yes, No)	Is It Available (Yes, No)	Could it be Implemented (Yes, No)
Personal Financial Management			
Onboarding New Customers			
Digitalization of Banking			
Fraud and Security			
Banking Data Aggregation APIs			
Anti-money Laundering			

Banks Readiness Measure 4 (Lending & Alternative Financing)

Service Type	Do you Know About it (Yes, No)	Is It Available (Yes, No)	Could it be Implemented (Yes, No)
Lending Marketplaces			

Loan Comparison Solutions		
Supply Chain Financing		
Invoice-based Financing		
Fund Management		

Banks Readiness Measure 5 (Security & Risk Management)

Service Type	Do you Know About it (Yes, No)	Is It Available (Yes, No)	Could it be Implemented (Yes, No)
PCI (Payment Card Industry) DSS (Data Security Standard) Compliance			
GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) Compliance			
Security Testing			
Fraud Detection			
Advanced Risk System			

Service Type	Do you Know About it (Yes, No)	Is It Available (Yes, No)	Could it be Implemented (Yes, No)
Process Automation			
P2P transactions			
Supply Chain Management			
Asset Tokenization			
Data Access Decentralization			
Digital Identity			

Banks Readiness Measure 6 (Blockchain Services)

Question 1: "What is the readiness level of the Palestinian Banks for the Fintech requirements in the financial digital transformation?"

Question 2: What is the Attractiveness level of the Palestinian Market for Fintech Services?

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

God's is my inspire who leads me to pursue this unique experience to obtain a Ph.D. degree in Management and Business Administration, God's say in his Holey Book (Al-Quran)

And say, "Do [as you will], for Allah will see your deeds, and [so, will] His Messenger and the believers. And you will be returned to the Knower of the unseen and the witnessed, and He will inform you of what you used to do."

I learned from this verse that the human has to seek and work hard to achieve his dreams, a dream without a plan will not be recognized by the human himself and by others, God will lead the right and kind people to help you and let you fulfill and achieve your dream.

I want to express my deep appreciation and thankfulness for the first person who accepted my request to pursue my Ph.D. at Szent István Univesity, **Prof. Mária Farkasné Fekete**, I would like to thank you for all your efforts, supports, and advices during this journey, and the special thanks for my superior supervisor **Dr. Constantinovits Milán** for all his great supervision, he treated me as a Son. **Prof. Zoltán Lakner** is one of the most inspired professors I met in my life for his standing and help to all his students in the doctoral school. A special thanks to **Prof. Popp József** the Head of Doctoral School of Economic and Regional Sciences at SZIE for his kind and generous permission to defend my thesis.

The great person in this life, who is like my shadow in all this life, my **Mother** I love you and you are the eyes that I see all beautiful things in my life. I ask God to protect you till the last breath.

My great appreciation for my Family, Friends and all my professors and doctors at SZIE.